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Company Structure

—1 A
NRIRE
As at 31 March 2016 #HZE-Z—X"F=A=+—H

51% 100%
INVESTMENT HOLDING PAINTS AND CONTRACT SERVICES

INVESTMENT HOLDING INVESTMENT HOLDING (Note 3)
China 0il Resources Group Ltd.
(BVI)

INVESTMENT HOLDING INVESTMENT & MONEY LENDING INACTIVE (Note 1)

100%

INVESTMENT HOLDING MONEY LENDING

BROKERAGE

INVESTMENT HOLDING INVESTMENT HOLDING

m

INVESTMENT HOLDING INVESTMENT HOLDING
PetroAsian Energy
Holdings Ltd.

(cayman ISIands) INVESTMENT HOLDING OIL EXPLOITATION BUSINESS
H.K. Listed

COAL TRADING OIL TRADING

INVESTMENT HOLDING INVESTMENT HOLDING MINING BUSINESS

INVESTMENT HOLDING 3L

100%

Wing Shing Group Lt
(BVI)

INVESTMENT HOLDING OIL EXPLOITATION BUSINESS

INVESTMENT HOLDING

INVESTMENT HOLDING

INVESTMENT HOLDING

INVESTMENT HOLDING (Note 2) EXPLOITATION DRILLING

Note:

1. Company was incorporated on 28 January 2015.
2. Company was incorporated on 5 January 2016.
3. Company was incorporated on 27 January 2016.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of PetroAsian Energy
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the audited
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$5,932,235,000 (2015:
HK$804,167,000) and a gross profit of approximately HK$124,179,000
(2015: HK$2,979,000), representing an increase of 637.69% and
4,068.48% from the year of 2015 respectively. The increase in the
Group’s revenue and gross profit was mainly attributable to the
significant rise in revenue of commodity trading segment. The loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$227,059,000, representing an increase of 53.10% as compared to
last year.
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

During the year under review, despite of slow recovery of global
economy and relatively uncertain economic circumstance in China,
the fluctuation of oil market is relatively mitigated. The demand for
petroleum products and corresponding derivatives chemicals products
increased significantly as compared to last year, even though the oil
prices remained at low level as a result of geopolitical factors. Hence,
our Group were able to grab the market opportunities and delivered
a sound performance in terms of trading volume and revenue of the
Group’s commodity trading business during the year.

The commodity trading business contributed the majority revenue of
the Group. During the year under review, to ensure a steady profit
growth in commodity trading business and achieve risk diversification,
the Group developed new product lines for trading such as ITO
products and plastic products.

Furthermore, the Group had started the money lending business in
Hong Kong since last year, two indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company have obtained the money lending licences in Hong Kong.
To further penetrate into the financial services market in Hong Kong,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has successfully
obtained a licence from Securities and Future Commission of Hong
Kong on 30 September 2015 to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities)
regulated activities. In view of expected revenue growth with promising
market outlook of securities trading business, the Group intends to
deploy more resources in brokerage service and develop the asset
management services. The management positions itself as one of the
key businesses of the Group.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the international oil price is expected to remain at
low level. Meanwhile, China is believed to import more oil, and
thereby bringing positive impact to the Group’s oil trading business.
The Group will keep up with the satisfactory performance in the
existing product lines and explore new opportunity in clean energy,
chemicals or electronic related markets, through optimising the sales
network and integrating privilege customers of both suppliers and
customers, increasing the volume of trade by cross selling; and utilising
the domestic and international resources and market to achieve the
Group's revenue commodity diversification and steady profit growth.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 4 May 2016,
a subsidiary of the Group entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding with a vendor in relation to a possible
acquisition of an entire interest of a company, which is principally
engaged in the sale of insurance products, collection of insurance
premium, loss investigation and claim settlement in respect of relevant
insurance businesses as agent in Zhejiang Province, the PRC. The Group
will proactively make it a successful acquisition to broaden its sources
of existing income and aim at maximising profit and return for the
Group and its Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Last but not the least, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to the members of the Board, the management
and all our dedicated staff for their invaluable services over the year
for the Group. | would also like to thank our shareholders, business
partners and stakeholders for their ongoing trust and support. We are
well positioned to deliver further growth on our shareholder’s value.

By order of the Board

Li Zhenjun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWR D

AT

OVERVIEW ON CONSOLIDATED OPERATING #HREREXEME
RESULTS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group achieved a revenue REE-T—ANF=-A=+—HBILFER"

of approximately HK$5,932,235,000 (2015: HK$804,167,000) and a
gross profit of approximately HK$124,179,000 (2015: HK$2,979,000),
representing an increase of 637.69% and 4,068.48% from the year of
2015 respectively. The increase in the Group's revenue and gross profit
was mainly attributable to the significant rise in revenue of commodity
trading segment.

The Group recorded consolidated operating loss of approximately
HK$177,973,000 (2015: HK$138,438,000) representing an increase

Zs%lﬁ%u&zﬁniﬁ,ﬂzs 932,235,0007T ( =
T —RF BH804,167,0007T ) M EFL) B
124,179,0007T ( —Z— R 4 : B %2,979,000
L) BB T — R FEN637.69% K
4,068.48%  NEE 2 W R ERMEM 2
MREME 5o B KB IEMETE -

REBERSERA L EEELE%177,973,000
T (ZZE—HF:8%138,438,000T) °

. of 28.56% from the year of 2015. The Group's operating loss was 8 =% — A F 1 JN28.56% - A EE KL &
a! - mainly as a result of the following: (1) recognition of impairment losses BB EEH A TS BB (W EE
.‘ “‘ of assets including property, plant and equipment, other intangible (BEWE HE M&RE - Eﬂﬂﬂﬁ/ﬁig
m = assets, investment properties, trade receivables and prepayments, &YW B 5 & U E A & FE R &

ﬂ= deposits and other receivables and inventories written off amounting 2 & K E i JiE UK 3R B ) #E 5208 (E 185 18 &Wﬁﬁ
ll"l‘ “ to approximately HK$175,914,000 (2015: HK$65,470,000), (2) 71F&E#)#E#175,914,0000 (= F— R4
b N recognition of share-based payments amounting to approximately & #65,470,0007T) ' Q)R UK KD X 2
- 'ﬁ HK$11,998,000 (2015: HK$6,357,000), and (3) depreciation and 2% JE 4% #11,998,0007T ( = T — F 4 : &
ﬂ“ amortisation amounting to approximately HK$11,791,000 (2015:  #6,357,0007T) * R (3)¥T & R B 5 4 B &

—
——

et

HK$17,330,000). 11,791,0007T ( =%

JT) e

— R : B %17,330,000

-

—
-

——-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Excluding the above non-recurring items (1) and (2), totalling
approximately HK$187,912,000 (2015: HK$71,827,000), the
Group's performance on operating profit would be approximately
HK$9,939,000 (2015: operating loss of HK$66,611,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Commodity trading

In the reporting period, the commodity trading business contributed
the majority revenue of the Group, amounting to approximately
HK$5,856,335,000 (2015: HK$686,767,000) which accounted for
98.72% of the Group's revenue (2015: 85.40%). This was mainly due
to the increase in trading volume of oil products and new product
lines in particularly Indium Tin Oxide ("ITO") product, an electricity-
conductive material, and plastic products during the reporting period.
ITO is an electricity-conductive material, with its characteristic of
turning into transparent when electricity is connected. ITO is often
used to make transparent conductive costings for displays such as
liquid crystal displays, touch panel, etc.

Despite of slow recovery of the global economy since 2015 and
relatively uncertain economic circumstance in China, the fluctuation
of oil market is relatively mitigated. The demand for petroleum
products and corresponding derivatives chemicals products increased
significantly as compared to last year, even though the oil prices
remained at low level as a result of geopolitical factors. Our operation
teams were able to grab the market opportunities and delivered a
sound performance in terms of trading volume and revenue of the
Group’s commodity trading business during the reporting period.

As for the oil products trading, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$1,162,727,000 for the reporting period (2015:
HK$686,767,000), representing an increase of 69.30% as compared
with 2015. A total of 55,493 tons (2015: 43,206 tons) and 319,677
tons (2015: 124,357 tons) of oil products were traded in China and
in other Asia Pacific countries respectively, maintaining steady gross
profit.

In order to ensure a steady profit growth in commodity trading
business and achieve risk diversification, our operating teams carried
out new product lines for trading such as ITO products and plastic
products. During the reporting period, revenue of approximately
HK$4,693,608,000 was generated from these new product lines
(2015: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE W& D

Looking forward into the next year, the international oil price is
expected to remain at low level. Meanwhile, China is believed
to import more oil, and thereby bringing positive impact to the
Group’s oil trading business. The Group will keep up the satisfactory
performance in the existing product lines and explore new opportunity
in clean energy, chemicals or electronic related markets, by optimising
the sales network and integrating privilege customer from both
suppliers and customers, cross selling to increase the volume; and
utilising domestic and international resources and market to achieve
the Group’s revenue commodity diversification and steady profit
growth.

Crude oil

The Group has a 96% interest of an indirect owned subsidiary 7 75
WMHEmEILAHAMEAREMLARF, which owns an oilfield project
in Fulaerji District near Qigihar City of Heilongjiang Province of China.
Since last year, the Group subcontracted the operation of the oilfields
in the Fu 718, Fu 710 and Meilisi 723 areas in Qigihar (“Oilfields”)
to an independent oil service professional (the “Contractor”), which
the Contractor provides on-site technical and management services in
respect of the latter’s exploration and production activities on Qilfields.
The Contractor is responsible for all operation costs as well as to invest
funds in drilling new wells and oilfields related long term investment.
In return for the provision of those services, the Contractor will share
majority of total crude oil revenue during the service period.

During the reporting period, due to the significant decline of the
international price of crude oil, the impairment in relation to oil
properties and oil exploitation licences amounted to HK$145,086,000,
which has dragged down the performance of crude oil segment.

During the reporting period, the supply in the international oil market
was still ample. International oil prices continued to fluctuate at a
low level. In view of the low oil prices and high production cost, the
management and the Contractor considered to diminish the risk and
loss by fine tuning the development plan in the Oilfields and slowing
down the oil exploitation process in the Oilfields. The management
expected that the development progress will be further delayed.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Chemical products

The Group strived to maintain its loyal customers and suppliers for
chemical products trading business during the reporting period. The
revenue of approximately HK$62,843,000 was recognised for the
year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$104,577,000), representing a
decrease of 39.91%. On the other hand, another subsidiary within
this segment which is based in Beijing and providing paint services,
recorded a total revenue of approximately HK$362,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$11,393,000), representing a
decrease of 96.82%. In view of the risk relating to the increment of
materials cost and staff cost; and facing to the uncertain economic
environment of the industry in the PRC, the operation in Beijing will be
gradually reduced.

Service contract

The Group has a business in the Republic of Kazakhstan
(“Kazakhstan”), the business is principally engaged in exploitation of
crude oil and natural gas, production of crude oil products, exploration
drilling, crude oil and gas field and oilfield construction and installation
works in Kazakhstan. During the reporting period, the Group
considered to minimise the business risk, including adverse impact of
the fluctuation in oil price and foreign exchange in Kazakhstani Tenge,
the Group diminished the investment and gave up the control over its
major business in Kazakhstan but maintained the shareholding since
March 2016, resulting of a loss of HK$9,789,000. In the reporting
period, this service contract segment business recorded a total revenue
of approximately HK$1,580,000 (2015: HK$5,163,000), representing a
decrease of 69.40%.

Other business

The Group started the money lending business in Hong Kong since
June 2014. During the reporting period, two indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company have obtained the money lending licences
in Hong Kong. During the reporting period, interest revenue was
HK$9,823,000 (2015: HK$4,487,000).
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The licensing of money lenders and regulation of money-lending
transactions are governed by the Money Lenders Ordinance, Chapter
163 of the Laws of Hong Kong. The market of money lending business
by licensed money lenders in Hong Kong is keen and competitive. In
order to maximise the market share in this business but also to ensure
the compliance of the related laws and regulations, the operation team
has established a credit policy and loan approval process to minimise
the credit risk.

FUTURE PROSPECT

To cope market with the development strategy of stepping into the
financial services market in Hong Kong, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company has successfully obtained a licence by
Securities and Future Commission of Hong Kong to carry out type 1
(dealing in securities) regulated activities on 30 September 2015. The
Group commenced the business on 30 March 2016. In view of its
expected revenue growth with promising market outlook, the Group
intends to deploy more resources in brokerage and asset management
services. The management also positions these as key businesses of the
Group in the long run.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 4 May 2016,
a subsidiary of the Group entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding with a vendor in relation to a possible
acquisition of an entire interest of a company, which is principally
engaged in the sale of insurance products, collection of insurance
premium, loss investigation and claim settlement in respect of relevant
insurance businesses as agent in Zhejiang Province, the PRC. The Board
believes that the above possible acquisition represents a viable business
opportunity to step forward in strengthening the Group’s business
development in the financial sector and to further expand the Group'’s
financial services business into the PRC market. The Directors are also
of the view that the possible acquisition represents a good opportunity
for the Group to expand its existing business so as to broaden its
sources of income, aiming at maximising profit and return for the
Group and its shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and operating review

For the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$5,932,235,000 (2015:
HK$804,167,000), representing an increase of 637.69% from the
year of 2015. The Group’s loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company was approximately HK$227,059,000 (2015:
HK$148,305,000), representing an increase of 53.10%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Increase in the Group’s revenue was mainly attributable to the
increase in revenue in commodity trading segment. While the
Group’s loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
mainly attributable from the (1) recognition of impairment losses
of assets including property, plant and equipment, other intangible
assets,
deposits and other receivables and inventories written off amounting
to approximately HK$175,914,000 (2015: HK$65,470,000), (2)
recognition of fair value of share-based payments amounting to
approximately HK$11,998,000 (2015: HK$6,357,000), (3) depreciation
and amortisation amounting to approximately HK$11,791,000 (2015:
HK$17,330,000) and (4) finance costs amounting to approximately
HK$32,779,000 (2015: HK$14,931,000).

investment properties, trade receivables and prepayments,

Working capital

As at 31 March 2016, the Group's current assets were kept at
approximately HK$682,060,000 (2015: HK$611,380,000) whilst
current liabilities were approximately HK$324,889,000 (2015:
HK$415,229,000). The current ratio, being the proportion of total
current assets against total current liabilities, was 2.10 (2015: 1.47).
The directors consider that the present working capital level is
conservatively sufficient to meet the upcoming operating needs.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flows and facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong Kong
and in China.

The Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$208,168,000 as at 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$212,766,000). The
Group'’s cash and bank balances were mostly held in Hong Kong dollar
and Renminbi.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As at 31 March 2016, the Group's total outstanding corporate bonds
were approximately HK$366,830,000 (2015: total bank borrowing
and corporate bonds of HK$309,953,000) and total assets were
approximately HK$1,075,279,000 (2015: HK$1,156,171,000). Except
for corporate bonds, the Group did not have any long term borrowings
nor long term debt due to third party.

The gearing ratio, calculated by dividing the total borrowings by the
total assets, was equal to 34.11% at 31 March 2016 (2015: 26.81%).

Pledged assets

As at 31 March 2016, the Group pledged the following assets to
secure the Group's trading facilities:

(1)  Corporate guarantee executed by the Company for an unlimited
amount (2015: same);

(2)  An investment property with a carrying value of HK$23,349,000
(2015: HK$23,862,000);

(3) As at 31 March 2016, the Group has not pledged any trade
receivable (2015: HK$196,051,000); and

(4)  As at 31 March 2016, the Group has not maintained any fixed
deposit (2015: RMB37,542,000 (approximately HK$46,980,000))
for the bank borrowings and trading facilities purpose.

INFORMATION ON CRUDE OIL RESERVES AS
OF 31 MARCH 2016

During the reporting period, the management appointed APEX
Reservoir Service Inc. ("APEX") as independent professional technical
valuer (the “Technical Valuer”) to evaluate the estimated oil reserve
and recoverable amount of Qigihar oilfield for impairment assessment
purpose as of 31 March 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The reserves evaluation performed by APEX was conducted in
accordance with Petroleum Resources Management System (the
"PRMS"), an internationally recognised reserve standards and
guideline. The evaluation subject was petroleum asset (the “Asset”)
owned by the Company in Fulaerji Oilfield, including Fu 710, Fu
718 and Meilisi 723. The management of the Group has accepted
the newly calculated reserve and a set of technical and economic
parameters proposed by APEX (including discount rates, oil price
and cost projections, and oilfield development plan) as the basis for
recoverable amount calculations. According to the PRMS definition,
the oil reserve should be classified into Proved reserve (“P1"); Probable
reserve (“P2") and Possible reserve (“P3"). Based on management
internal assessment of reserve, the total 1P, 2P (“sum of P1 and P2")
and 3P (“sum of P1, P2 and P3") reserve of Qigihar oilfields as of 31
March 2016, are approximately 602,000 tons, 1,524,000 tons and
1,971,000 tons respectively.

BEE W& D

Bl HT 0 17 B9 % 28 5T 1 T AR 45 B PR 3R AT /Y
SRERESIABEREESE ([PRMS])
EIT FMEERARATINENREhEER
MAREE ([BE])  BIEE710 5718k
BEHT723 - NEBEEECENZHTED
FERMENEZZEN —ARMREESH (8
YR - AR B R AN TERI LA Ko B 7 B
&) (ERFTE I E £ ZEAELE « IRIBPRMS
EE - ABRBEESEAFEMR=Z ([P1]) %
Hig2 ([P2]) RAJfefE= ([P3]) - RIEER
BASFEF G EERRBEARZ-ZZE—X
F=ZA=+—HMIP 2P ([P1KP2Z ] ) K&
3P(IP1-P2RP3IZH)WNBRED AN A
602,000M ~ 1,524,000M 21,971,000 o

Report on crude oil reserve Fohf#ERE
Proved Probable Possible Total oil
reserve reserve reserve reserve
RERE MEHE TMHERE HAHHE
('000 tons) (‘000 tons) (‘000 tons) (‘000 tons)
(Fmg) (Fmz) (Fm8) (Fm)
Crude oil reserve FRREE
As at 1 April 2014 R-ZT—MEMA/—H 433 843 1,366 2,642
Adjustment to estimation* HAFTARIE* 323 71 98 492
Production for the year FRNEE (1) - - @)
As at 31 March 2015 W_Z—RF=A=+—H 755 914 1,464 3,133
Adjustment to estimation* HAHET R IE* (153) 8 (1,017) (1,162)
As at 31 March 2016 NZZ—RFE=A=+—H 602 922 447 1,971

* During the year ended 31 March 2016, due to the change of market condition, the
Contractor revised a development plan.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEETNWE D
Reserve evaluation criteria

The volumetric estimate method was used to calculate hydrocarbon in
place and then recover using the huff and puff recovery method and
oil reservoir fire-flooding thermal-ignition method. As at 31 March
2016, APEX has used the deterministic method (as opposed to the
probabilistic method) to calculate the reserves estimates, in which three
discrete scenarios were delineated to represent high, medium and low
cases.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at end of
the reporting period.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
AND INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's business transactions are mainly denominated in United
Stated dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Most of the Group’s
borrowings are interest bearing at fixed rate basis. The management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise. The Group
also uses derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate
exposures for hedging purpose only.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has an aggregate of 88 (2015: 104)
employees of which about 37 (2015: 66) were located in mainland
China while the rest were based in Hong Kong, Republic of Kazakhstan
and Macau. The employees’ remuneration package includes salary,
bonus, share options and share awards. Pursuant to the Group’s
remuneration policy, employees are rewarded on the basis of merit and
market conditions and in accordance with the statutory requirements
of the respective jurisdiction where the employees locate.
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Corporate Governance Report

This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) presents the corporate
governance matters during the year covering the financial year ended
31 March 2016 (“CG Period”) required to be disclosed under the Rules
Governing the Listing of the Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited ("“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules™).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (“Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the corporate
governance codes of the Company.

During the year, the Company has complied with all the Code
Provisions set out in the Code except for the deviations as follows:

Code Provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

The Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INEDs")) of the Company are not appointed for specific
terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Company's Articles of Association.

Code Provision E.1.2 requires that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting.

After the resignation of Mr. Wang Bo as Executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board on 30 June 2014, the Company did not
have the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Poon Sum was elected as the
Chairman of the meeting at the annual general meeting held on
11 September 2015 ("AGM") in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company. The Honorary Chairman, chief executive
officer, the chief financial officer, the chairman and/or the members of
the audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee
and corporate governance committee of the Company attended the
AGM. The Company considers that their presence is sufficient for
answering questions of the shareholders at the AGM. Besides, Mr.
Poon Sum, the Honorary Chairman, has taken up the responsibilities
of the Chairman of the Board temporarily until 7 January 2016.
On 8 January 2016, Mr. Li Zhenjun, an executive Director, has been
appointed as the chairman of the Board with effect from 8 January
2016.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 March 2016, the Board comprised a total of eight Directors,
with four Executive Directors ("EDs”), one Non-executive Director
(“NED") and three INEDs. Two of the INEDs have appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting, or related professional
management expertise, which is required by the Listing Rules. During
the CG Period, 6 regular Board meetings were held.

During the CG period, the composition of the Board, and the
respective attendances of the Directors are presented as follows:

B

RIB-RE=ZA=1t—H EFgaHEHE
NIES UG RTES ([RTEE])
—fIIFAITEFR (BEATESR]) R =BT
FHTES -HPMBLFRTESHER L
MARAMRENEE G EXER  NEMEE
XEEEMAE - -REXEBRHA  AARE
HBTTRNREFETEH-

ROEEE AR ETgNERRESSED
BB

Director Board Capacity Attendance
S EEg549 HE=
Mr. Li Zhenjun ED & Chairman 171 #
FIRE K4 WITEEHRER

Mr. Poon Sum ED & Honorary Chairman 6/6
EIRTTE WITEEHREEER

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED & Chief Executive Officer 6/6
=EREE HATE BFRITEAAE

Mr. Poon Wai Kong ED & Chief Financial Officer 6/6
EER L WITESEHRERVBE

Mr. Zaid Latif NED 2/6
Zaid Latift 4 EBMITES

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED (retired on 11 September 2015) 1/2 #
BRERIZ S 4 BYFPTEE (R _ZE—HFNAA+—RHERME)

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 6/6
BRI ER S A BUFMITES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 6/6
REB L WY FRITES

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 2/2 %
EEREE WY FRITES

All the 6 regular Board meetings were held to discuss and/or approve
the financial performance/results of the Group, report, discuss and/
or resolve for the ordinary business and operation matters, and the
corporate development and decisions.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective supervision over the
management. Daily operations and administration are delegated to the
management. During the CG Period, none of the Directors above has
or maintained any financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship with any of the other Directors.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AR 28 AERIEARE IR A F)
Annual Report 2015-16 —Z—RAE—NFHFEHRE

ARBEMBITTRAREEGSH FdmMk
SRAER B BRREE ®E
Wk AR EEEREEER URQF
BRIORE

EEgNEAEEMNBRRE  EREMBER
AREFHEEENEREE AREEBERE
BHRKEEEAR -NEXER/ME £t
EEMERETNECESHALERFEME
BEB FRIHEMER ERBE-



Corporate Governance Report

Following the retirement of Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul as INED
after the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 11
September 2015, the Company had only two INEDs, the number
of audit committee members decreased from three to two, and the
remuneration committee did not have a chairman. In order to fulfill
the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu was appointed as INED and a member of the Audit
Committee and Mr. Chan Shu Kin was appointed as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee with effect from 11 December 2015.

# The Board had convened 1 meeting after the appointment of Mr.
Li Zhenjun (during the period from 4 January 2016 to 31 March
2016).

#2 The Board had convened 2 meetings before the retirement of Mr.
Chan Kam Ching, Paul (during the period from 1 April 2015 to
11 September 2015).

" The Board had convened 2 meetings after the appointment of
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu (during the period from 11 December 2015 to
31 March 2016).

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are held separately by Mr. Li Zhenjun and Mr. Wong Kwok Leung
respectively. Besides, Mr. Poon Sum is the Honorary Chairman of the
Company.

The separation of duties of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
ensures a clear distinction between the Chairman’s responsibility for
running the board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility for
running the Company’s business. Details of the duties of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are available on the
Company's website.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) on
21 June 2013. A summary of this Policy, together with the measurable
objectives set for implementing this Policy, and the progress made
towards achieving those objectives are disclosed as below.
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SUMMARY OF THE POLICY

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. In designing the Board’'s composition,
the Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of services. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

IMPLEMENTATION

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition under major
diversified perspectives was summarised as follow:

HRBEE
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was formed on 21 March 2005 and has
adopted specific written terms of reference in accordance with the
provisions set out in the Code which are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The role and function of the
Remuneration Committee includes:

o to make recommendations to the board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.

o to review and approve the senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

o to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment.

o to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group.

o to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive.

o to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate.

o to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors.

o to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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TRERRE

o to consult the chairman and/or the chief executive about e FTNZE e R EMMITERTEMNE

remuneration proposals of the Remuneration Committee for FRATER/AEBITBRAB -IE
other executive directors. The Remuneration Committee should FE FWNEZESRASKBEVEEER
have access to independent professional advice if necessary. 8o
For the financial year under review, the Remuneration Committee R EIBIEFE HWNEESEE LET T
held four physical meetings. The composition of the Remuneration K& -FHMEECWEARNEZESKERH
Committee and the respective attendances of the committee members  HEBR T :
are presented as follows:
Member Committee Capacity Attendance
24= ZE8 5K HE=E
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul Chairman of the committee 1/4
(retired on 11 September 2015)
BRERIZE & ZEeFF(R_ZE—HAFNA+—HEE)
Mr. Chan Shu Kin Chairman of the committee 4/4
BoR At B2 5 A ZEGXRE
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 4/4
SR #9985 A BYIIENITESE
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 2/4
EEEEE BYUFNITES
Mr. Poon Sum ED 4/4
ERSTAE HiTESE
The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Chan Shu Kin. FMEE X RAMREREE

The summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee ~ REIBEIMHBEE - HFMEESRHITH TIHEHRE
for the financial year under review included: B

. to review the current remuneration policies and appraisal system; T8 5T 35 B 357 BN IBSR R A bl

. to recommend to the Board the director’s fee for the year ending MESgEREE-FT— =7

31 March 2016; and =+ HLFEZEREHEE X

e to consider and approve the remuneration of the directors and e ERERAEEERSREIEE 2 FH M-
senior management.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors for
the financial year under review is set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The share options granted to/or entitled by the Directors during
the financial year under review are inscribed in the section headed
“Directors’ Interests in Equity or Debt Securities” of the Directors’
Report.

DIRECTORS' TRAINING

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the Code which took effect on
1 April 2012, all Directors should participate in continual professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continual professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has sent reading materials to Directors on regulatory updates
or information relevant to the Company or its business.
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TEERHRE

The Company has received from all Directors records of their continual A RAFIEEEZEEEZTNEET AHBANE
professional development trainings during the CG Period. Details of ~ S#EBEERITI| 208k - BRAEBEII WM
which are set out below: I

Type of Continuous Professional Development

HEEXBRZ2ER
Reading regulatory
updates or
Attending seminar information Visiting the
on regulatory relevant to the Company's projects
development and Company or its in China or
directors’ duties business Overseas
RMEEELRAH
HEEERRER HEBCEE EHARQE

ESREWNE BRFEARREN EFEIENZIEE

Mr. Li Zhenjun FIRE LA v/ v/ v
Mr. Poon Sum ERTAE v/ v/ v
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung HHR A v v v
Mr. Poon Wai Kong RIS A4 v/ v/ v
Mr. Zaid Latif Zaid Latif5t 4 - v/ -
Mr. Chan Shu Kin PR AT B2 % A v v -
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung SREIIE ST AE v/ v -
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu EEREE v/ v/ -
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION EFEETESERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions N2 &) 2 B 4% £ 77 48 AU BT &% 1 P& &9 iy 2
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix {TAEFEITESR HWIZEST A ([1ZHEST
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities 8l |) " {EAE EETEF LT HNITATE &
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all ¥FFBEEFHITTENR MEESERAR
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the SR R&EHIND B TZEST R BT
required standard set out in the Model Code during the reporting  BlJ°

period.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S REMUNERATION SNERE 2 HiN
E

BRI BRSNS R EREK
HrNsEHIIMT

For the CG Period, the remuneration of the members of the senior M1
management excluding directors by band is set out below: 82

Number of individuals

Remuneration band R A8
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 75 #500,001 T £ /8 #1,000,0007T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 751,000,001 7C 2% 1,500,000 1
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
two were directors of the Company. Further particulars regarding the
remaining three individuals with the highest emoluments as required to
be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee was formed on 26 November 2011 and
has adopted specific written terms of reference in accordance with the
provisions set out in the Code which are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Nomination Committee
was appointed by the Board and consists of three non-executive
directors and one executive director of the Company. The meetings and
proceedings are governed by the provisions contained in the articles of
association of the Company for regulating meetings and proceedings
of the Directors. The role and function of the Nomination Committee
includes:

° to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the board
to complement the Company's corporate strategy.

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.

o to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

o to make recommendations to the board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The selection criteria for Directors are the candidate(s) must have
substantial experience in business relevant to the Company or in
corporate management, or in relevant profession and must be able
to contribute effectively to the objectives of the Company. Any
committee member may propose suitable candidates for directorship
for discussion and approval by the Nomination Committee, after which
the Board will consider and, if appropriate, approve such nomination.
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For the CG Period, the Nomination Committee had held 4 physical ROEEEAHE REEESEHE LET T
meetings for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board on X &% EEHREZTEEREREEAE S
appointment of Directors, re-appointment of Directors and assessing @12 H 23 A MFZ B ERITEENB L
the independence of independent non-executive directors. T o

The composition of the Nomination Committee and the respective 1REEZEEMHEKLAEZEEXREZAHFER

attendances of the committee members are presented as follows: % U

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
ME EZEE5H R
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung Chairman of the committee 4/4
REBEE ZEEXR

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED (retired on 11 September 2015) 171
BRERIZSE & BYFNTEE (RZE—RAFNAT+—BEME)

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 4/4
PRGBS A BUFNTEF

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 7
EEERELE WY FRITES

Mr. Poon Sum ED 4/4
BT WITES

The chairman of the Nomination Committee since its establishment has BIEEZZEE €K VL X EARBBELE -
been Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung.

AUDIT COMMITTEE ERZEES

The Audit Committee has adopted specific written terms of reference  F#%ZE 8 & DR <F QI FFH M K IR A IEE

in accordance with the provisions set out in the Code which are  EVEMEEEEHE (A REEPA R A A B4 E
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. &) - BEZE€MNTERE (RN_ZT— X F
The principal duties of the Audit Committee (revised on 1 April 2016) P9 A —B&E:]) B

include:

e to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the o X EEBERINERHMNEE EHE

board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the IRERRAEFSREER IR
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms 2 EAT B BN R e R G SR R ER (A
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its B A% 1% AN B B sk B R sZ A ERT Y
resignation or dismissal; =
j . to review and monitor the external auditor's independence e R R IZE R R & BE R IMNS X HAT 2

\ and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in BBEUEERZEREFESE M - FiZ
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee % 8 & E N IX B T VERA 14 Al 5 B2 4% 20ED
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the s E RSB R EERRET
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences and NEBE —RZBMESMIXETE
ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved, A FERE(R B AR 1738 -
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to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to provide non-audit services. For this purpose, "“external
auditor” includes any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity
that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee should
report to the board, identifying and making recommendations on
any matters where action or improvement is needed;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them. In reviewing these
reports before submission to the board, the Audit Committee
should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;

(iii)  significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and qualifications;
(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and;

(vi)  compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements in
relation to financial reporting;

Regarding above:—

(i) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
board and senior management and the Audit Committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
auditors; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in
the report and accounts, it should give due consideration
to any matters that have been raised by the Company’s
staff responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditors;
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i

EERME

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless expressly
addressed by a separate board risk committee, or by the board
itself, to review the Company's risk management and internal
control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should include
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and
final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to discuss (in
the absence of management where necessary);

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of controls and
management'’s response;

to review the Company’s statement on risk management and
internal control systems (where one is included in the annual
report) prior to endorsement by the board;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

to ensure that the board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;
to report to the board on the matters in provision of terms of

reference of the Audit Committee;

to review the group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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J to review arrangements by which employees of the Company
can use,
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The Audit Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation
of these matters and for appropriate follow-up action; and

in confidence, to raise concerns about possible

o to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor.

For the CG Period, the Audit Committee had held two regular
meetings for discussing and/or approving the periodic financial results
of the Group, discussing the auditor's performance, reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group and adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function and their training
programmes and budgets.

The composition of the Audit Committee and the respective
attendances of the committee members are presented as follows:

P £ 45t

1E /D#&l:l

o MAARBREMNUTLZE: ARFE
BRI EE Rt B S EE 3R - O ARR I S EL Al
FHEATRREENTERITRIELRL -
ERZBERERAEERY BAR
AHHEEEFERFBLNRAERK
BEERETE &

o  BEEARREIMNEZHBEN ZMHNEIRR
X BRAER_EZHENBER-

REEE AR BEXZESRTTMAED
B AT SR B B R e
BEE TmRBEIRIR - M ANEERARE
B ERAOME  NARE S R & R
BRETENER BEIEENKEHRIERH M
RETMEINEIREREERERSR
B e

EZZEEMNEAKNREZEEHRESR
U

BHFES

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
4= ZEg5H HE =
Mr. Chan Shu Kin Chairman of the committee 2/2
FoR féf BR 5 A= ZEgXRE

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 2/2
R #9908 5 A BIIFERITESF

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED (retired on 11 September 2015) 11
FR 812 55 A& BT EST (R _E—AFNLA+—HEM)

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 0/0
EEEEE BYUFNITES

The chairman of the Audit Committee since its establishment has been  BEZZ B @I - H X AR ELL -

Mr. Chan Shu Kin.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The analysis of the Auditor's remuneration for the CG Period is
presented as follows:

R =

REEE LR REEIH B 5 25 40
T

Fee amount (HK$'000)

ERA(EBE®TR)

Audit service %8R 75 3,000

Non-audit services * R BRI 2,819
# The non-audit services mainly represent services in connection with a proposed # FEARZBUR TS = 2 45 6 2 5 W B Perfect Reward Limited
acquisition of Perfect Reward Limited, which has been terminated between the BHZRY REAAKEMEFTIR_F—-—RF_A

Group and the vendors on 29 February 2016.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited A2 Hﬁu IERRAR AR

ZHAB TR

TLAEY

Annual Report 2015-16 =T —HE—NFFERE




Corporate Governance Report

TRERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Corporate Governance Committee of the Company was formed
on 26 November 2011 and has adopted specific written terms of
reference in accordance with the provisions set out in the Code which
are available on the website of the Company. The role and function
of the Corporate Governance Committee (revised on 1 April 2016)
include:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the board;

o to review and monitor the training and continual professional
development of Directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

o to review the Company’'s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report;

o to review the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems.
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TEERHRE

For the CG Period, the Corporate Governance Committee held one  RZFE /ﬁHﬂFaEJ u:% é??
physical meeting. The composition of the Corporate Governance 7 —&X g
Committee and the respective attendances of the committee members K E &
are presented as follows:

Member Committee Capacity Attendance

ME EZE25H HE &

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul Chairman of the committee 171
(retired on 11 September 2015)

BR 8772 55 A4 ZEEXF (R_E—HAFNLA+—RHEMT)

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 171

BoR 1l BR S A WY FRITES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 171

RE\I®EE BYERITES

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 0/0

EEREE BUFNTEF

Mr. Poon Wai Kong ED & Chief Financial Officer 11

R NTEERERYBE

The Company is endeavoring to identify and appoint a new chairman AAREL IVEBLEETLEEARZTESN
of the Corporate Governance Committee. ERF-

The summary of the work performed by the Corporate Governance RIEERHM  CEEARZESHITHIE

Committee for the CG Period included: MERE:
. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code . B ARRESFTRIAER

e to review the training and continual professional development of o BAESZREREEABNFIRFE
Directors and senior management BEEER

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited EFT%E/ IERBER AT
Annual Report 2015-16 =T —HE—NFFERE




Corporate Governance Report

TEERHRE

INTERNAL CONTROL

Review of Internal Control System

The Board holds the responsibility for maintaining effective systems
of internal control and for the assessment and management of risk.
Accordingly, a mechanism of inspection and supervision is established
to ensure the shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets are
safeguarded. The Board has authorised the management team to
design, implement and maintain systems of internal control such as
clearly defined job responsibilities of senior management team and
systems relating to investment decision and budgeting.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group’s systems of internal
controls aim for managing potential risks instead of completely
eliminating all risks. Therefore, internal control can only provide
reasonable assurance for achieving the above objectives in compliance
with basic principles under its inherent limitations. Moreover, whether
internal control is effective or not may also vary with the changes in
the internal or external environment or the operating conditions of
the Group. Accordingly, systems of internal controls can only render
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance for the achievement of the
operating objectives.

With the establishment of an independent internal audit function
in recent years, the financial condition, operational control and
compliance control are examined and reviewed according to the risk-
based audit plan approved by the Board. Different audit areas are
assigned according to risk priority. The Internal Audit Department
assists the Board to monitor compliance with rule and regulations
and the effectiveness of the risk management and internal controls
systems. It plays an important role in the Group's internal governance
by performing periodic checking. After completion of an internal
audit, analysis, appraisals, recommendations related to the activities
inspected are delivered to the respective risk holders. The Internal
Audit Department reports to the Chief Executive Officer, Audit
Committee and the Board about the internal audit findings, internal
audit recommendation and the management responses. The Internal
Audit Department will, from time to time, review and follow up the
implementation of internal audit findings and recommendations.

For the CG Period, the Board was not aware of any significant issues
that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy
of the system of internal control of the Group.
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Review of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Functions

The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function, their training programmes
and budget, and was satisfied with the results of the review.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy
reflecting the current practices of the Company for communication
with its shareholders, which is available on the website of the
Company.

The general meeting of the Company provides a platform for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The attendance of
each Director at the general meetings of the Company held during the
CG Period is set out as follows:

BEEARRE

BMENER RMBREIE

EXeABBERZBSHAKE S MK
WERETENER BETEENKR A
BTWREIRELRRERS RMETRA
W ERRTME

HERRZER
AN R B R — B R A A 7B

H
B2 FRZBRBABR - HARAKR
B -

R
k!

ARBZBERAEREREHEEESN
BERZFE -BEFHEREEERBREST
ZARRBBERAREZHFEREINWNT :

Director Board Capacity Attendance
= EEE25H HE =
Mr. Li Zhenjun ED & Chairman 0/0
FIRE LA HITEEREE

Mr. Poon Sum ED & Honorary Chairman 2/2
BREE HITEEREELR

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED & Chief Executive Officer 2/2
mER L WITE EFRITEARE

Mr. Poon Wai Kong ED & Chief Financial Officer 2/2
EERE WITESHRERVEE

Mr. Zaid Latif NED 0/2
Zaid Latif5t 4 FRTES

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 2/2
BRIGIER S A BUFMITES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 1/2
REBILE WY FRITES

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 0/0
EEREE BYFRITES
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting ("EGM")

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call an EGM. Any one or more
members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

There are no provisions under the Articles of Association of the
Company or the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures
for shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings other
than a proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an EGM for any
business specified in such written requisition.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting, unless notice signed by a Member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his/her intention
to propose such person for election as a Director and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be
elected shall have been given to the Company or lodged at the head
office or at the Registration Office provided that the minimum length
of the period, during which such notices are given, shall be at least
7 days. The period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the
date of such meeting.

A shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring director
or recommended by the Directors for election as a Director by validly
lodging the following documents within the period hereinafter
mentioned at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at 19th Floor, 80 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong:—

1. a notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director, which must state the full name of the
person, include the person’s biographical details as required
by rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and be signed by the
shareholder; and

2. anotice in writing signed by that person of his/her willingness to
be elected as a director together with his written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data.

Such documents shall be lodged with the Company's principal place of
business in Hong Kong within the period of 7 days after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting. Upon receipt of such documents,
the Company shall verify the documents and, if the proposal is found
to be in order, publish an announcement and/or issue a supplemental
circular in respect of the proposal in accordance with Rule 13.70 of the
Listing Rules.
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TRERRE

In the case of any general meeting called by at least 10 clear business
days’ or 14 days’ (whichever is the longer) notice in writing, such
documents lodged within the aforesaid period may be received less
than 10 business days prior to the general meeting, the Company
will consider the adjournment of the general meeting in order to
give shareholders at least 10 business days to consider the relevant
information disclosed in the announcement or supplemental circular.

The aforesaid procedures are available on the Company’s website.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company.
The contact details are as follows:

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited
19th Floor,

80 Gloucester Road,

Wan Chai,

Hong Kong

Attn: Company Secretary

Email: enquiries@petroasian.com
Tel No.: 852-2698 6093
Fax No.: 852-3580 7793

Constitutional Documents

During the CG Period, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Acknowledgement of Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial statements

for the financial year under review, the Directors have:

based on a going concern basis;
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J selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

o made judgments and estimates that were prudent, fair and
reasonable.

The statement of the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in detail in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 60 to 61.

On behalf of the Board

Li Zhenjun
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 24 June 2016
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Report of the Directors
EEHE

The Directors submit their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHIC
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year by business and geographical segments is set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion
on the Group's prospects are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 8 and
pages 9 to 18 of the Annual Report respectively. Description of key risk
factors and uncertainties that the Group is facing is provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 9 to 18 of the Annual
Report while the financial risk management of the Group is discussed
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental sustainability.
Our commitment to protect the environment is well reflected by our
continuous efforts in promoting green measures and awareness in
our daily business operations. The Group encourages environmental
protection and promote awareness towards environmental protection
to the employees. The Group adheres to the principle of recycling and
reducing. It implements green office practices such as double-sided
printing and copying, promoting using recycled paper and reducing
energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliance. The Group will review its environmental practices from time
to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of the Group’s businesses to move
towards adhering the 3Rs — Reduce, Recycle and Reuse and enhance
environmental sustainability.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS AND COMMUNITY
SERVICES

The Group supports many charitable community programmes by
making corporate donations and encouraging employee contributions
to a number of charitable organisations. During the reporting period,
the Group’s staff members have represented the Group to take part
in a meaningful charity project. On 13 March 2016, 20 colleagues
represented the Group in the Community Chest's New Territories
Walk 2015/2016, which was organised to raise funds to support 24
member social welfare agencies in providing “Family and Child Welfare
Services”. Our colleagues took part in the route of approximately
4.5km from Viewing Terrace of Tai Po Waterfront Park Promenade to
Plover Cove Road Mini-soccer Pitch.

During the reporting period, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to HK$53,000 (2015: Nil).

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company was not aware of
any non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets. Thus
the Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract and
motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration
package of employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to
the market standard. The Group also understands that it is important
to maintain good relationship with business partners and bank
enterprises to achieve its long-term goals. Accordingly, our senior
management have kept good communication, promptly exchanged
ideas and shared business update with them when appropriate. During
the year under review, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its business partners or bank enterprises.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 62. No interim dividend was paid or
declared in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil). The
Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).
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SHARES ISSUED AND USE OF NET PROCEED

During the reporting period, the Company issued a total of
1,231,668,000 ordinary shares through the placement of new shares
and exercise of warrants, which raised the net proceeds of funding
amounting to HK$176,705,000. Details of movements in shares issued
for the year ended 31 March 2016 are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements. During the reporting period, the
net proceeds raised were used for the prescribed purposes, of which
approximately HK$46,300,000 were used for financing the Group's
money lending business by providing short-term loans to independent
third parties in Hong Kong and approximately HK$45,000,000 were
used as general working capital of the Group. The remaining net
proceeds were unutilised at 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of principal properties held for development and/or sale and for
investment purposes are set out in page 178 of the Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2016, calculated
under Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)
amounted to approximately HK$394,604,000, representing the
amount standing to the credit of the share premium amount after
deduction of accumulated losses. Under section 34 of the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is available
for distribution to shareholders subject to the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company, and no distribution may be
paid to shareholders out of the Company's share premium unless the
Company shall be able to pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in Five Years Financial Summary
on page 179 to 180 of the Annual Report.
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PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During 22 October 2015 to 27 October 2015, a subsidiary of the
Company purchased the Company’'s 45,000,000 ordinary shares at
weighted average market price of HK$0.18 per share under share
award scheme for the purpose for recognising the contributions by
certain employees and to provide them with incentives in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development of the
Group and to attract suitable personnel for further development of
the Group. A total cash outlay of HK$8,055,000, which was also the
aggregate price of the purchased shares, was charged to equity as
treasury shares.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries, purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the
year ended 31 March 2016 and the Company has not redeemed any of
its shares during the year ended 31 March 2016.

SHARE OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

Warrants

On 29 November 2012, it was approved to issue 350,000,000 non-
listed warrants to an external consultant. Each warrant entitles the
holder thereof to subscribe for one new share of the Company at the
subscription price of HK$0.18 at any time from 1 March 2013 to 28
November 2015.

On 7 October 2013, it was approved to enter a placing agreement
with a placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to
place 370,000,000 non-listed warrants at a placing price of HK$0.01
each. On 25 October 2013, a total of 370,000,000 non-listed warrants
were successfully issued to certain independent third parties. Each
warrant entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one new share of
the Company at the subscription price of HK$0.1526 at any time from
25 October 2013 to 24 October 2016.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, no warrants has been
granted or lapsed, but total of 465,000,000 non-listed warrants were
exercised,

Share options

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 24 June 2013, the
shareholders of the Company adopted the new share option scheme
(the "“Share Option Scheme”) which enabled the grant of options to
subscribe up to 460,062,382 shares, representing 10% of the issued
shares of the Company as at the said date.
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The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to acknowledge the contributions made or to be made
by participants to the Group. The Board of Directors may, at its
discretion, offer employees, contracted celebrity, advisor, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint venture partner
of the Company and its subsidiaries (including any director of the
Group), the grant of options to subscribe for shares of the Company.
Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant. The total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of the annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue pursuant to the exercise of all options granted under
the Share Option Scheme was 460,062,382 shares, representing about
6.09% of the issued share capital of the Company.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, no option has been
granted, exercised or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. The
Directors will have the absolute discretion to fix the minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised, and the
performance targets that must be achieved before the options can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the
Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares,
(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in daily
quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) for the five consecutive trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option and (iii) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of offer of the option (which must be a trading day).

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of such
period to be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and
notified to the grantee. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 March 2016, there is no share option outstanding and none
of the Directors, or their spouse or children under the age of 18, had
been granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of
the Company or any of its associated corporations, or had exercised
any such right during the period.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

On 16 October 2008, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme
in which selected employees of the Group, including without limitation
any Executive and Non-executive Director, officer, agent or consultant
(with payroll) of the Group, are entitled to participate in the Share
Award Scheme pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme. The
purposes and objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to recognise
the contributions by certain employees and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.
The maximum number of shares which may be awarded to a selected
employee under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date. The
nominal value of the shares awarded by the Board under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the adoption date.

Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme, the Company
has appointed Finance Trustee Limited as trustee, pursuant to which
existing shares will be purchased under the name of the Company
from the market out of cash contributed by the Group and be held on
behalf of the relevant selected employees until such shares are vested
with the relevant selected employees in accordance with the rules of
the Share Award Scheme. During the year, the Company has purchased
45,000,000 shares from open market, representing 2.32% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date, from the
market at a range from HK$0.177 to HK$0.180 per share.

During the reporting period, a total of 45,000,000 awarded shares
("Awarded Shares”) were granted to selected employees. Details of the
Awarded Shares granted by the Company pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme and outstanding at 31 March 2016 are as follows:—
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Li Zhenjun (appointed on 4 January 2016)

=

. Poon Sum

. Wong Kwok Leung

. Poon Wai Kong

. Hu Dehua (appointed on 24 May 2016)

S

. Zaid Latif’
. Chan Shu Kin?
. Chan Kam Ching, Paul? (retired on 11 September 2015)

S

<

. Cheung Kwan Hung?
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu? (appointed on 11 December 2015)

! Non-executive Director
2 Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with Article 86(3) and Article 87(1) of the Company's
Articles of Association, Mr. Hu Dehua and Mr. Chiu Wai Piu shall hold
office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and Mr. Wong
Kwok Leung, Mr. Chan Shu Kin and Mr. Zaid Latif shall retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All
retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY'’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a Director
of the Company and the Director's connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhenjun, aged 41, is an Executive Director. He was appointed on
4 January 2016. He was appointed as the Chairman of the Company
with effect from 8 January 2016. He graduated from the Zhejiang
University of Technology, the PRC (FREIT/T T KE8) , specialised
in chemical mechanics (/£ TH#4%) . Mr. Li has approximately 20 years
of experience in corporate management of businesses in various areas,
including health products, media, cultural and financial industry. He
is the founder, the chairman of the board of directors and the chief
executive officer of Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Fu Group, which is
principally engaged in internet financing, wealth management, fund
management, investment banking, insurance as well as the other
financial services in the PRC. Mr. Li is responsible for the overall
strategic planning and day-to-day management of Hangzhou Tou
Rong Chang Fu Group. Mr. Li is also one of the founder of #7T
BEEMABR AR (Zhejiang Diantong Information Co., Ltd.*), a
company established in the PRC in 2005, which is principally engaged
in organising arts and cultural activities, design and manufacturing
of souvenirs, media and advertising, where he acted as an executive
director since its incorporation up to October 2015. From 1996 to
1998, Mr. Li acted as the deputy general manager of the Ningbo
office of AIMkFEERKDBMRAA (Hong Tao K Group Co., Ltd.*),
a company which is principally engaged in the development and
manufacturing of bio-pharmaceutical products including Chinese
medicine and health products, and real estate. From 1999 to 2005,
Mr. Li worked as a reporter of “Justice of China (FEIAIE) ", a
publication of the Ministry of Justice, the PRC, and was an officer (=
{£) of the Zhejiang Office of the Ministry of Justice, the PRC. Prior
to establishing Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Fu Group, Mr. Li was also
involved in projects involving mergers, restructuring and mergers and
acquisitions financing of a number of listed companies, including the
private placement of shares by MR S EHERKH BR A F] (Hunan
Corun New Energy Co., Ltd.*), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600478), in 2013, the privatisation of & [El
FHEBEAR QA (China Mobile Games and Entertainment Group
Limited), a company previously listed on NASDAQ, and the major asset
restructuring of B FR IR EIREHZAR 7 B BR A& (Guangdong Dynavolt
Power Technology Co., Ltd.*), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 002684), in 2014, which he acted as financial
consultant.
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Mr. Poon Sum, aged 52, is an Executive Director and one of the co-
founders of the Group. He was the Chairman of the Company and was
subsequently appointed as the Honorary Chairman on 9 May 2012.
Throughout the year, he has been, and still is, primarily responsible for
the overall strategic planning, business development, marketing and
formulation of overall corporate policies of the Group. He has over
26 years of experience in the oil, paints and coatings industry and the
trading of chemicals in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"). Currently, he is an Executive Director, Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Executive Corporate Secretary
of Gold Horn International Enterprises Group Limited (Stock Code:
GHE/P, a company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange, Canada).

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung, aged 58, is an Executive Director. He was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 April 2012
and responsible for the Group’s daily operations, administration and
production management of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC. He
obtained the qualification of LCC-Higher Accounting from London
Chamber of Commerce and diploma of supervisory studies from Hong
Kong Productivity Council. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in
the field of finance and accounting for over 20 years and has obtained
extensive knowledge therein. He joined the Group in September 1997.

Mr. Poon Wai Kong, aged 45, is an Executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Group. He is a member of both the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Certified Practising
Accountant of Australia and Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. He also holds a Master degree in Business Administration
and a Master degree in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong, a Master degree
in Practising Accounting from the Monash University, Australia and a
Bachelor degree in Economics from the University of London, United
Kingdom. He has more than 25 years’ experience in accounting
and financial field. He joined the Group in September 2005. He
was appointed as the Company Secretary for the Company since
September 2006. He was also appointed as an independent non-
executive director of TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited in June 2015
(Stock Code: 515 a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange).
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Mr. Hu Dehua, aged 40, is an Executive Director. He was appointed
on 24 May 2016. He graduated from the University of Shanghai for
Science and Technology, the PRC (B /G T K2 ) with a bachelor
of engineering, specialised in thermal engineering. Mr. Hu also
obtained a master’s degree in engineering from the Zhejiang University,
the PRC (FFEIH/TREE) . Mr. Hu has extensive experience in the
areas of internet, finance and corporate management. From 2008 to
2012, Mr. Hu acted as the R&D director (ff 8 42 E5) of B4 E T %D
AR A a] (Hundsun Technologies Inc.*) (a company listed on the main
board of Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600570)), where he
was responsible for the research and development of bank corporate
service products, technical framework, project implementation and
other management work, leading his team in participating in the
implementation of various banking systems (including SaaS model).
From 2012 to 2015, Mr. Hu acted as the vice president of 1 14 A%
7B MR A7) (Uni-Power Group*), where he was primarily responsible
for the research, development and operation of “cloud financing ( Z &
&) ", a data platform for business credit related information. During
his tenure with Uni-Power Group*, Mr. Hu also led in the establishment
of MINBESERBZRIFHBEMR AT (Hangzhou Xinhehui Network
Technology Co., Ltd.*) (currently known as /&4 E BB H SRR
#ABR 2 A) (Hangzhou Xinhehui Internet Financial Services Co., Ltd.*)),
a member of Uni-Power Group*, where he also served as the legal
representative, the chairman and the chief executive officer from 2014
to 2015 and was in charge of the operation strategy formulation and
daily management of “xinhehui.com (Z &) ”, an internet-financing
platform of P2B model. Since January 2016, Mr. Hu has been the chief
executive officer of A /NI Fh5E2E 5 B 48 & Be AR 75 A BR 2 7] (Hangzhou
Tou Rong Puhua Internet Financial Services Co., Ltd.*), a subsidiary of
NSRS BRI EE AR A A (Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Fu
Financial Services Group Limited*) which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company, where he is responsible for strategic planning and daily
management. #7101 #% Bl 5L 3 B B A8 £ B AR 7% A PR 2 B (Hangzhou Tou
Rong Puhua Internet Financial Services Co., Ltd.*) is primarily engaged
in consumer finance and supply chain financial business in the PRC
under the brand name of “tourongjia (&%) .
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Zaid Latif, aged 42, is a Non-executive Director. He was appointed
on 23 November 2012. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Business
Accounting and Legal Studies from Charles Sturt University, Australia,
and a Diploma of Project Management from Brisbane North Institute
of TAFE, Queensland, Australia. He has extensive experience in various
industries ranging from oil & gas, government, infrastructure, private
equity, property to chartered accounting. Mr. Latif is a director of
Global Equity & Development Group Pty Ltd., which is a boutique
investment advisory firm that offers strategic, origination, risk and
investment consulting services to government state owned enterprises,
corporate and high net worth individuals. Clients are based in Australia
and Middle East and have exposure to the sectors of infrastructure,
mining, commodity trading (oil & gas, coal, iron ore etc.), property and
information technologies.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Shu Kin, aged 61, is an Independent Non-executive Director.
He was appointed on 21 October 2002. He is a certified public
accountant and is a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified
Public Accountants. He is an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a Certified Tax Advisor of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He
has over 39 years of experience in the field of auditing, accounting as
well as financial management. He is the past president of the Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. He is also an independent non-
executive director of PYl Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 498, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Addchance
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3344, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange) in June 2015.
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Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung, aged 64, is an Independent Non-executive
Director. He was appointed on 30 September 2004. He is a member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has many years of
experience in accounting, finance and corporate management and has
over 11 of years of experience in investment banking specialising in
equity/debt fund raising, mergers and acquisitions and corporate and
debt restructuring as well as private financial consultancy work. He
was also an executive director of publicly listed companies undertaking
corporate management, planning and strategies development
functions. Currently, he is an independent non-executive director of
NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 342, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and Great Harvest
Maeta Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3683, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange).

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu, aged 68, is an Independent Non-executive Director.
He was appointed on 11 December 2015. He is a very experienced and
reputable journalist and has over 40 years of experience in journalism.
He has been a reporter, an editor, the main news assignment editor,
the local news assignment editor, the managing editor and the
editorial writer in newspapers and a senior research officer in “One
Country Two Systems Research Institute”. Mr. Chiu has been the
founding treasurer and the second-session chairman of the “Hong
Kong Federation of Journalists”. In 2006, he was elected as the Vice
Secretary-General & Treasurer in the new session of re-election of
committee members of the “Hong Kong Federation of Journalists”;
and he was also elected as the Director-General in 2009. Mr. Chiu
has, for many years, devoted himself wholeheartedly in boosting
cooperation among local journalists, enhancing professional conduct
of journalists and developing the relationship and advocating the
interchange of knowledge between journalists in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. His contribution in this field is highly praised and
recognised. Mr. Chiu served as an independent non-executive director
of Global Strategic Group Limited (Stock Code: 8007, a company
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange) during
the reporting period and resigned the said position on 16 June 2016.
Mr. Chiu currently serves as an independent non-executive director
of Addchance Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3344, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and Gold Tat Group
International Limited (Stock Code: 8266, a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange).
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The Company has received confirmation from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors as regards their independence from the
Company and considers that each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is independence of the Company.

Senior Management

Ms. Tsang Hau Wai, aged 35, is the Financial Controller of the Group.
She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She is also a certified Project Management Professional
of Project Management Institute. She holds a Bachelor degree in
Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to
joining the Company in December 2011, she had more than 12 years'
experience in auditing, accounting and financial field in international
accounting firms and in a listed company on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.

Ms. Liu Yu Qin, aged 48, is the General Manager and Director of
America Archi Colors Group Limited. She joined the Group in April
2007 and is responsible for the sales and marketing of paints products
in Northeast China Market. She has a postgraduate degree from the
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. She has 15 years of experience in
the coating industry in both the PRC and internationally and over 18
years of experience in sales and marketing.

Ms. Lau Wai Wing, Vivian, aged 47, is currently the Chief Marketing
Officer of the Group and the General Manager of Galali of the Group.
She holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from Murdoch
University in Perth Australia. Prior to joining the Group, she worked in
the financial and management fields for over 23 years and held various
positions such as financial controller and marketing for a number
of reputable groups, which include EFEEBEABR AR (Guangnan
Holdings Limited*), 28 A{t AR A 7] (Guangdong Petrochemical
Company Limited*), BERIEBIFE AR A7 (Hong Kong Eastern Hill
International Limited*), B AH & L E X HEE B R AR (Taishan
PetroChina Sales Company Limited*) and ERE K EE AR Q7
(Guangdong Dongchang Group Company Limited*) . She has been
engaged in the imports, re-exports, domestic trading and blending of
fuel oil since 2001, and is very familiar with the domestic fuel market.

The English transliteration of the Chinese name in this report, where indicated, is
included for information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official
English name of such Chinese name.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE

COMPANY OR ANY OF ITS ASSOCIATED

CORPORATIONS

At 31 March 2016, the interests of the Directors and Chief Executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, and any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV
of the securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified
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to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code ﬁi*ﬁﬁﬂg AT RIE MAARE LB FTH
were as follows: R :
Number of Equity Total Total % of
Name of Directors Capacity Nature of Interests Shares Derivative Interest Issued Shares
HERTRHH
EEpg L) BEtE RO#E BRASTETA aEs BEAL
Mr. Li Zhenjun Interest of controlled Corporate Interest 2,000,000,000 - 2,000,000,000 32.168%
corporation (Notes 183)
FRELE REfEERS EERER (ME1R3)
Mr. Poon Sum Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 3) 159,746,453 - 504,125,011 8.108%
BREE BEREFA BAEE (M53)
Founder of Discretionary Trust  Other Interest (Notes 283) 344,378,558 -
RREEFTAMA Hfpis (Hi2R3)
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 3) 116,285 - 116,285 0.002%
BRERLE BEREFA BAEE (M53)
Mr. Poon Wai Kong Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 3) 7,900,000 - 7,900,000 0.127%
BEREE BEREFA BAEE (M53)
Mr. Chan Shu Kin Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 3) 61,500 - 61,500 0.001%
BREBEE BEREEAA BAEE (M53)
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 3) 234,000 - 234,000 0.004%
RigBIEE BEREEAA BAEE (M53)
Notes: W& -
1. These shares are held by Tou Rong Chang Fu (HK) Holding Co., Limited. The issued 1. ZEBROARBRE (B8)ERERDAFE - Rtk
share capital of Tou Rong Chang Fu (HK) Holding Co., Limited is owned as to 100% = (E,ﬁ)hﬁxﬁﬁﬁ’( AME FITRAHR —HRPEK

by #ME RS & AR % E AR A7 (Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Fu Financial
Services Group Limited*), a company established in the PRC with limited liability,
which in turn is owned as to 90% by Mr. Li Zhenjun. On 25 November 2015, an
ordinary resolution was passed at the extraordinary general meeting to approve,
confirm and ratify a subscription agreement, which is dated 31 August 2015 entered
into among the Company, a subscriber (a company indirectly owned as to 90%
by Mr. L) and Mr. Li (as guarantor), to subscribe 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company at the subscription price of HK$0.13 per share (“Subscription”).
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Subscription of 666,668,000 ordinary
shares of the Company was completed. As at 31 March 2016, Mr. Li indirectly held
666,668,000 ordinary shares of the Company, representing 10.72% of issued shares
of the Company. The Subscription of remaining 1,333,332,000 ordinary shares of the
Company was completed on 5 April 2016.

These shares are held by Ever Source Enterprises Limited. The issued share capital of
Ever Source Enterprises Limited is beneficially owned as to 50% by Time Concord
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by
a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sum,
and as to 50% by Guidance Investments Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries
of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sau Tin, the elder brother of Mr. Poon
Sum. Accordingly, Mr. Poon Sum is deemed to be interested in 344,378,558 shares,
representing approximately 5.54% of the shares in issue as at 31 March 2016,
through his shareholding in Ever Source Enterprises Limited.

All interests in shares of the Company are long position.
The English transliteration of the Chinese name in this report, where indicated, is

included for information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official
English name of such Chinese name.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had held any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) or as otherwise notified to the

BREXFmEEN R_F—XRF=A
=t—B ARAEERTIETHAEBHER
ARBHEEAEBEE (EXRFEFLME
fEEBIZEXVER) B EARI A £ - HE AR 0 B HEE
FHARBESRPEGIIFEIS2EREER
ARG (F622E)REARARRAFENERL
i P A2 8% SR IR AR 2 57 B 2R A AN A B K B

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2016, the interest of the shareholders, not being
a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required

to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

RIS IR RE

FERRAVER
RoB-REZA=+—B BELFAD
AEFREE mm%)@k A1 BB R

Bt o B AR IR 78 5 S I B 15 I 5B 336 16 7A TF
BN BRSO ERNT

Number of Equity Total Total % of
Name of Substantial Shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares held Derivative Interest  Issued Shares
HERTROM
TERRHE /LB &t BRME FENROBE RATEIR aER BEAL
Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Fu Interest of Controlled  Corporate Interest (Notes 1&5)  2,000,000,000 - 2,000,000,000 32.168%
Financial Services Group Limited Corporation
MNRRRECRBEEEERAA ZEGEERER EERER (1K)
Tou Rong Chang Fu (HK) Holding Beneficial owner Corporate Interest (Notes 1&5)  2,000,000,000 - 2,000,000,000 32.168%
Co., Limited
BRRRE (B8 BERERAF EREEA EERER (1K)
BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Trustee Other Interest (Notes 2,3,4&5) 344,378,558 - 344,378,558 5.539%
Limited (“BNP Paribas Jersey”) ZHEA HihiEs (H#2 3 4K%5)
Ground Point Limited (“Ground Point”) Interest of Controlled ~ Corporate Interest 344,378,558 - 344,378,558 5.539%
Corporation (Notes 2,3,4&5)
REHEEER E B (M52 3 4]K5)
Red Tiles Limited (“Red Tiles") Interest of Controlled ~ Corporate Interest 344,378,558 - 344,378,558 5.539%
Corporation (Notes 2,3,4&5)
REHEEER E B (M52 3 4]5)
Guidance Investment Limited Interest of Controlled ~ Corporate Interest 344,378,558 - 344,378,558 5.539%
("Guidance”) Corporation (Notes 2,3,4&5)
REHEEER E B (M52 3 4]5)
Time Concord Limited (“Time Concord") Interest of Controlled ~ Corporate Interest 344,378,558 - 344,378,558 5.539%
Corporation (Notes 2,3,4&5)
RS EEER E B (M52 3 4]5)
Ever Source Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner Corporate Interest 344,378,558 - 344,378,558 5.539%
("Ever Source") (Notes 2,3,4&5)
BERERA E B (M52 3 4]5)
Poon Sau Tin Beneficial owner Personal Interest 16,292,453 - 360,671,011 5.801%
ERH ERBEEA [EPN: 3
Founder of Other Interest (Notes 2,3,4&5) 344,378,558
Discretionary Trust
2RETABA Hh s (M2 -3 4k5)
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Notes:

5.

The issued share capital of Tou Rong Chang Fu (HK) Holding Co., Limited is owned
as to 100% by Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Fu Financial Services Group Limited, a
company established in the PRC with limited liability, which in turn is owned as to
90% by Mr. Li Zhenjun. On 25 November 2015, an ordinary resolution was passed
at the extraordinary general meeting to approve, confirm and ratify a subscription
agreement, which is dated 31 August 2015 entered into among the Company,
a subscriber (@ company indirectly owned as to 90% by Mr. L) and Mr. Li (as
guarantor), to subscribe 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the
subscription price of HK$0.13 per share (“Subscription”). During the year ended
31 March 2016, the Subscription of 666,668,000 ordinary shares of the Company
was completed. As at 31 March 2016, Mr. Li indirectly held 666,668,000 ordinary
shares of the Company, representing 10.72% of issued shares of the Company.
The Subscription of remaining 1,333,332,000 ordinary shares of the Company was
completed on 5 April 2016.

All interests of BNP Paribas Jersey, Ground Point, Red Tiles, Guidance, Time Concord
and Ever Source and the other interest of Mr. Poon Sau Tin are duplicated.

BNP Paribas Jersey is deemed to be interested in the shares in the capacity of a
trustee of the two discretionary trusts as mentioned in paragraph 4 below through
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+— B 3 5% 4 B 5 5666,668,0000% A A 7] B

HERARRE RN Z210.72% - BREARRHT
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2. FT A BNP Paribas Jersey - Ground Point:Red Tiles*
Guidance * Time Concord &z Ever Sourcef) & A & & 55
HEENHMESBR — -

3. BNP Paribas Jersey i i LA T £ EL 4% il 89 7% M % 25 JA T 3¢
FABFMRER EETNZTAS DR AEERD

interests of corporations controlled by it as follows: AR &5

Name of Controlled Corporation Name of Controlling Shareholder Percentage Control
REHEEERE ERBRRNEE ZERED
Ground Point BNP Paribas Jersey 100%
Red Tiles BNP Paribas Jersey 100%
Guidance Ground Point 100%
Time Concord Red Tiles 100%
Ever Source Guidance 50%
Ever Source Time Concord 50%
These shares are held by Ever Source. The issued share capital of Ever Source is 4. % % J% 179 EEver Sourcef A © Ever Sourcef) B AT

beneficially owned as to 50% by Time Concord, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of
which are family members of Mr. Poon Sum, and as to 50% by Guidance, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by a discretionary
trust, the beneficiaries of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sau Tin, the elder
brother of Mr. Poon Sum. Accordingly, each of Mr. Poon Sum and Mr. Poon Sau Tin
is deemed to be interested in 344,378,558 shares, which represent approximately
5.54% of the shares in issue as at 31 March 2016, because each of them is the
respective founder of the aforesaid two discretionary trusts which indirectly own
50% beneficial interest in Ever Source respectively.

All interests in the shares of the Company are long position.

Save as disclosed above, there was no person known to the Directors
of the Company, other than a Director of the Company, who as at
31 March 2016 had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register kept
under section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors

EEHE
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's
five largest customers were approximately 98.27% and the sales
attributable to the Group's largest customer were approximately
89.83% of the Group's total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers were approximately 97.18% and the purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier were approximately
82.20% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, there were no transactions, which need
to be disclosed as connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

To the best of the Director’s knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed in this annual report,
none of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in this annual report is a
connected transaction.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its parent company a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the share option scheme are set out in this report and note
30 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into during the reporting period or subsisted at the end of the
reporting period.

PENSION SCHEME RULES

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme ("MPF scheme”) was set up for certain employees in Hong
Kong, in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance. Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of the
employees’ gross earnings with a ceiling of HK$1,000 per month to the
MPF scheme. With effect from 1 June 2012, the ceiling is revised from
HK$1,000 to HK$1,250 per month. With effect from 1 June 2014, the
ceiling is revised from HK$1,250 to HK$1,500 per month. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the MPF Scheme.

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiary are required to participate
in a defined contribution retirement scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The PRC subsidiary contributes 2% to 22% of
the employee payroll to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of
the employees.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable under the above schemes.
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Report of the Directors

EEHE
PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors
for the time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty,
or supposed duty, in their offices, provided that this indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to any of said persons.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the Directors of the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Nonexecutive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Li Zhenjun
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 June 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PETROASIAN ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PetroAsian
Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out
on pages 62 to 177, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2016, and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 June 2016
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Consolidated Income Statement

mellmk

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HBZE_—ZT—R"F=ZA=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —ZET—hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ihg=3 BET T SR T
(Restated)
(&=E=5)
(Note 2(a))
(Mf3E2(a))
Revenue & 5 5,932,235 804,167
Cost of sales S E AR 7 (5,808,056) (801,188)
Gross profit EH 124,179 2,979
Other losses, net Hth 518 - F 58 6 (199,149) (61,339)
Selling and distribution costs $HE KD A 7 (20,164) (3,116)
Administrative expenses THHEX 7 (82,839) (76,962)
Operating loss K e (177,973) (138,438)
Finance income B WA 11 1,354 1,322
Finance costs B & KA 11 (32,779) (14,931)
Share of losses of associates FER B 2 R R B8 19 (21,409) (20,557)
Loss before income tax B ETIS BRI E 1B (230,807) (172,604)
Income tax credit BT 12 159 5,332
Loss for the year FREE (230,648) (167,272)
Loss for the year attributable to: AT AT EEFEAES:

Owners of the Company EAN/NESIEZF SN (227,059) (148,305)
Non-controlling interests JE4ZE I 25 (3,589) (18,967)
(230,648) (167,272)

Loss per share (HK cents) R EE OB 13
Basic - (4.19) (3.13)
Diluted B (4.19) (3.13)

The notes on pages 70 to 177 are an integral part of these H70HZE177EZMEAZERAMBREE
consolidated financial statements. B2 —#Bn o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e ZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HEZT— X "F=A=+—HIEFE

2016 2015
—E-KRF —EREF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5E BET T BT
Loss for the year FREE (230,648) (167,272)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hih2m Uk, (E51E) ¢
Items that may be reclassified PEE AR ERT DB R
subsequently to profit or loss: Em o HE -
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations N =R (4,193) (3,164)
Reclassification of exchange BAEHE—HHEQR
reserve upon deemed i E T e H S
disposal of a subsidiary 34 (8,642) -
Changes in fair value of AHEEREZATFE
available-for-sale investments bk 21(a) (23,114) (26,667)
Share of exchange reserve of FE(R — B ARl A
an associate i 19 (18) 109
(35,967) (29,722)
Total comprehensive loss FATHEELRE
for the year (266,615) (196,994)
Total comprehensive loss ITATEEEE
attributable to: EE R
Owners of the Company FiN/NETE ¥ =N (257,956) (178,122)
Non-controlling interests JEVE HI 1 HE 2 (8,659) (18,872)
(266,615) (196,994)

The notes on pages 70 to 177 are an integral part of these H70HZE177EZMEAZEHRAMBREE
consolidated financial statements. B2 —H#B1n o “‘
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR AR

As at 31 March 2016 RZZT—XRF=A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—RF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BET T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB R& 15 87,298 159,952
Investment properties wEYE 16 108,349 23,862
Goodwill [l 17 16,040 16,711
Other intangible assets HfhmpEE 18 125,461 231,095
Interests in associates N AN - 3 19 - 21,427
Prepayments, deposits and BRNFIE - ZE Kk
other receivables H i B W IE 20 31,538 44,097
Other financial assets Hihe@MEE 21 24,533 47,647
393,219 544,791
Current assets REEE
Inventories " 22 2,626 7,180
Trade receivables “ 5 IE 23 348,020 313,606
Loans receivable JEUWE X 24 19,913 29,159
Prepayments, deposits and ERRIE -Fek
other receivables H A e Y 3R IE 20 102,676 48,537
Derivative financial assets PTEemMEE 25 510 -
Other financial assets HEthemERE 21 147 132
Cash and bank balances [e RIRITHES 26 208,168 212,766
682,060 611,380
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables 2 5 N IR 27 274,924 295,061
Accruals and other payables JE 5T R I8 K B B 7 3R IE 28 49,754 46,802
Derivative financial liabilities mEEmasE 25 - 26,742
Bank borrowings RITIEE 29 = 46,624
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTS T B (& 211 -
324,889 415,229
Net current assets RBEESE 357,171 196,151
Total assets less current BEERARBDERE
liabilities 750,390 740,942
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR AR

As at 31 March 2016 RZZ—XF=A=+—H

2016 2015
—EB-—AEF —ET-hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ihg=3 BET T SR T
Capital and reserves B R #E
Share capital N 30 62,174 49,857
Reserves f#%E 322,258 415,826
Equity attributable to owners of RAFEE AEMLZER
the Company 384,432 465,683
Non-controlling interests eI MR (3,096) 9,133
Total equity i A 381,336 474,816
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAR 32 2,224 2,797
Bonds BE5 33 366,830 263,329
369,054 266,126
750,390 740,942

The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 177 were HF62EBZEI177EMEZGEMEBRERERN-Z
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June —~FRNAZTHABEESSHIE REET

2016 and are signed on its behalf by: B WA TNINEERERES:
Poon Sum Poon Wai Kong
& & E R
Director Director
= EF

The notes on pages 70 to 177 are an integral part of these SH70HZE177EZMEAZEHRAMBREE
consolidated financial statements. B2 —#Bn o “‘
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

S A RE 3L 4ss R &
mefEmBERK
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HBZE_ZT—R"F=ZA=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRREAARS
Share-
based Non-
Share Share payment Other  Exchange Retained controlling Total
Capital premium reserve reserves reserve earnings Total interests equity
BB A2 FEHM

Bx  BGER  RERE  REEE  EXRE  REEN #E B RE4E
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKEO00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000
BT EMTn  EMTn ENTn ENTn ENTn ENTn ERTn ERTR

(Note)
(W)

At 1 April 2014 WZZ-MEMA-A 46,006 489,462 71275 (193,371) 34,873 123,564 577,809 28,005 605,814
Comprehensive loss 2EER

Loss for the year EhEE - - - - S (48305 (148305 (18%7) (16727
Other comprehensive (loss)/income £t 27 (#18) /%
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBELL

translation of foreign operations ERER - - - - (3.259) - (3.259) 95 (3,164)
Change in fair value of AHHEREL

available-for-sale investments ATEEY - - - (26,667) - - (26,667) - (26,667)
Share of exchange reserve of [l 2N

an associate EXRE - - - - 109 - 109 - 109
Total other comprehensive Efb2E (F8)/ WHLE

(loss)/income - - - (26,667) (3,150) - (29,817) 9 (29,722)
Total comprehensive loss for the year £R2EHELE - - - (26,667) (3,150) (148,305) (178,122) (18,872) (196,994)
Transactions with owners REEAZRS
Exercise of share options (Note 31) T BRE (Fa31) 1,501 39,024 (10,800) - - - 29,725 - 29,725
Exercise of non-listed warrants (Note 31) 73 F 2R EZ

(M31) 2350 46,641 (12,720) - - - 36,271 - 36271
Lapse of share options (Note 31) SBREAR (HH31) - - (3,600) - - 3,600 - - -
Lapse of non-listed warrants (Note 31) ~ 3F - RARVERE K
(M331) - - (24,294) - - 24,294 - - -

Total transactions with owners REEAZRAHE 3,851 85,665 (51,414) - - 27,894 65,99 - 65,99
At 31 March 2015 RZE-REZfA=1-H 49,857 575,127 25,861 (220,038) 31,723 3,153 465,683 9,133 474,816

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AR 2pAERIEA B IR A F)
Annual Report 2015-16 —Z—RE—NFFEHRE




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

i A5 3L 454 Fh
e EmEEIFRR
For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HEZT— A "F=A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREARE
Share- Retained
based earnings/ Non-
Share Treasury Share  payment Other  Exchange (accumulated controlling Total
Capital shares  premium reserve reserves reserve losses) Total interests equity
R A2 RERH/ FREK

B EERR RHEE  RARE  REBE  EXER  (RHER) £ BE  BnAR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BTn  EWTn  B%TR BETn  EMTn  AWTx  B%Th BETn EMTn ERTR

(Note)
(W)
At 1 April 2015 R-E-LERA-R 49,857 - 515,121 25,861 (220,038) 317123 3,153 465,683 9133 474,816
Comprehensive loss WEE T T e e
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (1059 (227,059) (3589 (230,648)
Other comprehensive (lossincome &2 (%) /4 T T T T ToTom men T
Exchange differences arising on BEENREEL
translation of foreign operations EXZE - - - - - 877 - 877 (5,070) (4,193)
Redlassification of exchange reserve RALE-RNELR
upon deemed disposal of a subsidiary ~ MEHABER HE - - - - - (8,642) - (8,642) - (8,642)
Change in fair value of AEHEREL
avalable-for-sale investments LTEEY - - - - (23,114) - - (23,114) - (23114)
Share of exchange reserve of ElE-FRELT
an associate EifE - - - - - (18) = (18) = (18)
Total other comprehensive Rt2E (58) /WHEE
(loss)/income - - - - (23,114) (7.783) - (30,897) (5,070) (35,967)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZEFREE - - - - (23,114) (1783)  (227,059)  (257,956) (8659)  (266,615)
Transactions with owners sEEAZRR T T T T T e e
Repurchase of ordinary shares under ~ RETR ) £E5E
share award scheme (Note 31(b)) BOERR (HE310) - (8,055) - - - - - (8,055) - (8,055)
Vesting of shares of share award R &R 8 ROR T
scheme (Note 31(b)) (HsE31(0)) - 2,685 - 5370 - - - 8,055 - 8,055
Deemed disposal of  subsidiary BALE-BHBAR
(Note 34) (H3i34) - - - - - - - - (2,340) (2,340)
Placement of new shares (Note 30) &R (H3E30) 1,667 - 88,900 - - - - 96,567 - 96,567
Exercise of non-listed warrants (Note 31) 1743 LA
(K1) 4,650 - 100,279 (24,791) - - - 80,138 - 80,138
Dividend payable to JER AR BRR S
non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - (1,230) (1,230)
Total transactions with owners BEEAZRF 08 12317 (5370) 189,179 (19.421) - - - 176,705 (3570) 173135
At 31 March 2016 R=E-REZA=1-A 62,174 (5,370) 764,306 6,440 (243,152) 23,940 (223,906) 384,432 (3,096) 381,336
Note: B 5

Other reserves mainly represent the difference of approximately a debit of HK$221,862,000 EM#EHEEEEAARMNBRARREZEHNEERS (X
(2015: HK$221,862,000) between the amounts paid or received from transactions related ER GV GERRERZMBRE 2 251 BBl
to the changes of shareholdings in subsidiaries without the loss of control and the non- B REEmkER PSR REER ZE HAEBK
controlling interests being acquired or disposed of. Other reserves also comprise capital 75 #6221,862,0007T ( —F — R4 : #1221,862,0007T ) °
contributions from substantial shareholders, investment valuation reserve, merger reserve and HiEENREETEZRRALE RESHEE AHEER
statutory reserve of approximately a credit of HK$5,450,000 (2015: HK$5,450,000), a debit A& i + 2 Bl 40 /& it 85 7 %55,450,000 (=2 — A & ¢
of HK$30,224,000 (2015: HK$7,110,000), a credit of HK$3,248,000 (2015: HK$3,248,000)  #%55,450,0007T) * & 7% # #30,224,0007T (= — R 5 ¢
and a credit of HK$236,000 (2015: HK$236,000) respectively. 751#£7,110,0007T) - # BRI 63,248,000 (=T —HEF

#53,248,0007T ) K it iR B #5236,0000T ( = F — R F B

236,0007T) °

The notes on pages 70 to 177 are an integral part of these H70BZEF177B2WAAZSEAMBIHRE
consolidated financial statements. B2 —2me

TTAEs
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HBZE_—ZT—R"F=ZA=+—HIFE

2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ihg=3 BET T R IT
Cash flows from RELELTH2EHERE
operating activities
Loss before income tax B ETIS BRI E 18 (230,807) (172,604)
Adjustments for: R
Finance income A WA (1,354) (1,322)
Finance costs B & R A 32,779 14,931
Share of losses of associates e B2 R R E 1B 21,409 20,557
Depreciation and amortisation e K g 7 11,791 17,330
Waiver of trade payables R EHEMNRE 6 (3,411) -
Impairment losses 2 5 WG IB R EE 1R
of trade receivables 6 9,138 -
Impairment losses of prepayments, F&fI I\ & &
deposits and other receivables H A fE RIA
AR 6 6,788 32,412
Impairment losses of property, IERN =0
plant and equipment REBEREERE 6 50,205 26,939
Impairment loss of investment KEYEREERE
properties 6 11,525 -
Impairment losses of other HihmpaErpEEs
intangible assets 6 94,881 6,119
Inventories written off METFE 6 3,377 -
Loss on deemed disposal of RAELE—BWBAR
a subsidiary 34 9,789 -
(Gains)/losses on disposal of HEWE BELREZ
property, plant and equipment (Wz) EE 6 (89) 55
Gain on disposal of HE—BAHEEREZ
an available-for-sale investment &= 6 - (107)
Losses/(gains) from changes MESMTAERAFE
in fair value of derivative BE)rEiB, (YEs)
financial instruments 6 5,786 (4,479)
(Gains)/losses from changes FHIEEEHRERNTE
in fair value of held-for-trading BE)r (W), B8
investments 6 (15) 30
Share-based payments ERERE 2 ARG
in respect of consultation fees Stz 3E 7 3,943 6,357
Operating cash flows before LEEREHRIZ
movements in working capital KERERE 25,735 (53,782)
Decrease in inventories FER D 498 5,491
Increase in trade receivables & 5 FE W IE L N (46,259) (199,961)
Increase in prepayments, TERRIE - He REMER
deposits and other receivables FRIEE N (54,808) (55,438)
Decrease/(increase) in loans receivable fEU E FR A (3 0) 9,246 (29,159)
Decrease in derivative mEeRBaERY  FE
financial liabilities, net (33,038) (6,099)
! (Decrease)/increase in trade payables & 5 &I CFi ) 1N (15,215) 166,413
. Increase/(decrease) in accruals and  FE&T 70 IE N H b fE < 718
L; other payables #an CRd) 10,951 (6,075)
llg Cash used in operations REEBAZRS (102,890) (178,610)
q Hong Kong profits tax refund BEFGSHEB - 557
/ \ ‘ Net cash used in
i () 0o " operating activities RETBHFAZRESTFE (102,890) (178,053)
(1= it
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERTMER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HEZT— X "F=A=+—HIEFE

2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—RF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT T
Cash flows from REREZHZRERE
investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of HEMHEEREZ
available-for-sale investments F1S 3038 - 5,113
Purchase of property, BEWME WE MK
plant and equipment (6,518) (6,572)
Purchase of investment properties B EIR&EWE (97,010) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE BREE&E
property, plant and equipment FT1§ %A 89 37
Interest received 2 U F &8 1,354 1,322
Decrease/(increase) in restricted BEFIRITHER
bank deposits A () 46,980 (16,947)
Cash outflow from deemed HAELE—HHBARZ
disposal of a subsidiary Bemd 34 (1,633) -
Net cash used in REZBFAZESTE
investing activities (56,738) (17,047)
Cash flows from REMETH2EHESRE
financing activities
Proceeds from exercise of TR IR RIS A
share options 30(c) - 29,725
Proceeds from exercise of TR IE LM R IEE
non-listed warrants Fris k18 30(d) 80,138 36,271
Net proceeds from placement of Bic & AR 0 BT 15 30 IBJF 58
new shares 30(b) 96,567 -
Net proceeds from issuance of bonds %1715 % FT 15 B F 58 108,184 244,360
Additional bank borrowings BINRITIEE 34,488 129,921
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITEE (81,112) (132,272)
Interest paid BfFE (37,462) (48,538)
Net cash generated from RETHREZ2RESFH
financing activities 200,803 259,467
Net increase in cash and ReRBEELEEER
cash equivalents 3N FEE 41,175 64,367
Cash and cash equivalents FYERSRESEEER
at beginning of the year 165,786 104,632
Effect of foreign exchange IEERSBEBH X
rate changes 1,207 (3,213)
Cash and cash equivalents FREeREEEEER
at end of the year 26 208,168 165,786

The notes on pages 70 to 177 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

1

(a)

GENERAL INFORMATION

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands and 19th Floor, 80 Gloucester Road, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong, respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are trading of commodities,
the exploitation and sale of crude oil, sale of chemical products,
provision of exploration drilling services, property investment,
money lending business and brokerage of securities.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by revaluation of certain available-for-
sale investments, held-for-trading investments and derivative
financial assets and liabilities, which are carried at fair value.
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(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(i)  Changes in presentation of the consolidated income
statement

In previous years, the Group presented an analysis of
expenses recognised in consolidated income statement
using a classification based on their nature.

During the year, the Board of the Directors has performed
a review of the content and presentation of the financial
statements to ensure compliance with relevant accounting
standards as well as comparable to those of the other
market participants within the same industry and the
business development and operation of the Group. In
view of the Group's results of operations mainly driven
by the commodity trading segment in the current year
and place less focus on the exploitation of crude oil, the
Board of Directors considered that it is appropriate to
adopt an analysis of expenses recognised in consolidated
income statement using a classification based on their
function which would be more relevant to the Group's
circumstances and for the users of the Group’s financial
statements.

The changes in presentation have been adopted
retrospectively, and certain corporate figures have
been restated. The changes in the presentation of the
consolidated income statement did not have any impact
of the Group's loss for the year or the calculation of the
Group’s loss per share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTBEEE @)

(b) EFfBRRERBREER 2

(b) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(i)  New amendments to standards effective for annual () HR=-F-—FZFNF—HHEEF
periods beginning on 1 April 2015: BRI EMZER ZHIETE
Amendments to Defined benefit plans: BEQIENE19% REBFE:

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee contributions (Z2——F)z EEHH
EHE
Amendment to HKFRSs  Annual improvements EANBRELE . —2-55F%
2010-2012 cycle EHES ZE-CEEN
ZEEYE
Amendment to HKFRSs  Annual improvements EEYMBASRA Z5——F%
2011-2013 cycle EHES —T-=FBH
ZEEME
The adoption of the new amendments to standards did MER 2 FER] AR AR E
not have any material impact on the preparation of the EiRE P BRRTEFMENY
Group’s consolidated financial statements. Zo
(i) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) (i) FEELRAFEL (F622F)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and
Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) come into operation during the financial year, as a
result, there are changes to presentation and disclosures
of certain information in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
trE B RS ERR MR
2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHEEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
EHBERBBEERN B (2)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (b)
(Continued)

(iii) AL [ R E LR i K 1B
RZHERRER ZEETE

(iii) New standards and amendments to standards have
been issued but are not effective and have not been

early adopted

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after
AT BE
ZERBZ
FEHBENR

Amendment to HKAS 1
BB G EREIRZIBFIR

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38
ER G ERE 165 &
BB G ERIE38H 2B A

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 41
BAEGHENEI165 R

BB GEERIFEARE 2B

Amendment to HKAS 27

BRGERE27HR BT AR

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
BB B mEERE 105
BBMBmELRE125 R
BB G ERIFE28% 28] A

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

BB RS AERE 1050 &
BB G EBIE28% 2 EFT A

Disclosure initiative

BKETE

Clarification of acceptable methods
of depreciation and amortisation

AREZFEREHET N RS

Agriculture: Bearer plants

B EEEEY

Equity method in separate financial
statements

B BmROERE

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception
RERE ERAHHIIN

Sales or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associates or joint venture

REEEEBENRILEERA
ZEMEEHESIFRA

1 January 2016
—ZT-R"¥—H—H

1 January 2016

—E—RF—A—H

1 January 2016

—RNE—A—H

A

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

—E-RF—HA—H

1 January 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTBEEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (b) EfHERBPEER ST (&)
(Continued)

(i) New standards and amendments to standards have (i) EHEMGEERELR HRIEE
been issued but are not effective and have not been R Z FERRER Z 55T &
early adopted (Continued) (#&)

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after

AT A
ZERBZ
FEHBEXR
Amendment to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of 1 January 2016
interests in joint operations
BEPBMEENENR BTN KRBHSEERR 2 S EE —E-XR¥—-H—H
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
RN B HE LB SHMIE —E-NF—A—H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 January 2016
BET B ME LR E145% EERIERE —E-XR¥—-H—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with 1 January 2018
customers
RN B ImELRIFE155 BEF&OWR —E-NF—-HA—H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
RN BHmELRBIFE 165 HE —E-hE—-HA—H
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements 1 January 2016
2012-2014 cycle
BEPBMEER ZEBITAR TECZFET-FAR —E-XR¥—H—H
FED#E
The Group is assessing the impacts of these new standards RNEBIFAT R SMER RE
and amendments to standards and will apply them once BMBRT AN 2 5228 - IS F A 3RS N
they are effective. VAFER] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries

(i)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations.
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement.
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The consideration

Identifiable assets

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 FTESHBEHME (&)

(c) Subsidiaries (Continued) () MIBATR (&
(i)  Consolidation (Continued) (i) #H& &)
(a)  Business combinations (Continued) (a) HFEEH#)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in the consolidated income
statement or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group's
accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR

2 FTESHBEHME (&)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)  Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the
owners in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are
also recorded in equity.

Disposals of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in the
consolidated income statement. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR AL

(9]

(d)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
(ii)  Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net
assets including goodwill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in an associate includes goodwill identified
on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to the consolidated income statement where
appropriate.
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(d)

(e)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of loss in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group's financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in an associate. Unrealised losses
are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in an associate are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker (“CODM"). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive directors of the Company
that makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The Company's
functional currency is United States dollars (“US$") and
since the Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, the Board of Directors considered that
it is more appropriate to adopt HK$ as the Group’s and the
Company's presentation currency in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “Other losses, net”.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security and other changes in
the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in
consolidated income statement, and other changes in
carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available-for-sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that consolidated statement of
financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Exchange translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FTESTTBERME @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (f) SHEERE @
(iv) Disposal of foreign operation (iv) HEBH)FEH

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal RHEEEIER (AHEAREE
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or R—IBBINEEH 2 H i - p
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that REXEBEBIINEBKRN B AR
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of EHENEE P RAEBEEE
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign INETEH A & (b3 R H
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant HE P REEEBEEINE
influence over an associate that includes a foreign BHBEANRBEAFENND
operation), all of the currency translation differences W ARG A AELZE
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation BHA MR EZ RN EER
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified EEWENOBERARER

to the consolidated income statement.

(g) Property, plant and equipment (9) ¥ BERRZE
Property, plant and equipment, comprises mainly plant and ME - BEREZETZEERE L%
machinery, furniture, fixture and equipment, motor vehicles, oil BRE KERRH AB HHEE
properties (Note 2(h)) and construction-in-progress, is stated (MfEE2(h)) RAEE T2 - W £ AR
at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes BITEYR -BENABEWEZER
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the BEEELZRAE-
items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount EEIEE B2 RREBER @I BERA
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it AEBE MBMIEE KA EFTE
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the B BEEm AT gt AEERBEANS
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be WRABLEE (WEA) - WERBH
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is ZIREAER LR - PTE S RE
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to BHYREES 2 WBHRARGE R
the consolidated income statement during the financial period in AE ]S

which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation, other than oil properties, is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Plant and machinery 5-11 years

Furniture, fixture and 3-11 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 4-8 years

Construction-in-progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction of
buildings, the costs of plant and machinery, installation, testing
and other direct costs. No depreciation is made on construction-
in-progress until the relevant assets are completed and ready for
intended use. When the assets concerned are brought into use,
the costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(k)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“Other losses, net” in the consolidated income statement.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AP 2paERIEA B R A F)
Annual Report 2015-16 —Z—H&E—NFEERE

(9)

e ISR R MR

FESTTHERE (&)

ME- -BERKRE @)

FE (RHEERIN BTG ATE
RERABERETE A ERAD #
EHRHBREER:

5% 5 B 25 5-114F
RA -HEBHZE 3-114F
RE 4-8%

ERETRELEERAGREZERT
BE MR AR BREEEE
FHA BB R RE AIE KR
REMBEEKAR - ERTREY TELT
E BEZEMEETKRYLAIERERSE
RIE-BEHEEERAERR KAHK
BEREVE BELRE LAREL
SRk 2 BURATE

REBREMRB GBI BEERREE
NEEREH WHEBEE BN MMELH
o

HWEEREERREMGFTTRE SR
B YRR ZEEZ REERREER
YWm e s (M) -

H &2 Was BB Ty B B L BT 5UR
HEREEEEE YREEKRERATE
fb 518 - JF R HERR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 FTESHBEHME (&)

(h) Oil properties (h) HHEE

(i)  Exploration and evaluation (i) EBHERFE
Oil exploration and evaluation expenditures are accounted BaHR R EAEZ IERA K
for using the “successful efforts” method of accounting. Rl EEANE - KA EEES
Costs are accumulated on a field-by-field basis. Geological Z EAERGT o 1B S IRYDIR AR
and geophysical costs are expensed as incurred. Costs REERIERX - BZEEERF R
directly associated with an exploration well, and BVERFI M E R E WA AR 2
exploration and property leasehold acquisition costs, are RAGRERL  EERBERE
capitalised until the determination of reserves is evaluated. VEHRHE A LE - IS E BRI EEE
If it is determined that commercial discovery has not been BNEEER AZERAE 8
achieved, these costs are charged to expense. AR
Capitalisation is made within property, plant and BEIZH 2 EEEYE  BE LR
equipment or intangible assets according to the nature of HRELEERETERL
the expenditure.
Once commercial reserves are found, exploration and —BERPERER - BRLTM
evaluation assets are tested for impairment and transferred BESERBEANR WTEEEER
to development tangible and intangible assets. No B REERE - RRENR G4 8
depreciation and/or amortisation is charged during the M WS HBRITE RS-
exploration and evaluation phase.

(i) Development assets (i) BREEZE
Expenditure on the construction, installation or completion BR RN TR EFEE
of infrastructure facilities such as platforms, pipelines and EERmAREBEREEAEEE
the drilling of commercially proven development wells, is EEZEREF RS BBREZ
capitalised within property, plant and equipment and other BERZMERDE BB MR EIN
intangible assets according to nature. When development REMEREEFRTER - BH
is completed on a specific field, it is transferred to oil TERER 2 B RTHR - ASEEE
properties or intangible assets. No depreciation and/or HKHEENABEEE-RERDY
amortisation is charged during the development phase. M WS HBRITER, S -
Oil properties (iii) FHEE

Qil properties are aggregated exploration and evaluation
tangible assets, and development expenditures associated
with the production of proved reserves.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Oil properties (Continued)

(iv) Depreciation/amortisation

(v)

Oil properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses. The
successful efforts method of accounting is used for oil
properties. Under this method, all costs for development
wells, support equipment and facilities, and acquired
proven mineral interests in oil properties are capitalised.
Proven oil reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil
which geological and engineering data demonstrate with
reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from
known reservoirs under existing economic and operating
conditions, i.e., prices and costs as of the date the estimate
is made. Prices include consideration of changes in existing
prices provided only by contractual arrangements, but not
on escalations based upon future conditions.

Depletion, depreciation and amortisation of capitalised
costs of oil properties is calculated on the unit-of-
production basis over the total proven and probable
reserves of the relevant area. The unit-of-production
rate for depletion, depreciation and amortisation of oil
properties takes into account the expenditure incurred
to date, together with projected future development
expenditure and the volume of oil produced in the current
year.

Impairment - exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment
when reclassified to development assets, or whenever facts
and circumstances indicate impairment. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the exploration
and evaluation assets’ carrying amount exceeds their
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of the exploration and evaluation assets’ fair value less
costs of disposal and their value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, the exploration and evaluation
assets subject to testing are grouped with existing cash-
generating units of production fields that are located in the
same geographical region.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

(h)

()

()]

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Oil properties (Continued)

(vi) Impairment — development assets, oil properties and
plant and machineries

Development assets, oil properties and plant and
machineries are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of investment properties over the shorter of the term of
the lease and 50 years, using the straight-line method.

Intangible assets
(i)  Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of consideration transferred over the Group's
interest in net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value
of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment
level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Exploitation licences

Exploitation licences acquired are shown at historical cost
and have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
unit-of-production method. The units of exploitation rights
are reviewed annually in accordance with the production
plans of the Group and the proved and probable reserves
of the crude oil.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The
customer relations have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method of ten years over
the expected life of the customer relationship.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

(k)

)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill
— are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.

Financial assets
(i)  Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: held-for-trading investments,
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification

loans and

of its financial assets at initial recognition.
(@)  Held-for-trading investments

Held-for-trading investments are financial assets
held-for-trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held-for-trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTTHEEE @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued) () EREE @
(i)  Classification (Continued) (i) HHEH)
(b)  Loans and receivables b) EHREKTE

(c)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's
loans and receivables comprise “Trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables” (Note 2(p)), “Loans
receivable” (Note 2(p)) and “Cash and bank
balances” (Note 2(q)) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other categories.
They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 FTESHBEHE (@)

(I) Financial assets (Continued) ) =WMEE @
(i)  Recognition and measurement (i) EERFE

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Held-for-trading investments are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial investments and financial assets held-for-trading
investments are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the held-for-trading investments are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “Other losses,
net” in the period in which they arise. Dividend income
from held-for-trading investments is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other income
when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
income statement as “Other losses, net”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other income
when the Group's right to receive payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the Company or the Counterparty.

(m) Impairment of financial assets
(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AP 2p&ERIEAR B R A F)
Annual Report 2015-16 —Z—H&E—NFEERE

e SRR MR

2 FTESHBEHE (&)

() £€MEE (&

(iii) HE#HZ@MTA

EREENBERERERLA
WITZRENEHDERZERR
RRFEEEFELRKERE
ERFEREAGER TAEE mE
MEFRANEERBRANZR-
ERERTTT 2 RS KRR
KEMTE  MAERSEBBRRED
g ARBRE F I HBEED
BEBRENIRER - BWARBE
BERAN -

(m) ERMEERE

(i)

BEHERT IR EE

AEBREHREHRYE @R H—
HEREESTFERENTE
ERETHE-EHEEERER
BRAZHEEAVIHERBER
BAE-BXZEEMN([BLXSE
1) BRFBRREHHAEG
ARETHEERREEREE
M ARRREREEZER -
AR ZEAEREERRBER
BEREREL IR ERE-

WENERRRE  BREBAL—
MEBABLEEVHRE B
SHREEFNEIAE  BEHAR
ARERERETHEMMBEMR-
BRI BENERBREFRRE
TRERAFTEMNRD - PIERRR
2B Z sk HE R N EREN
R EE -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-
to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument'’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating),
the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement. Any
subsequent events or evidence proved that the impaired
amount cannot be recoverable, it was written off and
derecognised from the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. Assets and liabilities are classified as
current if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise,
they are classified as non-current.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
derivatives are presented in the consolidated income statement
within “Other losses, net” in the period in which they arise.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade receivables, deposits, other receivables and
loans receivable

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in
the ordinary course of business, If collection/realisation of trade
receivables, deposits, other receivables and loans receivable is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables, deposits, other receivables and loans receivable
are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

(a)

(r)

(s)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and bank balances include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management and often fluctuate from being
positive to overdraft. In the consolidated statement of financial
position, bank overdrafts are shown within bank borrowings in
current liabilities.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares, are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables, accruals and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables, accruals and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
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(u)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expense and included
in finance costs in consolidated income statement in the year in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred

tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(i)

(ii)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date in the countries where the Group
and an associate operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FTESHBEHME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) BVARIESEFRES ()

(v) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

EEFEH (@)

(iij) Deferred income tax (Continued) (ii)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally, the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the associate’s undistributed profit
is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and an associate only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group maintains a number of defined contribution plans in
the countries in which it operates, the assets of the retirement
benefit are generally held in separate trustees-administered
funds. The retirement plans are generally funded by payments
from employees and by the Group.

(i)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AR 2paERIEARE R A F)
Annual Report 2015-16 —Z—RAE—NFHFEHE

2 FTESHBEHE (@)

(v) BDEARIEFEFESH (&)

(iii) 7

ERABAEHIEE ERAAK
HEEEHZAERBIMITE
ARBELEHBHREEMAER
Rl — B % ERT B Bk
TRERNEBBR ZAERE
B MAR AR FEEESE
HER  REMSHEERBER
G-

(w) EBIREFRRAE

AEBEELLEEBRAERTIREZ A
FEHRKE B RARBHNEE —RAR
AR ZBIESHB B INETE—
RAEERAREFERONRES -

(i)

EELEMN

RERFFER -—EEZEF
g AEEREZ S EEN
HERT —EBLNEE - WEESR
BERABENMARBE N AR
EEHE A BEeEE RERE
M AREEYEEFREEREX
M — TRtk

AEEIZRH - BHk 5 BEER
AHFIMEBRESFAIHRK-—B
SR REBEBEE SR
B EHFISRERAERR
X -FANHEAERLEE
AR 3R 3R 3RS R 2R A SRE1R
AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

(ii) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(x) Share-based payment transactions

(i)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees or suppliers as consideration for
equity instruments (options or warrants) of the Group. The
fair value of the employee or suppliers services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options or warrants
granted:

J including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options or
warrants that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees or suppliers
may provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the
purposes of recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options or warrants that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing performance
and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

When the options or warrants are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.

Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair
value of employee services received, measured by reference
to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the
Company'’s financial statements.
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(y)

(2)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions, including those arising from the contractual obligation
specified in the service concession arrangement to maintain
or restore the infrastructure before it is handed over to the
granter, are measured at the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect
is material).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group's activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement.
Revenue from sale of crude oil, commodities and chemical
products is recognised when the goods are delivered and title has
passed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

(2)

(aa)

B FE R AR Y

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the outcome of a service contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue from a fixed price service contract is recognised
on the percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the value of work carried out during the period. When the
outcome of a service contract cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Revenue from rental income from investment properties is
recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Revenue from money lending and interest
income is recognised using the effective interest method. When
a loan or receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.
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(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to economically hedge certain risk exposures. The
financial instruments held by the Group as at 31 March 2016
and 2015 are set out as follows:

(a)

e SRR MR

MR RREE
MBEREZ

AEBEMEBTDAET SRR (BF
SNEERR A TFEFERE RERF
KRB RERRR)  EERRETEE
CREBRELEG RS AEBMHELE
ERREETEEPRES TSN TH
AR Z WK AL B MRS
ROBETRFE - REEHATESR
TAGELE FYTFERNE TR -
AEER-ZZT—R"ER_FT—RAF=A
—t+—HABEZeRMIAHIMT

2016 2015
—E-KRF —EREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables BER R ERGIA
(including cash and (BRERE RIRITHER)
bank balances) 579,697 586,905
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 147 132
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 24,533 47,647
Derivative financial assets MESEE 510 -
604,887 634,684
Financial liabilities THEE
Trade and other payables Z 5 & H e I8 324,575 340,272
Derivative financial liabilities PTESRmEE - 26,742
Bank borrowings RITEE - 46,624
Bonds E% 366,830 263,329
691,405 676,967
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

AI‘-‘\-
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BIEERERERE @)
(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIBEREZ#
Management monitors and manages the financial risk relating ERESEASMRAREEREENHRIH
to the Group through internal risk assessment which analyses @*"1$§t?&%f¥ﬁﬁa$%lﬁ'}i\%ﬂ
exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. The policies on how % o IR S 5% B R R WY BUR #5120
to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages —F CEREEENERZERR  BR
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures LA R BERAEEEE R
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
(i)  Market risk () wEmEE
Foreign currency risk management SN B EHE
The Group conducts its treasury functions and maintains REBMUAINEEITEEE TER
certain cash and bank balances, bank borrowings and REE TR RRT4EH  RITE
bonds in foreign currencies, hence is exposed to foreign ERES B mEEINERE - &
currency risk. The Group manages its foreign currency FEFE BT B R INEE R g
risk by closely monitoring the movements of the foreign A E.Eiﬁﬁl\’iﬁ(ﬂﬁ“ o REEH A
currency exchange rates. The Group currently does WA INEESERIBUR o AT BIRE
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, Etg?&l\ﬁ%ﬂ[i’*v&}i%ﬁf\ﬁ%%ﬁ%%
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and B R E R INE R
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency REEUIINEDNENEBEER
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at BEEBENREHHNERAEN
the reporting date are as follows: T
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2016 2015 2016 2015
-~ —hF —RE —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT
HK$ ks 199,826 297,231 402,834 282,230
us$ T 89,280 159,111 49,820 235,622
Renminbi (“RMB") ARE(TAR%]) 315,777 169,739 238,751 155,044
Others Hit 4 8,603 - 4,071
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s loss in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% (2015: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. A positive/(negative) number below
indicates a decrease/(increase) in post-tax loss where RMB,
HK$ and other currencies strengthen against the relevant
functional currency of the Group entities, that is US$.
For a 5% (2015: 5%) weakening of RMB, HK$ and other
currencies against the relevant functional currency of the
Group entities, that is US$, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax loss.

e SRR MR

3 BEEMRERE (E)

(a) MBEBREZER &)

(i)

TSR ()
S RS

TRETAEASEE@EENR
BHERNREARNEEE
SEMNAKEER HOBO

28

BRESMEBRBAREENHING
FHMEEIEE - WHNF RIREEEM
5% (ZZF—HRF:5%) & mA
BHBBRE - THIE(B8)HEX
AR BEREMEER
HEAEBERBNIEEEET
fEx FF - RIBRBiR BB SR
S i ARE BB RE
MEEEERASEEENINE
EMETERTHRS% (ZE—H
F15%)  AlBRTEEERK LR

ZEERARMTE-
2016 2015
—ZE—RE —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
HK$ B (10,150) 750
RMB AR 3,851 735
Others Hi - 227
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BEEMRERE (&)

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) BIBEREZE

(i)  Market risk (Continued) (i) TEREE &)
Interest rate risk management FI & g g & 7

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bonds (Note 33) and loans receivable
(Note 24). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to bank balances, variable-rate bank
borrowings and derivative financial liabilities.

The Group's cash flow interest risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") arising from the Group’s HK$ denominated
borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank and
other borrowings. The analysis is prepared assuming the
bank and the borrowings outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis point (2015: 50 basis points) increase or decrease
for variable-rate bank borrowings is used for interest
rate sensitivity analysis and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

(1) Cash flow interest rate risk

As at 31 March 2016, no borrowings carries at
floating interest rate. Accordingly, the Group does
not subject to any cash flow interest rate risk. As
at 31 March 2015, in order to keep borrowings at
fixed rate and to minimise the cash flow interest
rate risk, the Group entered into floating to fixed
interest rate swaps to manage the cash flow interest
rate risk exposure associated with certain amount
of borrowings that carried interests at floating rate
totalling HK$46,624,000.
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e SRR MR

EEREE (&)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

(1)

Cash flow interest rate risk (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s pre-tax loss derived from variable-
rate borrowings for the year ended 31 March 2015
would increase/decrease by HK$233,000.

There is no material cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank balances.

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group's bonds and loans receivable were
issued at fixed rates and expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. As at 31 March
2016, the Group has bonds of HK$366,830,000
(2015: HK$263,329,000) and loans receivable of
HK$19,913,000 (2015: HK$29,159,000) carried at
fixed rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2015: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax loss derived
from fixed-rate bonds for the year ended 31 March
2016 would decrease/increase by HK$2,485,000
(2015: HK$737,000) as a result of decrease/increase
in fair value of fixed rate bonds. The effect of
changes in interest rate on amortised amounts of
loans receivable is not significant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities and unquoted equity
securities. Decisions to buy or sell listed equity securities
are based on daily monitoring of the performance of
individual securities compared to index of relevant stock
markets and other industry indicators.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
10% (2015: 10%) higher/lower, the Group’s post-tax
loss for the year ended 31 March 2016 would decrease/
increase by HK$15,000 (2015: HK$13,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments.

If the prices of the listed equity securities had
been 10% (2015: 10%) higher/lower, the Group's
investment valuation reserve would increase/decrease by
HK$2,453,000 (2015: HK$4,765,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.

No sensitivity analysis is presented for the Group's
investments in unquoted equity securities which are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HKERERE @)

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIBEREZ#
(i)  Credit risk (i) EERE

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group'’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks or financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies or state-owned banks in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC").

Loans receivable were made to borrowers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group has policies that
limit the amount of credit exposure to any borrower. No
provisions for unrecoverable loans receivable has been
made in the current and prior accounting periods after
considering no loans receivable were past due.
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e SRR A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 49% (2015:
45%) and 92% (2015: 88%) of the total trade receivables
and loans receivable was due from the Group’s largest
debtor and the five largest debtors respectively within
the commodity trading and chemical products (2015: the
commodity trading, chemical products and service contract
segments).

The Group has assessed the credit worthiness of these
customers and all of these customers have good historical
repayment records and of low default rate. In this regard,
the directors considered that the credit risk is low.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and bank balances deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
and other borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants and timely negotiates with the lenders if any
non-compliance is expected.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings as a source
of liquidity. As at 31 March 2016, the Group has available
unutilised letter of credit, overdraft and short-term bank
loan facilities of HK$95,000,000 (2015: HK$206,415,000).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HKERERE @)
(Continued)

BHEEREE (#)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a)

(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) REEZEE &)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are at floating rates,
the undiscounted amount is derived from the weighted
average interest rates by reference to the HIBOR of
the Group’s variable-rate borrowings at the end of the
reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments, except
for the issued warrants classified as derivative financial
instruments, since the settlement of which would be
satisfied by the issue of new ordinary shares and does not
involve any cash outflows. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted contractual net cash outflows
on derivative instruments (except for the issued warrants
classified as derivative financial instruments) that settle on
a net basis. When the amount payable is not fixed, the
amount disclosed has been determined by reference to
the projected interest rates as illustrated by the weighted
average interest rate by reference to HIBOR of the Group’s
variable-rate borrowings and the terms stipulated in the
contract of derivative financial instruments existing at
the end of the reporting period. The liquidity analysis
for the Group's derivative financial instruments (except
for the issued warrants classified as derivative financial
instruments) are prepared based on the contractual
maturities as the management consider that the
contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of
the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

3 BEEMRERE (&)

(a) MBEBREZER &)

(i) HEELELR &)

REE R R FERBE R (&)

Weighted Total
average Within Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
MEFS ARRRE
FikS MER 126 2-5% SEME RERHE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Al BEBTT BT BETT BT BETT L
As at 31 March 2016 RZB-RE
=ZA=+-8
Trade payables BHENTE (274,924) = = = (274,924)  (274,924)
Other payables Hi 78 (49,651) - = - (49,651) (49,651)
Bonds (Note (b)) &% (M1 (b)) 5.09 to
Z13.4 (15,446) (25,446) (154,596) (419,566) (615,054) (366,830)
(340,021) (25,446) (154,596) (419,566) (939,629) (691,405)
Derivative - net fETA-38
settlement (Note (c)) #8 (M3E0)
Foreign currency SNERBAH
forward contracts 3.00 525 - - - 525 510
As at 31 March 2015 R-B-1F
=ZA=1-8
Trade payables BHRNTE (295,061) - - - (295,061)  (295,061)
Other payables Hi BHFE (45,211) - - - (45,211) (45,211)
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) RITEE (Hi@) 2.90 (47,597) - - - (47,597) (46,624)
Bonds (Note (b)) &% (KizE(b) 5.09 to
2134 (11,900) (11,900) (40,100 (390,800) (454,700) (263,329)
(399,769) (11,900) (40,100) (390,800)  (842,569) (650,225)
Derivative - net fTEIE-F8
settlement (Note (c)) #E (M)
Interest rate swaps Flkiz 2.90 (235) - - - (235) (230)
Foreign currency SNEREAY
forward contracts 3.00 (27,302) (5 - - (27,307) (26,512)
(27,537) (5) - . (27,542) (26,742)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

For the Group’s variable-rate interest bearing borrowings, the
weighted average effective interest rate of the Group's variable-
rate interest bearing borrowings at the end of each reporting period
is used for undiscounted cash flow analysis. As at 31 March 2016,
the Group has not given any guarantees. As at 31 March 2015, the
Group had given guarantees totalling approximately HK$39,649,000
to financial institutions in connection with the banking facilities
granted to its subsidiaries. For assets pledged to secure the bank
borrowings, refer to Note 29 (d).

For the Group's fixed-rate interest bearing bonds, respective effective
interest rate of each of the Group's fixed-rate interest bearing bonds
at the end of each reporting period is used for undiscounted cash
flow analysis.

The undiscounted cash flow of derivative financial instruments was
determined assuming all variables used in the fair value calculation at
the end of each reporting period remained the same until maturity.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ
to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end
of the reporting period.

(b) Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank borrowings (Note 29), bonds (Note 33), net of
cash and bank balances, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
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e SRR A

(b)

(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital.
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt
or the redemption of existing debt.

Based on

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio
which is calculated by bank borrowings and bonds divided by the
total assets. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2016
was 34.11% (2015: 26.81%).

Fair value of financial instruments

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

(level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level
3).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BEREMRERE @)
(Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) (0 SRMIAMNATE @)
The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities TRENWRZZ-—RERZZE-HF=
that are measured at their fair values at 31 March 2016 and A=+—HUEAFEFEZAEER 2
2015. EEREE
2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-nf
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

2% E EE] ait E E PR EE
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
E8Tn ERTx ERTxn  ERTn  EBTr  EBTT ERTn EETx

Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ HAFERBERTIK 2

profit or loss SREE
Held-for-trading investments: BIEEENRE:

- Listed equity securities — FRAES 147 - - 147 132 - - 132
Trading derivatives: RHWATETA:

~ Foreign currency forward contracts ~ —SMEEEIA D - 510 - 510 - - - -
Available-for-sale investments OHEERE

~ Listed equity securities - FIRAES 24,533 - - 24,533 47,647 - = 47,647
Total Eh 24,680 510 - 25,190 47,779 - - 47,779
Liabilities 8%
Financial liabilities at fair value through A FEEBIERTIE L

profit or loss SHERE
Trading derivatives: RSMITETE:

~ Foreign currency forward contracts ~ —JMEREA A - - - - - 26,512 - 26,512

~ Interest rate swaps —flxEH - - - - - 230 - 230
Total it = = = = - 26,742 - 26,742
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in both years. RREFEAN - F—F - F_RLRE=

Az 8 30 e g -
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e SRR A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(9]

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in level 1. Instruments included in level 1
comprise equity securities listed in Hong Kong Stock
Exchange classified as held-for-trading investments or
available-for-sale investments.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value of an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If
one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BEREMRERE @)
(Continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) (0 SRMIAMNATE @)
(i)  Financial instruments in level 2 (Continued) (i) BE-RFAWL@MITA &)
The valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value FABARNFEFERAMGE
measurements within level 2 are as follows: Bl Mo A BB IA T
Valuation Significant
techniques inputs B EXBAHE
Foreign currency Discount cash flow, ~ Observable exchange NEES  HEReR  TBEREX
forward contracts Black-Scholes rate, currency A ERAETE EERIR
option pricing volatility and yield BAREE I dh i
model and Monte curve RERHA

Carlo simulation

Interest rate swaps ~ Discount cash flow ~ Observable yield el FEReik IERME4E
and Monte Carlo curve, HIBOR rate, SHEFE BERTAE
simulation exchange rate and BRE A= Ex

currency volatility RE%RE
(iii)  Financial instruments in level 3 (i) EFE=RFIW@IT A

No financial instruments were designated within level 3 as BHE_Z-—RER-ZT—HF=

at the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015. A=+—BLFE #HESMIA

DEEFE=FAN-
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e SRR A

4

(a)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually revaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

Estimation of oil reserves

Oil reserves are key elements in the Group's investment
decision-making process. They are also an important element in
determining the amount of amortisation of the oil exploitation
rights included in other intangible assets and depreciation of
oil properties included in property, plant and equipment, and
for testing for impairment. Changes in proved and probable oil
reserves, will affect unit-of-production amortisation, depreciation
and depletion recorded in the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the oil exploitation rights and oil properties
related to oil production activities.

A reduction in proved and probable reserves or an increase
in future development expenditure will increase amortisation
charges, depreciation and depletion and increase net loss. Proved
and probable reserve and future development expenditure
estimates are subject to revision, either upward or downward,
based on new information, such as from development drilling
and production activities or from changes in economic factors,
including product prices, contract terms or development plans. In
general, changes in the technical maturity of oil reserves resulting
from new information becoming available from development
and production activities have tended to be the most significant
cause of annual revisions.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AR 28 aERIEAR B IR A F)
Annual Report 2015-16 —Z—RAE—NFHFEHE

4

(a)

B E R (Rt K

FEEEREELERIEMEAER (2
ERERBATHRARBEZHRKE
2 ) f5 B E fh A AT I

AEBELARARR M RRER-H
WELAZ G EFREERSBRIESR
HERGERER RAEEARRSENR
RTEAHBFEFRAHEERBEZRE
EFHEARB A RERRE LN
To

B fE B2 b5t

OHFEEHARE ZRERRIEFERR
BB NEREEOMFARE (GTAEMD
BVEE)BHFESBLRFBEE (FTA
ME- BB RRE)TESREARETT
RERE 2 EEREE - KA LB A
e BEENAKERAWS
AR PLE O M A ER B 2 MR
BEFHEEMAR CEUES -
FERER-

FREA R B S {0 D SR 2R B B B S0
A0 5 H0 8 85 5 52 - T BE R IR AR LA I 0
A0S 185 B8 - PR I BB R B S R R B
RS A AT RIBHERHEL A LK@
THERT Pl KERBEBRREER
HAREREBERRZBLZHER &
REMER BRGRAFAETEE-
—RWE BRENEEERDREHE
HmERAmFEENRMRAEEEE
BRAKAFEEITNRERZRR-



(b)

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of oil exploitation rights included in
other intangible assets and oil properties included
in property, plant and equipment

The carrying amounts of the oil exploitation rights and oil
properties are assessed for impairment when facts and
circumstances suggest that the carrying amounts of them may
exceed their recoverable amounts. The Group's determination
as to whether they are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the assets. The Group relied on experts to
assess the geological prospects for the discovery of oil in the oil
field and estimated the value of oil to be produced in the future
at a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
For drilling costs and other exploration and evaluation assets, the
Group determined whether the related well costs are expensed if
it is determined that such economic viability is not attained after
performing further feasibility studies that is usually completed
within one year of completion of drilling.

Judgement is required by the directors to determine key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and changes
to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow
projections and therefore the results of the impairment reviews.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
other than oil properties

Property, plant and equipment other than oil properties are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less
costs of disposal calculations. The calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AP 2paERIEA B R A F)
Annual Report 2015-16 —Z—H&E —NFEERE

4

(b)

(c)

e SRR MR

B R ET R HE (@)

AHBRE (FFARMETLEE)
REFHEE (FFAYE - BERR
%) RE

EFERBARALHFARELRHE
EZIREER e BE A Yy a5 e
SHOMARERRMEEZ REEE
TTRE R » AN S B R € A o F B 4
R EERGRERTEMIEEY
AT W [m) & B - AN 52 (B 1A R 2B 5K AT A A OE
MR OmZMER S WIEE 23
REGFARAREEZABEBEAAER
B ERERRAREMHREREFEE
B NS BURTE B4R B A AN 51 (E R
SHGRIFREITRE —F R ER
B — AT R RIDEEZRE R

& I Sl
LB R 5 o

EERSAREBRMEAN T ZERERHE
EEAFLHE ERTERRAUEE
TEZRSRoRERA #MYERE
BARWAER-

M2 BERRE (FRhEER
SN A

PR E SRR S TRTE B
B Rk (Rom AR SN IRE BT 8
ORI BB AT AL © B S R AR
5 i P E AT EME A 2 B
EARLEEE L BB AN R
it




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

4

(9]

(d)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
other than oil properties (Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate.

Changing the assumptions selected by the directors in assessing
impairment could affect the recoverable amount determined by
the directors and as a result affect the result of the impairment
reviews. Further details are set out in Note 15(a).

Critical accounting estimates and judgements in the directors’
assessment of impairment for oil properties included in property,
plant and equipment are detailed in Note 4(b).

Impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise.

Judgement is required by the directors to determine key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and changes
to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow
projections and therefore the results of the impairment reviews.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits, other receivables and loans receivable

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade receivables, prepayments, deposits, other
receivables and loans receivable based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. The assessment is based on
the credit history of its customers and other debtors and the
current market condition, and requires the use of judgments and
estimates.

Provisions are applied where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be recoverable. Management
reassesses the provision at each reporting date. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of receivables and
provision for impairment losses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

Management uses its judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique for financial instruments not quoted in
an active market. For derivative financial instruments such as
interest rate swaps and currency swaps, assumptions are based
on quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of the
instrument based on inputs supported by observable market
prices or rates.

The fair value of warrants issued requires judgement in
determining the expected volatility of the share price, the
dividends expected on the shares, the risk-free interest rate
during the life of the warrants. Details of the assumptions used
in determining the fair value of the warrants are set out in Note
31.
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(9)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Recognition of share-based payments

The Group’s employees have participated in various share-
based incentive schemes of the Company. The Company
has also granted warrants to suppliers for the provision of
services. Management of the Group has used the Binomial
Model to determine the total value of the options or warrants
granted, which is based on fair value and various attributes of
the underlying shares of the Company. Significant estimates
and assumptions are required to be made in determining the
parameters for applying the Binomial Model, including estimates
and assumptions regarding the risk-free rate of return, expected
dividend vyield and volatility of the underlying shares and the
expected life of the share options or warrants. In addition,
the Group is required to estimate the expected percentage of
grantees that will remain in employment or terms with the Group
or, where applicable, if the performance conditions for vesting
will be met at the end of the vesting period. The Group only
recognises an expense for those options or warrants expected to
vest over the vesting period during which the grantees become
unconditionally entitled to theses share-based awards. Changes
in these estimates and assumptions could have a material effect
on the determination of the fair value of the options or warrants
and the amount of such share-based awards expected to become
vested, which may in turn significantly impact the determination
of the share-based payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company have been regarded
as the CODM. The Group's operating segments, based on
information reported to the CODM for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment, are as follows:

o Trading of commodities (“Commodity trading”);
o Exploitation and sale of crude oil (“Crude oil”);

° Sale of paints, blended solvents and plastic colorants
("Chemical products”);

o Provision of exploration drilling services (“Service
contract”);

° Leasing of investment properties (“Property investment”);
and

o Others.

The Group also carries out business as money lenders and
securities brokerage in Hong Kong. The financing for these
businesses was primarily obtained through the Group’s internal
resources. The CODM, after reviewing for qualitative factors
such as the business activities, economic and legal characteristics
of the business and quantitative factors such as the financial
performance of the business, has accordingly determined that
the money lending and securities brokerage businesses did not
qualify as reportable operating segments, and their financial
information is included in “Others”.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment results represent
the loss made or profit earned by each segment without
allocation of incomes or expenses which are not recurring in
nature and unrelated to the Group’s operating performance,
including bank interest income, central administration costs,
directors’ emoluments, share of losses of associates, changes in
fair value of held-for-trading investments and derivative financial
instruments, share-based payments in respect of consultation
fees and finance costs.

The CODM also reviews the earnings/loss before net finance
income and costs, income tax expense, depreciation and
amortisation, impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and other intangible assets,
unallocated other income less expenses and non-controlling
interests (“EBITDA” or “LBITDA") of the Group. Accordingly,
EBITDA or LBITDA is also presented.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources among segments, all assets are allocated to
operating segments other than interests in associates, derivative
financial assets, other financial assets, cash and bank balances
and other corporate assets.

The CODM reviews the segment assets for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, an analysis of
the Group's liabilities is not regularly reviewed by the CODM and
hence, the relevant information is not presented accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WHEEBE2BEER (&)

(Continued)
Segment revenue and results

(a) 7HEWBREE

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by REBRAZBRDEE D 2 Wm RER
reportable segments. DT .

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE-3-AEZA=T-ALFE

Commodity Chemical Service Property
trading  Crude oil products contract  investment Others Total
BRES Fh  IER  RBEN  WERE 2t Ch
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BETr BT E¥Tn BBt EBTR BE¥Tr BE¥Tx
Segment revenue PERE 5,856,335 - 62,843 1,580 643 10,834 5,932,235
Segment EBITDA/(LBITDA) 2 SEEBITDA/(LBITDA) 85,148 (9,379) (4,397) (16,305) 304 4,297 59,668
Segment depreciation and PEMEREH
amortisation (1,578) (495) (75) (7,735) (1,000) (41) (10,924)
Impairment losses of property, nE BEREE
plant, equipment, investment REMEARE
properties and other intangible EVEERERR
assets - (145,086) - - (11,525) - (156,611)
Segment results PEEE 83,570  (154,960) (4,472) (24,040) (12,221) 425  (107,867)
Unallocated expenses FAERE (70,106)
Finance income BEKA 1,354
Finance costs BEKK (32,779)
Share of loss of associates [ NG (21,409)
Loss before income tax REEHRAER (230,807)
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited AP 2paERIEA B R A F)
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e ISR R MR

(Continued)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WmEoBEER (&)

Revenue from one (2015: four) customer in relation
to commodity trading amounted to approximately
HK$5,329,119,000 (2015: HK$606,456,000), which individually

represents more than 10% of the Group's total revenue.
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(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued) (a) PHEWREZRES @)
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE_S-RFZA=+-HILFRE
Commodity Chemical Service Property
trading Crude oil products contract  investment Others Total
EnE% Fa  LIER  RERH  WEERE 2t A5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BMTT  A%Tr  BETn BT BBt BETx
Segment revenue AEKE 686,767 3173 104,577 5,163 - 4,487 804,167
Segment EBITDA/(LBITDA) 2B EBITDA/LBITDA) 1,728 (11,749) 1,819 (566) (215) 4,308 (4,675)
Segment depreciation and PRTEREH
amortisation (1,635) (1,831) (82) (11,993) (537) 0 (16,079)
Impairment losses of property, NE BERREAR
plant, equipment and HhEREERERR
other intangible assets - (9,365) - (23,693) - - (33,058)
Segment results PEEE 93 (22,945) 1,737 (36,252) (752) 4,307 (53,812)
Unallocated expenses FAREZ (84,626)
Finance income HERA 1322
Finance costs BEMRAK (14,931)
Share of loss of an associate Efh—MEE A REE (20,557)
Loss before income tax REEHRAER (172,604)

HARMEIME KE—HB(ZF
—AFHEB)RPZREZHBE
5,329,119,0007t (=& — A F : B
606,456,0007T) ' & BIE A S B =L
ZH10% A | o
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 W&H#KEkDEER (&)
(Continued)

(b) Segment assets (b) 7 EEE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets by reportable REBERAZEREENHE D 2EED
operating segment: franT:
2016 2015
—E-—REF —T-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Segment assets DEEE
Commodity trading EmE S 436,733 360,054
Crude ol R A 183,873 342,910
Chemical products {ETESR 11,372 16,201
Service contract RIFE# 21,274 52,339
Property investment YRR E 118,236 23,892
Others Hth 21,072 29,159
Total segment assets DIEEBE 792,560 824,555
Unallocated RABC 282,719 331,616
Total assets BEE 1,075,279 1,156,171
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Other segment information (o)

5 WHERKDEER (&)

Htt o BEHR

Amount included in the measure
of segment results or segment
assets:

Additions to non-current assets

Waiver of trade payables

Invertories written off

Impairment losses of trade
receivables

Impairment losses of prepayments,

deposits and other receivables
Impairment losses of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment losses of other
intangible assets
Impairment loss of investment
properties
Loss on deemed disposal of
a subsidiary
Gains on disposals of property,
plant and equipment

FAPREEANREE
HEZEE:

RERRBEE
REBHEMNTA
HEEs
BHERRHRRERR

BRSE ZEREME
BHERERR
nx BER
REAERR
EharEERERR

RENEREDS

RALE-FHBLRZ
Bl

HENE FER
R
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 W& R D EE R (4)
(Continued)
(c) Other segment information (Continued) () HoEEH @)
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-T-RE-A-T-HILEE
Commodity Chemical Service Property
Trading  Crudeoil  products contract  investment Others  Unallocated Total
BEnES Fa  LIER REBAY  hERE Hh AP Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT BT B%Tr  A%Tr  BETn  EETr AT BBt
Amount included in the measure A ADBEEXNEELE
of segment results or segment GTEIEE:
assets:
Additions to non-current assets REFRYEE 108 6,451 - 1 - 1 - 6,572
Impairment losses of prepayments, ~ TBAFE R4 REM
deposits and other receivables EUFERERE - - (2,415) - - - (29997)  (32412)
Impairment losses of property, nE BER
plant and equipment RiERERE - (3,46) - (2369) - - - (26939
Impairment losses of other HthEREERESR
intangible assets - (6,119) - - - - - (6,119)
Losses on disposals of property, HENE HER
plant and equipment REER (51) - 4 - - - - (55)

(d)

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in the PRC and Hong Kong.
The Group’s revenue from external customers is based on the

d) HEEHR

AEBZEBURTERBE -BEP
ZEEREHREIDNRBIRELZ

location of their key operations and information about its non- NEE WG RIZEEEH R S5 8 IE
current assets is based on geographical location of the assets MEEEBRWN TR
that are shown below:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
RENIREF Wz FRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—NE —hfF —~E —h%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BET T BETFT
PRC FE 5,586,320 292,186 205,709 363,409
Hong Kong a5 158,818 97,671 166,292 137,523
Malaysia ERAED 185,517 393,009 - -
Others Hfth 1,580 21,301 21,218 43,859
5,932,235 804,167 393,219 544,791
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited EFT%E/ IERBER AT
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6 OTHER LOSSES, NET

6 HftuEE  FE

37

2016 2015
ZE-RF —E—HF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T BT T
(Restated)
(&BET)
(Note 2(a))
(Mi&E2(a))
Exchange losses, net &5 E518 0 558 (11,334) (370)
Impairment losses of W RE RRERERE
property, plant and
equipment 15(a) (50,205) (26,939)
Impairment losses of Hfhfmp & EREEE
other intangible assets 18 (94,881) (6,119)
Impairment loss of BEMERERE
investment properties 16 (11,525) -
Impairment losses of TEFIE R E R
prepayments, deposits H e WK IE R (E B 18
and other receivables 20(d) (6,788) (32,412)
Impairment losses of 2 5 EWGRIBREEE
trade receivables 23(d) (9,138) -
Gains/(losses) on disposal HEME BEREHEZ
of property, plant and Wi, (E#E)
equipment 89 (55)
Gain on disposal of HE-BAHEEREZ
an available-for-sale &
investment - 107
(Losses)/gains from changes —~ $T4& & @t T A A F(AES
in fair value of derivative Z (F518) e
financial instruments 25(a) K (b) (5,786) 4,479
Gains/(losses) from changes  ##{FEBERE AT EEZH
in fair value of held-for- Wz (BE)
trading investments 15 (30)
Waiver of trade payables HRE S RENKIE 3,411 -
Inventories written off MEFE (3,377) -
Loss on deemed disposal of B AHEME QR 2 EE
a subsidiary 34 (9,789) -
Others Hb 159 -
(199,149) (61,339)
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EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BEMEIENRAX
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(s&E5))
(Note 2(a))
(KMi&E2(a))
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE FHaekEMmER
(including directors’ emoluments) (BREEFHE) (MES)
(Note 8) 31,496 25,553
Auditor's remuneration % SR B &
— Audit services —BZIRTE 3,000 3,000
— Non-audit services —EBZRB 2,819 10
Cost of inventories recognised HWRARIHFEKAR
in expenses 5,803,740 781,452
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #1% - BE & REFTE
equipment (Note 15) (FF3E15) 9,314 15,129
Amortisation of investment wEYEEE (MEe)
properties (Note 16) 998 513
Amortisation of other intangible Hihmm &g (ME18)
assets (Note 18) 1,479 1,688
Operating lease expenses MEHERSY 9,325 9,264
Legal and professional fees FEENMEEER 12,308 11,601
Share-based payments in respect of A REERE & 2 LARKD
consultation fees (Note 20(b)) Sz 3R\ (M FE20(b) ) 3,943 6,357
Public relation NEBER 6,969 6,613
Commission expenses HeEHR 13,856 -
Transportation Ei 3,714 5,783
Others Hih 8,098 14,303
Total cost of sales, selling and SHEN A - SHE R KA K&
distribution costs and THHLZBE
administrative expenses 5,911,059 881,266

WAGES, SALARIES AND OTHER BENEFITS 8 I¥ -#HE&RHEMER (&
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) FEEME)
2016 2015
—E-XEF —ET—AHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREMEF 23,046 24,674
Contributions to defined contribution %8t ZGR K&t 21 #9 it 5%
retirement plan 395 879
Share-based payments (Note 31(b))  LAR% 1D % - = 318 (FIsE31(b) ) 8,055 -
31,496 25,553

Toak
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For the year ended 31 March 2016:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

9 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 9 EZRFIRER

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERFETHAEMS
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set FEEERTETHRABZFHHMEI M
out below: T~

BE-_Z—AF=A=1+—HLEE:

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, of director's

whether of the Company o its subsidiary undertaking other services
REFAATAHNMARzES2EAZ BB HAREME in connection
Remuneration with the

paid or  management

Employer's  receivablein of the affairs

Estimated contribution to respect of of the
money value  a retirement accepting  Company or
Discretionary Housing of other benefit officeas its subsidiary
Fees Salaries bonuses allowance benefits scheme director  undertaking Total
REALTY
HHEARL
EBEHAR
EIpEn  REHES  EZ M
EfER EAGEEL  BEEMD BHEH
ne #e BiEkL EERE (HEMEE 2R BUZEM FEGZHE #it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
EBTn L L L A8TR ABTR ABTR ABTR A8Tn
Executive Directors: HiTEs:
Mr. Poon Sum EREE - 5,628 - - - 18 - - 5,646
M. Li Zhenjun (Note (@) FRERE (M) - 29 - - - - - - 29
M. Wong Kwok Leung EAREE (TRER)
(Chief Executive Officer) - 679 - - - 18 - - 697
Mr. Poon Wai Kong AREILE - 1312 - - - 18 - - 1,39
- 7,969 - - - 54 - - 8,023
Non-executive Director: B ¢ T
Mr. Zaid Latif Zaid Latif & 20 - - - - - - - 280
Independent Non-executive Directors: e O+ AN
Mr. Chan Shu Kin REBEE 308 - - - - - - - 308
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul (Note (o)) RBELE (M) 118 - - - - - - - 118
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung FHELE 308 - - - - - - - 308
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu (Note (c)) EERAE (i) )3 - - - - - - - 7
808 - - B B B - _ %08
Total @i 1,088 7,969 - - - 54 - - 9,111
Notes: MaE
(a) Mr. Li Zhenjun was appointed as an Executive Director and Chairman of the (a) FREEENFIR B —ARF-ARBR=
Company on 4 January 2016 and 8 January 2016 respectively. Z2-RE-ANBEBZERERRZHITE
ERERF-
(b) Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul retired from office by rotation in the annual (b) PREBIBEENARRR T —RENA+—
general meeting of the Company held on 11 September 2015 and did not BROZEFRBFAG THESREHNE
offer himself for re-election due to other business commitments. fth ZE RS EAE B (T o
(c) Mr. Chiu Wai Piu was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of () ERRAERZERRRRZEILIFNITE

the Company with effect from 11 December 2015.
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(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

9

e SRR MR

EEEMNREER (&)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERFETHAEME @)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 (restated): HE-_ZT—AF=-A=+—HILFE
(ge=E5) -
Certain of the comparative information of directors’ emoluments ERIRBEAARGKIRBE2BE=S
for the year ended 31 March 2015 previously disclosed in —RAF=ZA=+-HULFEZEEMH:
accordance with the predecessor Companies Ordinance ZETHRERBEEINETEER
have been restated in order to comply with the new scope AIMED] (2£622F ) 23 # B R E
and requirements by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622).
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director, of director’s
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking other services
RECAAASENMRL R EZZEAZRBE AR S in connection
Remuneration with the
paid or  management
receivable in  of the affairs
Estimated Employer's respect of of the
money value  contribution to accepting  Company or
Discretionary Housing ofother  a retirement officeas its subsidiary
Fees Salaries bonuses allowance benefits ~ benefit scheme director  undertaking Total
RERRAN
EHEARZ
EREHER
EImRM  GEAEF  EI2ER
EfbENz  BHHEED  BBEAS RHE
e e [f-peAs ERRE MHEMEE 2BR BRZEM  RENZEE 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT EETT EETT EETT EETT EETT EETT AETT BETT
Executive Directors: Hirgs:
Mr. Poon Sum AREE - 4824 - - - 18 - - 4,842
Mr. Wang Bo (Note) TR (HE) - 30 - - - - - - 30
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung (Chief Executive Officer) B EIR 4 (1TH#%) - 582 - - - 18 - - 600
M. Poon Wai Kong ARRLE - 129 - - - 18 - - 1314
- 6,732 - - - 54 - - 6,786
Non-executive Director: £
Mr. Zaid Latif Zaid Latif & 20 - - - - - - - 20
Independent Non-executive Directors: =€ -
Mr. Chan Shu Kin REBEE 264 - - - - - - - 264
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul R 264 - - - - - - - 264
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung RERLE 264 - - - - - - - 264
792 - - - - - - - 792
Total @t 1,032 6,732 - - - 54 - - 7818
Note: B

Mr. Wang Bo tendered his resignation as an Executive Director and Chairman of the
Company both with effect from 30 June 2014.

None of the directors have waived any of the emoluments during
the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

()

BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits during the year (2015: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year (2015: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services (2015: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there is no loans, quasi-
loans and other dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors during
the year (2015: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2015: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 10 HFMESNEBAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEBFHEESHRABATES  HA
Group, two (2015: two) were directors of the Company whose ME(ZTE—AF - WMB)RBREARAE
emoluments are included in Note 9. The emoluments of the EHENMESENMFI - Ef =5
remaining three (2015: three) individuals were as follows: (ZE2E—RF =%) ALHBEHT:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-RF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other emoluments FekEMNe 1,100 2,621
Contributions to defined contribution & %8 it R K&t 21 #9 it 5%
retirement plan 9 53
Share-based payments VARR 9 3 A+ 2 k18 2,679 -
3,788 2,674
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HERI SN FLATHE -

Number of individuals

AH
2016 2015
—E-AEF —E-RF
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 7B #500,001L 2
75 #1,000,0007T - 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 7#1,000,001TE
78 #1,500,0007T 3 1
3 3
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to RAREE - REEW WA FEE
any of the above directors or the five highest paid individuals IREGERFATISEMBE 1ER
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as INAZR S B SN A A & F F 7Y 825 58
compensation for loss of office (2015: Nil). EABBmE(ZT—RHF £)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

11

12

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

11 BEWA R

2016 2015
—E—XE —E-—FEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST
Interest expenses on: NTEEZHFERL:
- bonds —EH (32,183) (13,830)
— bank loans and overdrafts —RITEREEX (596) (1,101)
Finance costs B & AR (32,779) (14,931)
Interest income on: ATEEBEZFBWA
— bank deposits —RITHFER 1,354 1,322
Finance income RE WA 1,354 1,322
Finance costs, net BEKA  FEE (31,425) (13,609)

INCOME TAX CREDIT

12 FiiEHiRe

2016 2015

—E-XRE —ET—AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Hong Kong profits tax HEENFH (211) -
Deferred income tax (Note 32) EIEFTER (FIzE32) 370 5,332
Income tax credit Frisfif e 159 5,332

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation for overseas
subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate current rates of
taxation in the relevant jurisdiction of which the most significant
jurisdictions are the PRC which has a corporate income tax rate
of 25% (2015: 25%) and Macau which has a complementary
corporate tax rate of 12% (2015: 12%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

12 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

No current Macau complementary corporate tax and PRC
corporate income tax have been provided for as the Group did
not have any assessable profits in Macau nor in the PRC for the

year (2015: Nil).

There is no tax impact relating to components of other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015:

Nil).

The tax on the Group's loss before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate in the PRC

12 MK E (&)

AR AN E AR BRI 2 BB AT
o] & ER 0 1) » 48 T 3 R 552 B HERFI
MRS MAR LT EEEMEHE

B(ZT—HF E)-

REBEE-_ET—XRNF=A=+—HItE
EoEaREMmEmREIm BB

B (ZE-LF E)-

BRAANKE 2 BAMSHATEE 2 HIAHE
RAASEMERZ PEREFEME

applicable to the Group as follows: EERPMEIERZNT
2016 2015
—E-KRF —ZE—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Loss before income tax BRFTS LRI & 1B (230,807) (172,604)
Tax calculated at domestic tax RERNEEREER
rates applicable to losses EENEHEGFED
in the respective jurisdictions IE (57,702) (43,1517)
Tax effect of share of losses of JE(R B & A B TR
associates M E 5,352 5,139
Tax effect of different tax rates of REAM EEREREE 2
subsidiaries operating in other B ARB R ERN
jurisdiction TR % % 19,598 10,823
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERATHBEREZED
differences not recognised Mg 2 16,501 208
Tax effect of utilisation of BASLAIERTIEEED
previously recognised tax losses MR (310) -
Tax effect of tax losses RERBIEEIEN
not recognised TR % % 5,850
Tax effect of income not taxable AR A RIS 2
for tax purpose (19,024)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ ] 174 79 2 09 i 75 57 £
for tax purpose 29,576
Income tax credit Frisiiif & (159)

TLAEY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

13 LOSS PER SHARE 13 BREE
Basic loss per share attributable to the owners of the Company is KABVEB ARG BRENEETIIRE
calculated by dividing loss for the year attributable to owners of RABIHEA NEBIEFREERAFEAE
the Company by the weighted average number of shares in issue BTG 2 INETF I EETE -

during the year.

2016 2015

ZE-RF S

Loss for the year (HK$'000) FAEE BT (227,059) (148,305)
Weighted average number of BT @R 2 NETI98

ordinary shares in issue (F8&)

(shares in thousands) 5,416,315 4,744,838
Basic loss per share (HK cents) FREARER OBI) (4.19) (3.13)
The share options, warrants and share awards outstanding at 31 R_E—REFEZA=+—BHEKRTE
March 2016 (2015: share options and warrants) have no dilutive ZHERE RBREEEIRODER(=ZF
effect on basic loss per share. —hE-BERERRREZR)TEYS

BREABEBEEH T E-
14 DIVIDEND 14 IRE
The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of any B2 TEEARNEFRNRNEMKRE (=
dividend during the year (2015: Nil). T—RFE) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 M- -BERRE

Furniture,
0il Plant and Motor fixture and  Construction-

properties machinery vehicles equipment in-progress Total

%A
FhEE EERE RE EBERE ERIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Cost: BAE:
At 1 April 2014 RZZE-NENA—A 134,414 126,450 7,150 8,310 7971 284,295
Additions RE - 1 - 136 6,435 6,572
Disposals & - - (212) (44) - (256)
Transfers ELE 1,975 - - - (1,975) -
Exchange realignment [ESTEEE 75 (466) 9) (6) 12 (394)
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-1%=A=1+-H 136,464 125,985 6,929 8,396 12,443 290,217
Additions NE - - - 2,190 4,328 6,518
Disposals HE - - (587) ®) - (595)
Deemed disposal of a BREENBRF

subsidiary - (45,074) (426) (246) - (45,746)
Exchange realignment ERAR (5,403) (12,155) (450) (206) (431) (18,645)
At 31 March 2016 WZE-REZA=1+—H 131,061 68,756 5,466 10,126 16,340 231,749

Accumulated depreciation R FERBE:
and impairment:
At 1 April 2014 RZZ-MEMA—A 29,002 44,948 5,730 7,322 1,439 88,441
Depreciation for the year FRE (F1:7)

(Note 7) 1,133 12,699 714 583 - 15,129
Disposals HE - - (124) (40) - (164)
Exchange realignment ERAE 16 (90) 3) ) ) (80)
Impairment losses (Note (a) BB (M3 () 3,246 23,693 - - - 26,939
At 31 March 2015 WZE-RE=ZA=1+-H 33397 81,250 6,317 7,864 1,437 130,265
Depreciation for the year FRME (K37)

(Note 7) - 7,423 983 908 - 9314
Disposals HE - - (587) @) N (595)
Deemed disposal of a RALHENBAR

subsidiary - (38,392) (321) (129) - (38,842)
Exchange realignment ESHE (1,131) (3,741) (961) (62) (1) (5.896)
Impairment losses (Note (a)) REFE (HEE) 50,205 - - - - 50,205
At 31 March 2016 RZE-~E=ZA=1+-H 82,471 46,540 5,431 8,573 1,436 144,451

Carrying value: REE:
At 31 March 2016 RZZ-~"$¥=A=1+-H 48,590 22,216 35 1,553 14,904
At 31 March 2015 R-Z-1%=A=1+-H 103,067 44,735 612 532 11,006

TLAEY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Impairment assessment

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group entered into a “technical
service and revenue sharing” agreement (“the Master Agreement”) and
a supplemental agreement to the Master Agreement (“the Supplemental
Agreement”) with an independent third party (“the Contractor”) with
effect from 1 January 2015 to 1 September 2028, pursuant to which the
Contractor is to provide on-site technical and management services to the
Group in respect of the Group's exploration and production activities on its
oilfields in the location of Heilongjiang Province of the PRC. According to
the Master Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement, the Contractor
is also responsible for all operating costs as well as capital investment costs
in drilling new wells and other oilfield related long term investment. The
Group receives 0%, 10% and 15% of revenue from total crude oil sales
from year one, years two to three and year four onwards during the service
period respectively. The Group can, at its discretion and without recourse,
terminate the Master Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement by giving
a 6-month notice.

In view of the continuous declining in global crude oil prices, management
has performed an impairment assessment of the Group's crude oil segment.
The crude oil segment mainly comprised of oil properties under property,
plant and equipment and oil exploitation licences under other intangible
assets.

The recoverable amount of the crude oil segment was determined based
upon the fair value less cost of disposal calculation prepared by an
independent valuer. This calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets provided by the Contractor and approved by the Board of
Directors covering period of 13 years ending on 1 September 2028. The key
assumptions used in the discounted cash flow model are as follows:

15 Y% B E KRB &)

(a)

B R

REBE-_T-—AF=-A=+—ALFERN"
NEBBE-ZBIE=H ([6HF])FTL
— R IHEMRERRESR]IER([E4
REREERO—MHEFTHE ([HEHB
#1) BZE-AF—A-HBEZZ-N\F
NA—BEEAR Bt AHFBRAS
BRFEBETIENHEDRREETE:
MRS B RIS RE R R - BIRE
ERRETRE  ENAMEEEMEEE
ER ARTARAESERNFLE mE
MEMEE . REARE - AEERRSHARE
—FRE R HERA0% EEE=FI
HR10% * 58 PO 4F A2 B 1 5% o 2N 52 @ A] 7
BEREEBREZBRTERE L EAR
MR IEFAR MR BHE-

ERASRFRMERSEER EEEHAR
1 FUh D SEIT R ER G - BN B E 2
BENE BERRBEATZRBEEAR
HihBPEAERT 2 A MR E

50 53 $ P 120 Uk 8 T 4 988 7 (L B 4 4 0
R ERBERAFE AT - At E
EDERENAHTRHEAGERSMILE
REBIE—T-N\FAA—-BIL13FHRZ
HHREEMGHZRSRERA -FRRE
MERAEANTERRMT

2016 2015
—E-XRE —T-RF
Estimated average oil price per tonne (RMB) & BI 27 {4 51 & A ME F 15 Jh &
for the forecast period (AR¥) 2,489 4,442
Estimated total extraction of oil et AmRRERE (TAN)
(thousand tonnes) 1,523 1,669
Discount rate R E 16.86% 14.7%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(a) Impairment assessment (Continued)

Based on the estimated recoverable amount, impairment losses of
approximately HK$50,205,000 (2015: HK$3,246,000) and HK$94,881,000
(2015: HK$6,119,000) (Note 18) were recognised for oil properties under
property, plant and equipment and oil exploitation licences under other
intangible assets respectively.

The sensitivity analysis below highlights the effect of changes in the key
assumptions in the valuation with all other variables held constant. A positive
number below indicates an increase in impairment losses and a decrease in

e SRR EE
15 Y% B E KRB &)

B aE - (a0
(a) AR (%)

REGABNKRSE WE - BEREE
BTHRAEEREMELEEETHA
AR IEOREBRES NN ABE
50,205,0007T ( —Z — F 4 : ##3,246,000
7T) K& #594,881,0007T ( T —H4F B
6,119,0007T) (F3E18) ©

AT B A IR HE A E BRRE
BORE (FALMERRETE) W TE
BERTIKRRBE-T—AFZA=+—AL

the recoverable amounts of oil properties and oil exploitation licences as at FECHAEERAMBIKTEZRERS
and for the year ended 31 March 2016. R HN Ko 7] [0 e 2 BEORL A o
HK$'000
BT T
If estimated average oil price decreases from RMB2,489 i fl 5t FmEN T AN A R2,489 T E
per tonne to RMB2,365 per tonne AN ARYE2,3657T 8,432
If estimated total extraction of oil decreases from il 5+ AR IR R A= 181,523,000 2 i FE =
1,523,000 tonnes to 1,478,000 tonnes 1,478,000 8 5,059
If discount rate increases from 16.86% to 17.86% i BEER £ h16.86% 1 £17.86% 8,115

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s service contract segment, which mainly
provides operational services to oilfield operators in the Republic of
Kazakhstan (”Kazakhstan”), was also affected by the downturn of global
crude oil prices. Accordingly, management has performed an impairment
assessment of the Group's service contract business in Kazakhstan.

The carrying values of the plant and machineries of service contract segment
were written down to recoverable amounts which were determined based
on the market sales comparison approach, where the fair value less cost of
disposal of the plant and machinery is derived from comparing the asset
to be valued directly with other comparable assets, which have recently
transacted.

The valuation of plant and machinery is carried out by an independent valuer.
The Board of Directors has reviewed and approved the valuation performed
by the independent valuer. Given the heterogeneous nature of the assets,
appropriate adjustments have been made by the valuer to allow for any
qualitative differences that may affect the sales price to be achieved by the
asset under consideration. The key assumptions used for determining fair
value less cost of disposal are as follows:

RZZ-AF=A=+—H FEEORYE
BN R (TERMERATEANE ([WhE
AR ) Mk FIE R RHEBRE) TR
ERFHMEBTROZE - Rt §EEYH
AN E TR R RES & KR ATR
[EREEE

RIS BRI D2 BFE RE 2 IREEBRE
AU E e AR IR BRI TS S L
BOAEE AP HEREE L ATERBE
AR 16 Tt it 2 BESIHR 52 Kt
AL A EE B B LB FESE ©

B 55 B e 28 2 (B Ty i B S G E D 1T AT
- EFQCBMLIME B (A EMET
RE-HREEZREN HEMDHTE
FREETAENEB 2 HERRZEME
fEEZRELBEERE - EEQTERLERK
AERZ EBHROT ¢

2015
—T-AhF

Average qualitative adjustments in price
from comparable transactions
Average disposal cost adjustment
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AhERRSER 2 FHECRE

19.0%
5.0%

Annual Report 2015-16 —Z—H&E —NFEERE




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(a) Impairment assessment (Continued)

As a result of the assessment, an impairment loss of HK$23,693,000 was
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2015. The impairment reduced the
deferred income tax liability relating to the value attributed to the plant and
machineries acquired. The reduction in the deferred liability as a result of the
impairment was HK$4,234,000 (Note 32).

The sensitivity analysis below highlights the effect of changes in the key
assumptions in the valuation with all other variables held constant. A positive
number below indicates an increase in impairment losses and a decrease
in the recoverable amounts of plant and machineries as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

15 Y% B E KRB &)

B aE - (a0

(a)

WAE R ()

RFEE RBE-_T—RF=A=+—A81t
FEHRRERB523,693,0007T < BB IR
3 FT UK B R R % i B2 A (BB B BBV IE T FT 1S
BB {8 o T B B R RUE TR 2 7 #64,234,000
7T (Fi7E32) ©

ATHRESMREEGETEEBRREDN
TE(MAEGEHRERFTE) U TEHERR
REBE-Z—AF=ZA=+—HLEFE K
B RS 2 ME R I R R SR

HK$'000
BT T
If average qualitative adjustments in price from comparable 7] tL 82 S (EI& 2 FHE L HE
transactions increased from 19.0% to 24.0% F119.0% 3 1N%E24.0% 723
If average disposal cost adjustment increased fitt ¥ H B B AT B R 5.0% L INE10.0%
from 5.0% to 10.0% 2,220

(b) Environmental rehabilitation investment in the PRC

Due to the underground oil exploitation method adopted by the Group,
the Group has not incurred any significant expenditure on environmental
rehabilitation since its establishment. There is, however, no assurance
that stringent environmental policies and/or standard on environmental
rehabilitation will not be implemented by the relevant authorities in the PRC
in the future which require the Group to undertake environmental measures.
The financial position of the Group may be adversely affected by any
environment liabilities, which may be imposed under such new environment
policies and/or standards.
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e SRR MR

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 REWZ
2016 2015
—B-RF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Cost: RAE :

At beginning of the year REH] 25,658 25,658
Additions (Note (a)) AE (KiE@)) 97,010 -
At end of the year RER 122,668 25,658

Accumulated depreciation and At B RAE:

impairment:
At beginning of the year REH] 1,796 1,283
Depreciation for the year (Note 7) FRWE (KI5E7) 998 513
Impairment loss (Note (d)) (Note 6)  JR{EEE (HiFE(d))

(Mt7t6) 11,525 -
At end of the year RER 14,319 1,796

Carrying value: BRIEIME :

At end of the year RER 108,349 23,862
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e SRR A

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(e)

Additions mainly represented the acquisition cost of properties of
approximately HK$88,704,000, and transaction costs totalling approximately
HK$8,306,000.

Amounts recognised in consolidated income statement for the investment
properties

16 REVZE (&)

RETEEVRZBUBRANES
88,704,000 kX 5B A A KN BE
8,306,0007T ©

2016 2015
—E-RE —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Rental income HeWA 643 -
Direct operating expenses from EEHSWAZYEZ
properties that generated BELERY
rental income (100) -
Direct operating expenses from REEHSWAZYEZ
properties that did not generate BEELERX
rental income (196) (164)
347 (164)

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties was
performed by independent valuer, Ascent Partners Valuation Service Ltd.,
to determine the fair value of the investment properties as at 31 March
2016 and 2015. As at 31 March 2016, the aggregate fair values of the
Group’'s investment properties amounted to HK$111,400,000 (2015:
HK$28,700,000).

In view of the downturn in the Hong Kong property market, management
has performed an impairment assessment of the Group’s investment
properties. The recoverable amount of the investment properties was
based upon the fair value less cost of disposal calculation performed by an
independent valuer.

Based on the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$11,525,000 (2015: Nil) was charged to the consolidated
income statement.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group's investment properties in Hong Kong with
an aggregate net carrying value of HK$23,349,000 (2015: HK$23,862,000)
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 29(d)
(2)).
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BRAEEBREAMENBIEEBE L
HEM Y AFELERAGR A BETT AE
EREMER T —A"ER-_T-—AF=
A=+—BZRAFE-R-_ZT—XR"F=A
=+ B AEEREMEZIAFELE
AAH111,400,0007T (= — A F B
28,700,0007T ) °

ENBEEMETSELR ERECHARE
ZERBEMELITREN S - BREMEZATK
O& T h— 2B EMREAFERD
ERAEE -

BREGHIRESE REBBOESE
11,525,0007C ( ZF— R4 : &) BRERE I
R -

RZE—ARF=ZA=+—8 AE£E
REBNREVENEBFERLARESR
23,349,000 (ZE—HF - HY
23,862,0007T) B AEIE - LA F A&
BEeRTEE (M529(d)2)) °
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17 GOODWILL 17 w8
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Cost: RAE :

At beginning of the year REH] 31,162 30,922

Exchange realignment PE 5 % (1,250) 240

At end of the year RER 29,912 31,162
Accumulated impairment: ES R

At beginning of the year REA) 14,451 14,443

Exchange realignment PE 5, 8 2 (579) 8

At end of the year RER 13,872 14,451
Carrying value: BREME :

At end of the year RER 16,040 16,711
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating units BERBLENEIEEAEEZEH
(“CGUs") identified according to operating segment. As at 31 FIReEEBM([BEEEEM]) -
March 2016 and 2015, goodwill is allocated to the commodity RZE-—RERZT-—AF=HA=+—
trading segment. H BErsrkEEmEsnE-

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on ReEABMHIRE S HIRFEAE
value-in-use calculation. This calculation use pre-tax cash flow BEEE - Z:TERABRBRESZSMILE
projections based on financial budgets approved by the Board RERFEE 2 M RFEEEH 2 B AR
of Directors covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the enEEAl-BRTFHRAZEeRE
five-year period are extrapolated using growth rates estimated by TAEBREMGE 2 G REHEE -
management.
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e SRR A

17 GOODWILL (Continued) 17 BEZE (@)

AR EEAEENEERROT

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as

follows:

2016 2015

—E-XRF —ERF

Growth rate for the first five years BERREFEZERE 2.08% 2.76%

t0£22.55%

Growth rate beyond ReERETE 2.08% 2.76%
the first five years ZIRX

Inflation rate AR = 2.08% 2.76%

Discount rate Prig & 17.77% 17.36%

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU
within the operating segment.

Management determined the weighted average growth rate
based on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the operating segment.

As at 31 March 2016, if the estimated growth rate applied
decreased by 2.08%, with all other variables held constant,
goodwill will be impaired or otherwise no impairment charge will
be required.

As at 31 March 2016, if the estimated discount rate applied
increased by 38.76%, with all other variables held constant,
goodwill will be impaired or otherwise no impairment charge will
be required.
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ZEBRREARATEE S BHBERNZ
BHRTELEM-

BEEBRBABERAREEMSERRZ
TEHAEE S INHE P9I R K o TR AT
REOBHAIRRREZEEDBERZ
HiEEE -

KoE-AFZA=+—B MR
2 S B R (E2.08% « T K A
BERBTE BREWREREL
BRTA T e a3

MZZE—XE=ZA=+—8" HFEMA
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e ISR R MR

4 S
18 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 HittEB &=
Oil exploitation Customer

licences relationship Others Total
BRRRSTAE EFHE Hit CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT

(Note)

GE

Cost: RAE:

At 1 April 2014 RZE-—MFEWA—H 253,755 30,638 1,733 286,126
Exchange realignment R 140 9 - 149
At 31 March 2015 RZZE-A%=ZA=1+—H 253,895 30,647 1,733 286,275
Exchange realignment EHAE (10,184) (620) - (10,804)
At 31 March 2016 RZE-RF=ZR=1+—H 243,711 30,027 1,733 275,471

Amortisation and impairment: 8K HE:

At 1 April 2014 RZE-MENA—A 27,343 18,279 1,733 47,355
Amortisation for the year FREH (H:E7)

(Notes 7) 144 1,544 - 1,688
Impairment loss (Notes 15(a)) AR (FF150)) 6,119 - - 6,119
Exchange realignment EHAE 15 3 - 18
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RF=R=+—H 33,621 19,826 1,733 55,180
Amortisation for the year EREH (M:E7)

(Notes 7) - 1,479 - 1,479
Impairment loss (Notes 15(a)) REERE (FE150) 94,881 - - 94,881
Exchange realignment fE 5 3% (1,349) (181) - (1,530)
At 31 March 2016 RZZE-A"E=ZA=+—A 127,153 21,124 1,733 150,010

Carrying value: BEE:
At 31 March 2016 RZE-RE=ZA=1—H 116,558 8,903 - 125,461
At 31 March 2015 RZZE-RE=A=+—A 220,274 10,821 - 231,095
Note: Pt & :
Oil exploitation licences represent two rights for oil exploitation in the location of AR A BN R R TA NMIEA S e
Heilongjiang Province of the PRC which will expire in 2027 and 2028 respectively. F A RR S+ FER T \EEH-
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e SRR A

19

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

19 FABE AT 2N

)

2016 2015
—E-KEF —ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Cost of investments in associates REE &N A 2R EKAE
(Note (a)) (M) 75,592 75,592
Contributions to an unlisted associate [A]—JF Mt & A e HE 9,327 9,327
Share of post-acquisition JEME Y 12 2 R
comprehensive losses (84,919) (63,492)
- 21,427
During the year, the movements in the Group’s interests in RER KEBREE QAR 2 ERE
associates are as follows: /N
2016 2015
—E-XRF —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Carrying amount at beginning FHEREE
of the year 21,427 41,875
Share of losses of associates JE(GEE = AR &S (21,409) (20,557)
Share of exchange reserve JE(LIE K GG (18) 109
Carrying amount at end of the year ~FREEEE - 21,427
Notes: PR EE -
(a) Particulars of the Group's principal associate is set out as follows: (a) AEEMESHENANFBHINGAT
Name of the Place of Proportion of voting power
associate incorporation held indirectly Principal activities
BENREB 11 A L 3t B BESERERLSH FEER
2016 2015
—E—XF —T—hF
Lee Shing Mining Co. Ltd  Hong Kong 43% 43% Investment holding
(“Lee Shing Mining")
MK BEBR AR & BRAEER

(TRIARBESD)
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19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(d)

The Group held 43% equity interests in Lee Shing Mining, which directly
holds 80% equity interests in Guizhou Rongfa Mining Company Limited
(BMEBEBEEAERAT) ("Guizhou Rongfa Mining”), which possesses
an exclusive exploration right of vanadium mining in Guizhou Province, the
PRC. During the year ended 31 March 2016, Guizhou Rongfa Mining did
not renew its exploration right in view of the continuously decline of the
vanadium price, resulting in the Group's share of an impairment loss of

19

e ISR R MR

REE N B 2w (F)

B 5 - ()

mﬂﬁ
,Illl

(b) AN 2 B 5 75 I BT 2E 2 43% AR HE - 1T R AR TR 2
HEERBEEMEEBEARAR ([EMRERE
2] (HBEAPRSIMENEOBRDFRE)
Z80%BE - RBEE-_T—X"F=A=+—8
IEFE - ERURE R R TS BMNEBEWHE
A R TR EL PR A - 2 B R R AL R (E 1R
#) /75 %21,409,0007T

approximately HK$21,409,000.

Lee Shing Mining is a private company and there is no quoted market price
available for its shares. There are no contingent liabilities relating to the

Group's interest in Lee Shing Mining.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's principal ()

associate is set out below:

PR —RALE DR
18 o 7N 52 30 % 75 A
Bff-

¥ HEBROYET ISR
M PHE S 2 a2 A

BREAEEEEREQRMHEEERID
T

Lee Shing Mining

T B0 3

2016 2015

—ZE-XEF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Total current assets BREEE 277 12,054

Total current liabilities HWRBAaE (26,402) (26,597)

Total non-current assets EMENEELAE - 68,800

Total non-current liabilities FRBBELEE - -

Net (liabilities)/assets aE) /BEFE (26,125) 54,257

Revenue & - -

Loss from continuing operations BELEEBER (80,420) (59,730)

Post-tax loss from continuing operations #5448 & 215 % Tl B 18 (80,420) (59,730)

Other comprehensive income Hip 2w - 257

Total comprehensive loss FHEEBAEE (80,420) (59,473)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information presented to the carrying (d) 23z B ERBERENBE AR ZIRER

amount of investment in associates are shown below: HEEZ R
Lee Shing Mining
T B e 3

2016 2015

ZEB-XF —ET—AHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Opening net assets 1 January FPN(—A—RA)FEE 54,257 113,730

Loss for the year FAKBE (80,420) (59,730)

Other comprehensive income Hih 2wl - 257

Currency translation differences EXEE 38 -

Closing net (liabilities)/assets ERF (BB EE (26,125) 54,257

Interest in an associate (43%)
Goodwill

Carrying value

A& A R 2 2R (43%)
Bk

AR (E

= 23,331
= (1,904)

= 21,427
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e SRR A

20 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20 ANRIE - HeREME

RECEIVABLES W R IE
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—AHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Deposits and receivables in respect of W, "HE 2 &k
acquisitions/disposals (Note (a)) FEU R (MiE@)) 82,369 63,682
Advances to suppliers I 44 JE P A K 93,390 52,241
Prepaid consultation fee (Note (b)) TR B (HiED)) - 3,943
Amount due from substantial FEUE B AR R FHIE
shareholders (Notes (c)) (FFFE)) - 5,450
Other receivables and prepayments b & U F0 I8 K T8+ U
(Note (c)) (Mi3E©) 52,567 55,559
228,326 180,875
Less: Provision for impairment R E R E (MTEEd))
(Note (d)) (94,112) (88,241)
134,214 92,634
Less: amount shown under W IERBEEE
non-current assets TSI R&58 (31,538) (44,097)
Amount shown under current assets RENEEE NSRS 5B 102,676 48,537
Notes: PR aE -
(a) The amounts mainly comprise the following: (a) FZECEETERETIIEE:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

On 26 January 2015, the Group entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding (“MOU") with independent third
parties (“Vendors”) in relation to the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of Perfect Reward Limited (“PRL"). On 24 April
2015, the Group further entered into an acquisition agreement
("Acquisition Agreement”) with the Vendors. Pursuant to the MOU
and the Acquisition Agreement, the Group paid an aggregate deposit
of HK$30,000,000 to the Vendors (the “Deposit”). On 29 February
2016, the Group entered into a termination deed with the Vendors
to terminate the Acquisition Agreement and the Deposit shall be
refunded by the Vendors forthwith without interest. Subsequent
to the end of the reporting period, on 23 June 2016, the Group
and one of the Vendors entered into another memorandum of
understanding, pursuant which the Deposit paid can be applied to
purchase of not less than 3% of equity interest in PRL.

An outstanding balance of initial deposits amounted to
RMB24,000,000 (approximately HK$29,997,000) for acquisition of
an investment from an independent third party was made on 12
May 2010. Full provision was made as at 31 March 2015 due to the
default in repayment by the independent third party.

Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder of a former
subsidiary of HK$12,102,000. Full provision was made as at 31
March 2015 as the Board of Directors considered the recovery of the
entire amount might not be probable.

The amount represents the consideration receivable of
RMB4,275,000 (approximately HK$5,135,000) from the disposal of
a subsidiary from an independent third party in September 2012.
Full provision was made as at 31 March 2016 due to the default in
repayment by the independent third party.

Other deposits and receivables of HK$5,135,000 which full provision
had been made in previous years.
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(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

R-ZTE—RAF—A=Z+XA KA&EH
B E=F ([E75]) sl Perfect
Reward Limited ([PRL |) 2 & 50 %17
BRAFT—HTEERORN 2 EHRE
(ME8E]) R 2 —HEMA =+
B AR — SRR —EKEE
ek (THR B Wk ) < IR AR AR 1B = 8%
Riath AEBERE S ek
7 %30,000,0007T ([Z & 1) - R =T
—RNEZAZ+NB AEMEFFT
STER BRI E R R T
REF & HBAIMAFE -RBEH
K R-ZT—REXAZFT=A'XK
SEEHR BB RS REE
S8 R BAHRE R AR EPRLT
DH3% 2 B

BE—EBUE=ZHWE-BREZY
HIR S 2 REE R AR 24,000,000
T (#)74#29,997,000) R = F —F
FRATZAEH -BRBLE=HEX
B WEEBER-_Z-AF=A
=+—AfEt-

FEUL— R R P BB A B 2 FEHRAR AR SR FRIE
512,102,000 - HE FER BT
AA R EI 2 &5 M HEREN =
ET-RE=ZA=+—HEH-

ZEBEER T -—FNALE MK
BRRE—EZBIE=FZ2REREAR
AR #4,275,0007T (47 ¥5,135,000
) EABUE=FHERER MEBEE
BRZF—XE=ZA=+—HEH-

ERBEFEELZ2ERE 2 BYE
5,135,0007T 2 E i 12 & e fE U RIE
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20 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(e)

The amount represented prepaid consultation fees. On 29 November 2012,
the Group entered into a service agreement with an external consultant for
the provision of business development strategies and advisory services (the
“Service Agreement”). Pursuant to the Service Agreement, the Group should
grant to the external consultant a total of 350,000,000 warrants conferring
to subscribe up to HK$63,000,000 for new ordinary shares of the Company
during a period of 33 months commencing from the date 3 months from
the date of issue at an exercise price of HK$0.18 per share. The transaction
was accounted for as share-based payment in accordance with HKFRS 2.
The fair value of the warrants amounting to HK$18,540,000 was credited to
share-based payment reserve in prior years. During the year ended 31 March
2016, the related share-based payment expense of HK$3,943,000 (2015:
HK$6,357,000) (Note 7) was recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

e SRR MR

20 ANRIE - e REME
Wa FRIE ()

P&« ()

(b)

(9]

ZABEEENERE RN ——F+—f
ZThB AEER-FINEEMBREES
BREEREAMRE 0 REHE ([RS
W) cRIBRIS ek AR EER TINERE
54 ££350,000,00017 RMHIEE - 7] B RARAEE
17 HHAE3E A 2 B AR ET3318 A - HIR
RIZEREE0IST 2T EREARAHES
7E#63,000,0007T 2 FTE B - 2R H DIREE
A IR RIS 25R ABRTIMELARR D X 2 3%
18 o R HERE 2 N T{E A 18,540,0007T JY R B
AFEEFAUBROH Az RERGH - HE=Z
—RNE=ZA=+—BILFE BBEUABRG I
2 FRIER %8 153,943,0007T (ZE—AEF B
#6,357,0007T) (F3E7) R &R & ek & Mg

2,
A

ZEGEBARER RERARBERER-

Movements in the provision for impairment are as follows: (d) MEREESHNT
2016 2015
—E-RF —TRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
At beginning of the year REY 88,241 55,825
Impairment losses (Note 6) BEEE (MisEe) 6,788 32,412
Written off €| (854)
Exchange realignment [E 5 A% (63)
At end of the year RER 94,112 88,241

The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other receivables net of
impairment are denominated in the following currencies:

BNRE - e REMEKEZ REE (DK
BAE) VR T II R EHE

2016 2015

—EB-XE —T—AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

HK$ ok 58,222 47,368
RMB AR 55,648 41,363
us$ E 20,344 1,063
Others Hith - 2,840
134,214 92,634
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e SRR A

21 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 21 Hthe®mEE
Other financial assets comprised of the following: HtemEERFEANTIE:
2016 2015
—F-RF —T-HF
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Held-for-trading investments: FHEEERRE
Listed equity security in Hong Kong A& B T H R AE 5 147 132
Available-for-sale investments: AIHHERE
Unlisted equity investment, at cost ~ FF_ETIRRAIRE IR A 5,837 5,837
— Less: Provision for impairment — R E (5,837) (5,837)

Listed equity security in Hong Kong A EE _EM AR AE S

(Note (a)) (MF3E@)) 24,533 47,647
24,680 47,779

Less: Amount shown under B IEREBEEERET
non-current assets Fr5) &8 (24,533) (47,647)

Amount shown under current assets  fiB) & EIE T A5 R &5 147 132

Note: B 7 -

(a) The listed equity security represents the Group's long-term investment of (a) R AFEFEAEENSEREBRRERAAF
9.91% equity interest in Gold Tat Group International Limited (“Gold Tat”). It (T€3E])9.91%RIEHRIAIRE - HHELER
is measured at fair value with reference to the bid prices on the Hong Kong - RFZAZ+—BEBBABIAZEA
Stock Exchange as at 31 March 2016. With reference to the bid price on the BRERATEET -2 -2 RF=A=+—
Stock Exchange as at 31 March 2016, the fair value of Gold Tat decreased AMZAMNEAE B2 —"F=A=1+—
by approximately HK$23,114,000 (2015: decrease of approximately HIEFESENRDTETKAE23,114,000
HK$26,667,000) and the same amount was debited (2015: debited) to the (=T —RF: THABH26,667,0007T)
investment revaluation reserve for the year ended 31 March 2016. NEHBREBEFEENREARASE(ZE—R

FEER) o
(b) Other financial assets are denominated in HK$. (b) Hib & B EE T ABEHE
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e ISR R MR

INVENTORIES 22 78
2016 2015
—E-RF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Consumables FEM 24 324
Raw materials R 2,403 6,303
Finished goods BIRK T 199 553
2,626 7,180

The cost of inventories recognised as expense amounted to
HK$5,803,740,000 (2015: HK$781,452,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2016, raw materials with the
cost of HK$3,377,000 (2015: Nil) was considered obsolete. The
whole account was written off as at 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

BRAEARAINGEERNR BB
5,803,740,000c ( —ZE—HF B

781

,452,0007T,) ©

RHE-E-—AF=A=t+—BLF

rg_,
F

7N A& 853,377,000 (2 —F
BICREBERERE 2 ERE

RZZE-—RF=ZA=+—B(ZZ—1

Fom) M-
TRADE RECEIVABLES 23 EZEIWRIE
2016 2015
—E-XRE ZT—AHF
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Trade receivables H 5 W IE 359,743 317,385
Less: Provision for impairment R E R E (MTEEd))
(Note (d)) (11,723) (3,779)
348,020 313,606
Notes: B 3 -
(a) Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit (a) RENTEAFRERA AEEeEANHEET

assessment system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. The management considers adequate
allowance has been made at end of the year. Balances which are neither
past due nor impaired are all receivable from customers with good historical
repayment records and good credit quality.

(b) Trade receivables are due within 30 to 120 days (2015: 30 to 90 days) from
the date of invoicing.
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23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23 BESEWFIE (&)

Notes: (Continued) B aE - ()
() Aging analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date net of impairment is (© B 5 RWTIE (R R E ) IRIE 2 5 82 BRile
as follows: AT
2016 2015
—E-AE —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Less than 1 month TR—M@A 178,547 82,929
1 month to 3 months —EBAE=EA 72,463 188,907
More than 3 months BB=EAETE—F
but less than 1 year 94,768 40,473
Over 1 year Bidm—F 2,242 1,297
348,020 313,606
(d) Movements in the provision for impairment during the year are as follows: (d) FRNOMERBEESHOT
2016 2015
ZE-XRE —ZE-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At beginning of the year REH 3,779 3,799
Impairment losses (Note 6) RAEEE (FzEe6) 9,138 -
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary RELHEHRB AR (1,109) -
Exchange realignment [EREEE (85) (20)
At end of the year RER 11,723 3,779

As at 31 March 2016, trade receivables of HK$11,723,000
(2015: HK$3,779,000) were impaired. The amount of the provision was
HK$9,138,000 as at 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil). The individually impaired
receivables mainly related to commodity trading, in which the directors
considered the whole outstanding amount not to be recoverable.

(e) Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors with an (e)

T (=T —RF: #¥%3,779,0007T) 2 & 5 R
REERBE - R-_E—ANF=A=+—0&E
S HRERENE9,138,000 (ZF—HF M) @
PIBHERKFELTEHEEZR A HRAE
BB TAIKBZERES B

AEMEHRUAAEBOERARERES
149,292,0007C (=T —H4F : E#121,791,000

aggregate carrying amount of HK$149,292,000 (2015: HK$121,791,000),
which are past due at end of the year for which the Group has not provided
for any impairment as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. Aging analysis of trade receivables
based on due date which are past due but not impaired is as follows:

7o) BRERE B EUKARF - A% B &
REEHEMRERE BREEERTERSE
AREH - AZSFFRMEERAKE - ARE L
BRZSERFEETANERR BAREIL K
AR R S R RFORR R E H R RRER ST

™~

2016 2015
—EB-XEF —E—ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Less than 1 month TR—1MEA 6,007 100,698
1 month to 3 months —EBAE=EA 57,689 6,481

More than 3 months HmB=EAENE—F
but less than 1 year 85,483 13,316
Over 1 year iR —F 113 1,296
149,292 121,791
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e ISR R MR

. f=v] Ea -
TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23 EZEINFEIE (@)
Notes: (Continued) [EEEE )
(f) The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in the following (f) B 5 WA BREETY A T 5 G THE -
currencies:
2016 2015
—E-AE —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
HK$ it 27,647 43,172
RMB AR 251,918 112,238
us$ EV 68,455 152,879
Others EHAth - 5,317
348,020 313,606
(9) As at 31 March 2015, the Group's trade receivables with aggregate carrying (9 RZE-—RAF=A=+—HB FAEERARLER
value of HK$196,051,000 were pledged to secure banking facilities granted 75 #5196,051,0007T 2 & 5 FEUGRIAE {EH 7 «
to the Group (Note 29(d)(3)). UEEEFASEZ RITEE (M529d)3)) °
45 =+
LOANS RECEIVABLE 24 EBWER
2016 2015
=F-RF i
HK$000 HK$'000
EETR BETR
Loans receivable e E R 19,913 29,159

The Group's loans receivable, which arise from the money
lending business of providing short-term loans to independent
third parties in Hong Kong, are denominated in HK$.

Loans receivable bear coupon interest rates ranging from
8.0% to 60.0% (2015: 13.44% to 24.0%) per annum and are
repayable with fixed terms ranging from three to twelve months.
The carrying amounts are determined using the expected future
repayments discounted at effective interest rates ranging from
7.35% t0 59.67% per (2015: 6.36% to 24.49%) per annum.

Certain loans receivable are secured by collaterals. The maximum
exposure to credit at each of the reporting dates is the carrying
value of the receivables mentioned above. Interest income of
HK$9,823,000 (2015: HK$4,487,000) has been recognised as
revenue in the consolidated income statement.

PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited FZ5gE/RiZA AR AT

7R o B 7 B B S5 = 5 R GE
B 50 T 2 RO PR BB - T B S
HHE-

BHERZNHNESEN THF8.0%
£60.0% (ZT—AF:13.44%%
240%) REBETEERBARN T ==
+ =18 A - BRE{E R T8 B R R E FE IR
HFE735%%E59.67% (Z B —H4F:
6.36%ZE24.49% )M ERF RITHE
):'_\Eo

AETRKEFHIEFRIEER RE®
SHHEAZHERNEERK A Ll EIR
BRI BRTEE - 51#9,823,0000T (=&
— R B #4,487,0007T) A B A
EREAE B ERAER AR
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. Eh e
24 LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 24 EWEFR (#)
As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, all of the loans receivable are RZEB-—RERZZE-—RAF=A=+—
neither past due nor impaired. The maturity profile of the loans B FTA U E R &8 By IR AR OR(E
receivable based on maturity date is as follows: FEWERS B BN (R EEE D)
LUNNE
2016 2015
—E-XRF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Less than 1 month TE—EA 5,405 8,155
1 month to 3 months —EAZE=@A 9,894 21,004
More than 3 months HBm=EAELIR—F
but less than 1 year 4,614 -
19,913 29,159
The credit quality of loans receivable has been assessed by EWEFNEEERNELEE@ETF
reference to historical information about counterparties’ credit FEARENESL ERHEEITI M B
history. The existing counterparties do not have defaults in the BUHFHIAE L EELN -
past.

25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25 PTEERT A

2016 2015
—E—RF —E-hF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =K BE Bf&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT

Derivative financial instruments BIEBEZITE

held-for-trading: SEIA:

Interest rate swaps (Note (a)) A== 5 (B3t (a)) - = - 230
Foreign currency forward contracts SR ERE L) (BT RE(b))

(Note (b)) 510 - - 26,512
Total derivative financial instruments T4 &8 T A& 510 - - 26,742
The derivative financial instruments are held-for-trading MESMIADNDRKEEEEN -RE
purposes. The fair values of interest rate swaps and foreign R MR RN RGN A TE
currency forward contracts at end of the year are provided by the HHEFHRITIEMH

counterparty banks.
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25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(@

(d)

e ISR R MR

25 fTHESRIE @)

Interest rate swaps (a)  F=i= A7
At 31 March 2015, the fixed interest rates varied from RZE—RF=A=+—0 HEF
2.5% to 3.0%, and the main floating rate is HIBOR. Loss FERE25%E3.0% 2 BEE M
recognised on the changes in fair value of the interest FEEFHRNERBEARITRER
rate swap contracts during the year ended 31 March 2016 BoREBEEZT—XR"F=A=1—
amounted to HK$1,000 (2015: HK$57,000). HiIFFERAXEH A TEE
BHER R E R AER,0007T (=
T— R4 B¥57,0007T)
Foreign currency forward contracts (b)y HNEERHEIE LY
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward RZE—XE=ZRF=+—8"
foreign exchange contracts at 31 March 2016 were MAREEEHIESONEE
US$8,000,000 (approximately HK$62,000,000) (2015: N4 8 /58,000,000F 7T (4975
US$208,000,000 (approximately HK$1,612,000,000)). The ¥62,000,000L) (=& —H
strike rate for the forward foreign exchange contracts was % :208,000,000% T * 4978 ¥
6.45 (2015: 6.04 to 6.50). The strike rates are expressed as 1,612,000,0007T) ° = HAONE &
the RMB to US$ exchange rates. HRMITHI R B6.45 (ZE—H
F :6.04%6.50) ° H 1T F| & KR
RARB R ETHER-
Loss recognised on the changes in fair value of the foreign RERFINEEREONATE
currency forward contracts during the year amounted to BEFERMEIE A 15,785,000
HK$5,785,000 (2015: Gain of HK$4,536,000). T(ZEE-—HF:-Kam K
4,536,0007T) °
The carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments (© PTEEMIAEZEREMBETILAT
are denominated in the following currencies: BHGHE
2016 2015
ST Sl —F-1F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =0 B afE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT T BT
us$ = - - - 26,742
RMB AR 510 - - -
510 - - 26,742
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date (d) RBEAHAZHHAEERR

is the fair value of the derivative financial assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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26 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 26 HERIBITHEER
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHEEAES 208,168 212,766
Less: Restricted bank deposits B ERIRIRITER
(Note 29(d)(4)) (P EE29(d)(4) ) - (46,980)
Cash and cash equivalents HehkREEEER 208,168 165,786
The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances are Re RIRITHEABNREE U T EE
denominated in the following currencies: FTE:
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
HK$ s 127,586 148,259
us$ Y 20,825 5,479
RMB AR 59,753 58,580
Others HAfty 4 448
208,168 212,766
Note: P 5 -
As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s bank balances of approximately HK$77,858,000 RZE-—RNFZA=1+—H8 AEEZRITEBRLOEY
(2015: HK$13,135,000) were deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance 77,858,0007t (=% — F 4 : %#13,135,0007T) EFA
of these funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign HEZRITHZEESERPERE TR EBMARIN
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. T & i 48 5 2 AR 3R Bl KK AR ©
=+
TRADE PAYABLES 27 BEZEMNFRIE
2016 2015
ZE-REF —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade payables E 5 EMRIE 255,020 266,485
Bills payable e i 19,904 28,576
274,924 295,061
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. =] 7 =
27 TRADE PAYABLES (Continued) 27 BHBEMAFIE (#)
Notes: B 7 <
(a) The following is an aging analysis of trade payables and bills payable (a) INTRESENFIERENEENFRIZER
presented based on the invoice date and date of the bills at end of the year. HEIRER B2 2R DT -
Aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: B S REMARIE RO ET
2016 2015
ZE-XKE —ZT-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Less than 1 month TR—M@A 113,886 47,886
1 month to 3 months —ERE=EA 58,767 148,310
More than 3 months BBA=EABTR—F
but less than 1 year 79,474 69,950
Over 1 year BB —F 2,893 339
255,020 266,485
Aging analysis of bills payable is as follows: ENRBEZRESITIAT
2016 2015
ZE-XKEF —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Less than 1 month TrR—1MEA 2,302 17,605
1 month to 3 months —EAAZE=EA 13,526 10,971
More than 3 months B@=fEAETR—F
but less than 1 year 4,076 -
19,904 28,576

(b) The carrying amounts of trade payables and bills payable are denominated in b) BHENFIARENEERZEREDATIIE

the following currencies: HEtE:
2016 2015
—E-XF —E—-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BB T
HK$ B 10,942 15,937
us$ ES 49,820 162,206
RMB AR 214,162 114,316
Others H A, - 2,602
274,924 295,061
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The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

28 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 28 FEFTRIBR HAtEAFRIE
2016 2015

—E—RE —T—AHF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Consideration payables JERTR(E 6,006 6,257
Receipts in advance TEW IR 103 1,591
Construction cost payables JE A R A AR 9,549 18,872
Other payables A FE < B 34,096 20,082
49,754 46,802

FEET SRR N B Al A SRR B AR E{E T A

THEREGHE

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

HK$ B 25,062 13,895
RMB AR 24,692 31,348
Others Hi - 1,559
49,754 46,802
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29 BANK BORROWINGS 29 RITEE
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Bank loans RITER = 46,585
Bank overdrafts RITIEX - 39
- 46,624

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's bank borrowings were payable within 1
year.

Bank loans and overdrafts contained a repayment on demand clause which
enables the bank to exercise at its sole discretion. Accordingly, the entire
balance was classified under current liabilities as at 31 March 2015.

As at 31 March 2015, the bank loans and overdrafts were interest-
bearing with variable rate at contractual interest of HIBOR plus certain
basis points per annum. The effective interest rate for the year was 2.90%.
The borrowings were repayable in a lump sum payment upon maturity in
accordance with the terms set out in the respective banking facility letters.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group pledged the following assets to secure the
Group's trading facilities:

(1) Corporate guarantee executed by the Company for an unlimited
amount (2015: same);

(2) An investment property with a carrying value of HK$23,349,000
(2015: HK$23,862,000) (Note 16(e)).

(3) As at 31 March 2016, the Group has not pledged any trade
receivables (2015: HK$196,051,000) (Note 23(g)); and

(4) Fixed deposit placed in banks for the bank borrowings and
trading facilities utilised. As at 31 March 2016, the Group has not
maintained any fixed deposit (2015: RMB37,542,000 (approximately
HK$46,980,000)) for the aforesaid purpose (Note 26).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings and overdrafts
at 31 March 2015 were denominated in US$ and HK$ respectively and
approximated their fair values.
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(b)
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(d)

R-B-—AF=ZA=+—H AKERTEE
ARN—FREE-

RITEARRBE L BERITAI TR ZIRER
BEER Bt RZFT—AF=A=+—8"
FHERIN AR ELE-

RZZ—AF=A=+—RH ROTEAREX
TiRF B R MR RREBRTALRE
MEFETRUENEOFNSTE - FRERF
£ H2.90% - EETIRBHNSHRITEERME
IR B — R A

REZZ-ARFZA=+—H ALKEBERT
SIEEERAEEE S EEMER:

(1) AREUEHE FREE 2 REER (=
TREFEERA)

(2) BRTE A A5 %23,349,0000 (= Z— A
4 #1523,862,0007T) Z R EWE (I
#E16(e)) ©

(3) RZE—AF=-A=+—8 X&H
WHERAREMNE S ERKXE (=T
— A4 :51#196,051,0007T) (i
23(g)) + &

(4) EHITEREFRNIEIT AERITHE
BREBESEERAE - RZT—R"E=
A=+—-8 &% g udl=N:o)
BREEHER(ZE—RF: ARK
37,542,0007T ( #77%%46,980,0007T) )
(KI5E26) -

RZE-—AF=ZA=+—H FKERTEER
FEXHREETID BIAE T RSB EHEL 8
HAVERE -
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30 SHARE CAPITAL 30 B

Number of shares Share capital

BREE B
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —T-HE ZB-Xf —T—R#FE
Note ‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B & TR TR BT T BETT
Ordinary shares of FREEEK0.01T
HK$0.01 each EOR=g L
Authorised: ERE
At beginning of the year R4 8,000,000 8,000,000 80,000 80,000
Increase in authorised FRETERAL M
share capital during
the year (a 7,000,000 - 70,000 -
At end of the year RER 15,000,000 8,000,000 150,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAE:
At beginning of the year 4] 4,985,724 4,600,624 49,857 46,006
Placement of new shares  BEZ&#TAL (D (b) 766,668 - 7,667 -
Exercise of share options  T{¥ B A& 4% (© - 150,100 - 1,501
Exercise of warrants TERREE (d 465,000 235,000 4,650 2,350
At end of the year RER 6,217,392 4,985,724 62,174 49,857

BRARBEAAGRUBTES KK
B YERRARBAANGLZEEM—
ENRER-MBEEBRERARAHN
MHEEZARSERN-

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Notes: i

RZZB-—AF+—-A=-+HA REREFH
AELAB-HETBERAR UL EFER

(a) On 25 November 2015, an ordinary resolution was passed on (a)
the extraordinary general meeting to approve the increase in the

(]

authorised share capital of the Company from HK$80,000,000 divided
into 8,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”) to
HK$150,000,000 divided into 15,000,000,000 Shares by the creation of
additional 7,000,000,000 Shares.

On 18 September 2015 and 4 January 2016, the Company issued
100,000,000 and 666,668,000 shares through placement with a price
of HK$0.138 and HK$0.13 each, respectively. The net proceeds from the
placement was approximately HK$13,800,000 and HK$82,767,000 after
netting off related transaction costs of approximately Nil and HK$3,900,000
respectively.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company allotted and issued
150,100,000 shares of HK$0.01 each at exercise prices ranging from
HK$0.1980 to HK$0.2510 per share as a result of the exercise of share
options.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company allotted and issued
465,000,000 shares (2015: 235,000,000 shares) of HK$0.01 each at
exercise prices ranging from HK$0.1526 to HK$0.1800 (2015: HK$0.1526 to
HK$0.1800) per share as a result of the exercise of non-listed warrants.
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(

(d)

7,000,000,0000% A& 15 + #§ A8 A AIE TE B AN 27
#80,000,0007T, ( 4 %48,000,000,000/% 74X A 7]
EmAk ([ {H 1) )48 hn % 7% #150,000,0007T
(% /15,000,000,0008% B 15 ) °

RZT—RAFAA+N\BERZZ—AR"F—AMN
B ARARSEBEEDRIRGREE0.1387T &
i % #0.137T 2 f8 4% 8 17100,000,000A% &
666,668,000/% 15 ° Ait & 2 FT15 FIE F RAL B
HHEAR F AL ZT KA KE3,900,0007T# 5 B4
A7 13,800,0007T K 7% #:82,767,0007T °

REE-ZT-—AF=A=+—BILLFE A2
AR 7758 A A% A i 3 1% 3577150, 100,0000% & %
EEEB0.01 T2 R - SRARH ZITEEN T
70,1980 2% #0.25107T ©

REE-Z-—ARF=A=+—BILFE £KAF
77150 IF - T 3R AR 42 75 i B K % 47465,000,000
i (== — F 4 :235,000,0000% ) & i% (8 75
#0012 Rt BRRMH ZITEEN T B
0.15267C £ B #0.1800T (Z T — R F : B ¥
0.15267C £ ##£0.18007T ) °
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(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Share options

The Company has a share option scheme for eligible directors
and employees of the Group.

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 24 June 2013, a
new share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) has been
approved and adopted by the shareholders of the Company.
The share option scheme approved by the shareholders on
21 October 2002 expired on 21 October 2012 (the "Expired
Scheme”).

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
may, at their discretion, offer employees, contracted celebrity,
advisor, consultant, serial provider, agent, customer, partner
or joint venture partner of the Company and its subsidiaries
(including any directors of the Group), the grant of options
to subscribe for shares of the Company representing up to
a maximum of 10% of the shares issued as at 24 June 2013
(excluding shares issued on exercise of options under the Share
Option Scheme). No share options was issued or granted during
the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: NIl) and outstanding as at
31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

Share Award Scheme of the Company

On 16 October 2008, the Board of Directors of the Company
approved the Share Award Scheme (“Share Award Scheme”)
in which selected employees of the Group, including without
limitation any Executive and Non-executive Director, officer,
agent or consultant (with payroll) of the Group, are entitled to
participate in the Share Award Scheme pursuant to the rules of
the Share Award Scheme.
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(a)

(b)

e SRR MR
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31 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b) Share Award Scheme of the Company (Continued)

(c)

On 27 October 2015, the Board of Directors resolved to grant
awards for a total of 45,000,000 awarded shares (“Awarded
Shares”) to certain employees under the Share Award Scheme.
The Awarded Shares were purchased from the market during 22
October 2015 to 27 October 2015 at a range from HK$0.177
to HK$0.180 per share in accordance with the terms of the
Share Award Scheme. The Group has engaged a trustee, for
the purpose of administering the Share Award Scheme and
holding the Awarded Shares before they are vested. During the
year, 15,000,000 Awarded Shares were vested and 30,000,000
Awarded Shares were outstanding as at 31 March 2016. The
fair value at date of grant was HK$0.179. For the year ended
31 March 2016, the Group recognised share-based payment
expenses of HK$8,055,000 (2015: Nil) (Note 8).

Non-listed warrants

The Company also issued 200,000,000 non-listed warrants
to the Honorary Chairman of the Company on 3 June 2011;
350,000,000 non-listed warrants to an external consultant in
respect of consultation services received on 29 November 2012
(Note 20(b)); and 370,000,000 non-listed warrants to certain
independent third parties on 25 October 2013.

No warrants were issued during the year ended 31 March 2016
(2015: Nil).

The warrants were measured at fair value of HK$20,040,000 at
the initial recognition, and were credited to share-based payment
reserve in accordance with HKFRS 2.
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(b)
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LR A7 A% 2 FRIE (&)
KRR ZBRBEBEE (4

RZZE—RAF+A=-++tH &=
CRABEROREEER LA H
45,000,000/% #ZEh A% 0 ([Z2EN AR 1)
FTETRRE -REBRHIHIEZ-ZT
—RAFE+A-FT-_RAE-_T—RHFT+
AZ -+t AHMEBRERDZEE 2
BRASRN FEB0I177TEBE
0.180TLHMIZHER - AEE D Z B —
HZTANERR D B S RN 2
BNESBRFAEZERMD RAF
ER 15000000&@&@1%’7}5 5B
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31 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 31 AR A 2 FRIE ()

(c) Non-listed warrants (Continued) () ELMABRER @)
At the issuance of the warrants, it was recognised at fair REITRBREER  HIRAFEER:
value, determined based on the valuations performed by an THRBBUA T BRI E L B ER A
independent professional valuer using the binomial model with ZIERAGETR R EEE

the following assumptions:

Group

AEE

Issue date as

at 25 October 2013

R=B—=%

+HB=+#HH

B1TH

Conversion price HiaE HK$7E#0.15267T

Share price (& HK$7E%0.16107T

Expected volatility T8 HA R 1@ 50.946%

Remaining life FIeAF R 3 years &

Risk-free rate N m 0.462%
For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recognised net HE-_T—R"F=-A=1+—HILFE"
aggregate share-based payment expenses of HK$3,943,000 REBMBEIT T —RINEEMZIELT
(2015: HK$6,357,000) (Note 20(b)) in respect of non-listed RBEEFERABRM XN ZRERX
warrants to an external consultant. R EAAAEE /3,943,000 (ZE—H

& B %6,357,0007T) (FiEE20(b)) °
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31 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 31 BARAD XY 2 FOR ()

(c) Non-listed warrants (Continued) () ELMARER @)
Details of the Company’s share options granted under the share RER RATMRKBERESEIRE 2
option scheme and warrants outstanding and their movements FERRRE R M AR AT 2 RRIEE B RE 15 2
during the year are as follows: HEsmT -

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-E-AEZACT-ALEE

As at Granted Exercised Lapsed Forfeited As at
Exercise 1 April during during during during 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period price 2015 the year the year the year the year 2016
R=B-EF RoB-%E
REBH [ili2] [k BA-B  RERRE REATE RERKXR  REARK =ZA=t-A
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
TR TH TR TR TR TH
Non-listed warrants
FLTRRER
Consultant 29 November 2012 1 March 2013 to HK$0.180 335,000 - (335,000) - - -
B S 28 November 2015 7101807
+-A=thB “3--§-f-R%
Z2-R§+-AZTNB
Independent third parties 25 October 2013 25 October 2013 to HK$0.1526 150,000 - (130,000) - - 20,000
BUE=H —3-=F 24 October 2016 70,1526
tA-tEA Z2-Z¥TA-TRRAZ
ZI-RETAZTEA
485,000 = (465,000) - - 20,000
485,000 - (465,000) - - 20,000
Exercisable at end of the year
RERTTE 20,000
Weighted average exercise price
METHIEE 0.172 - 0172 - - 0.153
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 31 BARAD Y 2 FOR ()
Non-listed warrants (Continued) () ELMARER @)

Details of the Company’s share options granted under the share RER RATMRKBERESEIRE 2
option scheme and warrants outstanding and their movements FERRRE R M AR AT 2 RRIEE B RE 15 2
during the year are as follows: (Continued) HEEBWT - (#)

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RF-f=T-HL%E

As at Granted Bxercised Lapsed Forfeited As at
Exercise 1 April during during during during 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period price 2014 the year the year the year the year 2015
RZZ-mF RZZ-1F
RLAH [ i RA-B  RERKE  REAGE  RERKR  RERRK ZA=1-8
'000 '000 ‘000 '000 '000 '000
i 8 i i B TR
Share options
BRE
Executive Directors 13 August 2004 13 August 2004 to HK$0.251 100 - (100) - - -
H1EF —3IME 12 August 2014 0251
NAT=R “ZEMENATZHE
“Z-RENATZE
24 May 2012 1 July 2012 to HK$0.198 200,000 = (150,000) (50,000) - -
—3-CF 27 March 2015 71501987
AA=1mA “Z-£+f-RZE
“E-REZA-t+A
200,100 - (150,100) (50,000) - -
Nonisted wawants . TTTTm oTomTmmommmmmommmmmommmmmomTmm
EALELT E
Honorary Chairman 3 June 2011 3 June 2011 to HK$0.45 200,000 - - (200,000) - -
RELIR —E—-f 2 June 2014 EH045T
~AZR “3——-%xRZHE
—2-mE~AZA
Consultant 29 November 2012 1 March 2013 to HK$0.180 350,000 - (15,000) - - 335,000
B —3-CF 28 November 2015 71501807
T-B=thR Z3-=%¥=F-R%
“E-nFt-AZTAR
Independent third parties 25 October 2013 25 October 2013 to HK$0.1526 370,000 - (220,000 - - 150,000
BUE=H —5-=f 24 October 2016 #0.15267
TAZtxA “E-ZEHACTHAE
B ETAZTEA
920,000 - (235,000) (200,000) - 485,000
1,120,100 - (385,100) (250,000) - 485,000
Exercisable at end of the year
RERTTR 485,000
Weighted average exercise price
MEFSRE 0222 - 0.171 0400 - 0.172
During the year ended 31 March 2016, no (2015: 150,100,000) RBE_Z-XEF=ZA=+—HBI
share options and 465,000,000 (2015: 235,000,000) non-listed FE BOAEEH(ZT-—HF:
warrants were exercised. 150,100,00017 ) & fi% # % 465,000,000
3 (== — A 4F :235,000,00013 ) 3F £
TRAERE -
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 32 EILEFREE
The net movements in the deferred income tax liabilities are as BREFGHREEFRESHIT :
follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—RHF
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At beginning of the year NG (2,797) (8,125)
Credited to consolidated RERE SR A (KisE12)
income statement (Note 12) 370 5,332
Exchange realignment M 5, 5 2 203 (4)
At end of the year RER (2,224) (2,797)
Deferred income tax liabilities mainly represent accelerated tax RAFERBAFE BREMSHEE
depreciation recognised and movements thereon during the FERCDHERNNERIBNE R EEE
current and prior years: Bl INNE
2016 2015
ZE-RF S
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT
At beginning of the year RE A (2,847) (11,775)
Credited to consolidated NGRS N
income statement 370 8,932
Exchange realignment PE 3 3 2 203 (4)
At end of the year RER (2,274) (2,847)
The deferred income tax liabilities are expected to be recovered BIEEFTSHAaERBNER T Z[EA%
after more than 12 months. I qEI
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

At end of the year, the Group has deductible temporary
differences, including assets impairment and unused tax losses of
HK$364,945,000 (2015: HK$287,289,000) and HK$66,004,000
(2015: HK$64,236,000) respectively. No deferred income
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. No deferred tax asset has been recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2016 has been recognised (2015: Nil)
in relation to unused tax losses due to unpredictability of future
profit streams.

Deferred income tax assets mainly represent tax losses recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

e ISR R MR

2 EIEFTER (&)

RER AEEBNAHNBTREE B
BEERERNADAHEBEEES R
575 #364,945,0000 (ZE—RHF 8
#£287,289,0007T ) & % #66,004,0007T
(ZZ—FHF:5%64,236,0007T) °
P BR RE Eh A AT 050 B B 2 B DAAK 81 1B
RHEEMB AT B ERE
S MHREsE2RRELRE
REE-REBEE-_T—X"F=ZA=1+—
B F & AR AR S5 F SRR B & A TR
Al I E B A B A BB RREL
MEEE(ZE—RF |)-

BEEMBEREETBRNAFEIBE
FEZOHAVABELLEE:

2016 2015

—E-XRE —T—AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

At beginning of the year R F ) 50 3,650
Charged to consolidated RERE W = B

income statement - (3,600)

At end of the year RER 50 50

The unrecognised tax losses amounting to HK$7,936,000
(2015: Nil) can be carried forward indefinitely and the remaining
HK$58,127,000 (2015: HK$64,236,000) will expire in 5 years.
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33

34

—
BONDS 33 &%
2016 2015
—E-XRF —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Unsecured bonds mERES 366,830 263,329
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company issued HE_ZT-—RE=A=+—HILEE"
bonds with aggregated amount of HK$134,400,000 (2015: AARMETEIE=F%TEHE
HK$295,000,000) to several independent third parties with #134,400,000c (— T — RHF: B
coupon rates ranged from 5.71% to 6.00% per annum, payable 295,000,0007T) Z &% FREBEN T
in 4 to 8 years from the respective issue dates. The amounts of 5.71%%6.00%  IN&&E1THEEF4E
bonds repayable at their maturities are disclosed in Note 3(a)(iii). BFENXT - ARBIRNEFFNHAEEE
2 & R EE BT EE3 () i) ©
The carrying amount of the bonds are determined using the EHzEmMBENEALEBEETAH
expected future payments discounted at effective interest rates HERZFEEERMNEN F5.09% 2
ranged from 5.09% to 13.41% per annum (2015: 5.09% 13.41% (ZFE—AF :BF5.09%F
to 13.41% per annum) prevailing at the respective dates of 13.41% ) FriR 69 78 BAR RS SR M EE OE ©
issuance.
The fair value of the bonds as at 31 March 2016 amounted to RZEB—RF=ZA=+—H EHzA
approximately HK$364,932,000 (2015: HK$262,562,000). The FE4 ABH364,932,000t (—ZF—H
fair values are determined based on cash flows discounted using & B #262,562,0007T) c A FETHE
a rate based on the effective market interest rate of 4.86% to RRZE—R"F=ZRA=1T—HZFEZ
12.47% per annum as at 31 March 2016. BHIGF RN T4.86%E12.47%HT IR
ZHREREMET -
The carrying amounts of bonds are denominated in HK$. BEHCREE D AEEEE-
DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 34 RALE—BHNERA

During the year ended 31 March 2016, in view of the continuous
unsatisfactory performance of Global Songkaer Petroleum Co.,
Limited ("Global Songkaer”), the directors, for the benefit of
the Group, surrendered the controlling power of the board of
directors of Global Songkaer to the non-controlling interest.
Accordingly, the investment in Global Songkaer was reclassified
from an investment in a subsidiary to an interest in an associate.
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34 DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 34 RIEELHE—RHWEDQF

(Continued) (&)
The aggregate net assets of the subsidiary at the date of deemed RERLERH WEARZEEFE
disposal were as follows: mEAT
2016
—E-RE
HK$000
BT T
Consideration KRB =
Net assets: EEFE:

Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) ME BB R (FIFE15) 6,904

Inventories ey 167

Trade receivables B 5 WA 2,065

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — JBfF3RIB « #&& K H b B U 5118 1,727

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEFEIER 1,633

Trade payables 2 5 EN A (1,056)

Other payables E &~ 5RIE (7,953)

Non-controlling interests FE 2 b M R (2,340)

Reclassification of exchange reserves from RERLERFELEEE R

equity to profit or loss upon deemed ENoEEER
disposal 8,642
Loss on deemed disposal of a subsidiary BAEHE—HEBARZER
(Note 6) (Kf=L6) 9,789
Net cash outflow arising on deemed disposal MR AHEBEL RS R LIFE
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FFHERE KRS EEIEE (1,633)
35 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35 BAREYE
2016 2015
ZE-RF —ET-HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Contracted but not provided for EEMEREE:

— property, plant and equipment —WE WEKEHE = 40,898
The Group does not have any capital commitments that are RIE—REFEAR_T—RHF=A=1+—
authorised but not contracted for as at 31 March 2016 and B AREEGETNDREERTOZ
2015. B
The Company does not have any capital commitments as at 31 RZZE—REZA=+—H ARF
March 2016 (2015: Nil). WESGTMEREE(ZT—AF:

) o
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36 OPERATING LEASES

(a)

(b)

As lessee

At end of the year, the Group had future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due
within:

36 EEHE
(@) #EHBERBA
AR - R BRI T3R8, R

A HHE A8 AR B AU B R R S KA
o

2016 2015

—E-REF —E-AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BEET T

Within one year —FR 6,118 6,723
In the second to fifth years inclusive M4 = F 4

(BEEEMF) 8,954 1,194

15,072 7,917

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated
in a range from 1 year to 50 years. No arrangements have been
entered into for contingent rental payments.

As lessor

At end of the year, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease receipt under non-cancellable operating lease which falls

REBENFEAREREE THA
ENERNNES -HERNF—FZE
I+ FHER - BERBRES MR
FEESCER

(b) EREHBEAKN

RAFER RNEBZ T HHELEHE
# (R —FRBM)ET 2 R RKEHE

due within one year: B @zERT
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Within one year —FR" 2,124 -

Operating lease receipt represents rentals receivable by the
Group for its investment property. Lease are negotiated in 1 year
term. No arrangements have been entered into for contingent
rental receipts.
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 BEEEALTRS

(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EHEBEALTZRS

FEEIEABRH:

Compensation of key management personnel:

ETEEBEABRRARMNEERT
REEBMEMKE - BHEFMOFE

All members of key management personnel are the directors and
other members of key management of the Company. Details of

their remuneration are follows: wmR
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Short-term employee benefits REREERA
— Directors (Note 9) —&E = (MI5E9) 9,057 7,764
— Other members —HMKE 1,913 1,956
10,970 9,720
Post-employment benefits Bt 12 48 A
— Directors (Note 9) —E%E (M5F9) 54 54
— Other members —HAbp B 27 35
81 89
11,051 9,809
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EREBREALT 2GR
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Amount due from substantial fEU E B AR R IE
shareholders - 5,450

The amount due from key management has the following terms ENEZEEBAEFIEEFUTER L

and conditions: {45 -
2016 2015
—E-REF —ZE—h%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BYTT BETT
Mr. Poon Sum EREE - 538
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38 EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Saved as disclosed elsewhere to these consolidated financial
statements, the following are significant events after the date of
statement of financial position entered into by the Company.

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

Subsequent to 31 March 2016, the Company issued bonds
with an aggregate amount of HK$15,000,000 to several
independent third parties with coupon rates of 6% and
maturities of 5 to 7 years.

On 5 April 2016, the Company issued 1,333,332,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each through placement
with a price of HK$0.13 each. The net proceeds from
the placement was approximately HK$165,533,000 after
netting off related transaction cost of approximately
HK$7,800,000.

On 24 April 2016, the Company granted 215,300,000
share options to subscribe for an aggregate of
215,300,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company to certain eligible employees under
the share options scheme of the Company adopted on 24
June 2013 at the exercise price of HK$0.193 at any time
from 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018.

On 4 May 2016, a subsidiary of the Group entered into
a non-legally binding memorandum of understanding
with a vendor in relation to a possible acquisition of an
entire interest of a company, which is principally engaged
in the sale of insurance products, collection of insurance
premium, loss investigation and claim settlement in respect
of relevant insurance businesses as agent in Zhejiang
Province, the PRC.
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BxERa MR LMt T MEREE
S AT BARBRMBAR K A HR
RIMZEREIE-

(a)

(b)

R-ZET—XNE=ZA=+—H
2% R DRBEITRESE
15,000,0007CfE%5 T & T B E
=h EBERE6%  FIHEFHAS
ET7F

R-ZE—R"FWOARAA  ARQF
FEBRREENGREL0I3TZE
£ 3£771,333,332,0000% 5 f% E (&
BT E R -EE 2T
1SFIBF R A48 165,533,000
T (MBRBEBRS KA LB
7,800,0007C14 ) °

RIZ—XFEMB-_+ME AR
BIRBEARRR - E—=FXA
N BERMNZERERTE M
ETE&EREERT215,300,000
MERE LURBAQIFRKRA
FEREAESEITTZA R
215,300,000% & @ A% - B AR AE Al
RZBE—XF+A=-+=-HZ=
T N\FNA - +—HEBERE
B IR 1T BB H0.1937T1T1E »

R-T—XFRANBE  ~EEZ
—E B AT —EE 5 HA 8
WE—REERFENIERE
RIBIFERBE®R - RIERER R
B RRIEMERREZEBREREY
ERBEEB AR 22 ER
RN ANEERNR N 2 RBRES
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39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 39 R E Z B RAR I R K
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE a%
COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company AR Z BB AR &
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2016 2015
ZE-RF —ET—AHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BB R& 1 678
Interests in subsidiaries I SGIEINGIPE: - 3 615,343 469,282
Prepayments, deposits and BRFIE ZRERk
other receivables H b fE U R IE 30,399 44,097
645,743 514,057
Current assets wBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TBRNFIE ZE Kk
other receivables H b JE U R TE 9,555 18,648
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Ug T B A B FUIE 92,485 77,315
Cash and bank balances He RIRITHES 100,275 95,312
202,315 191,275
Current liabilities wEEg
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 3R I8 K2 H A JE < FRIE 6,063 13,385
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NG S 1,322 -
7,385 13,385
Net current assets REBEETE 194,930 177,890
Total assets less current BEERARBDERE
liabilities 840,673 691,947
Capital and reserves IR % k4
Share capital &% Zx 62,174 49,857
Reserves ke Note (a)
B 5E (a) 411,668 378,761
Total equity R 473,842 428,618
Non-current liabilities knEHEE
Bonds &5 366,831 263,329
840,673 691,947
The Statement of financial position of the Company was KRB ZHBRARERZZE—RER
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2016 and are A +rHAEEESHAETATIES
signed on its behalf by: REZZ:
Poon Sum Poon Wai Kong
EHR EEB
Director Director
EF EF
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39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 39 RKNQFZE M%Hﬁ;ﬂ%%&ﬁ%
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE HEEE (@)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company (A AR ZREEE
Share-based
Share Treasury Other payment  Accumulated
premium shares reserves reserve losses Total
BURB S A2
R RE kA HfbgE BER R HEE E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT BETL BETR BETT BETR

At 1 April 2014 RZZT-NENA—A 439,462 - 5,450 71,275 (25,348) 546,839
Loss for the year FAKA - - - - (230,223 (230,223)
Lapse of share options e T - - - (3,600) 3,600 -
Lapse of non-listed warrants EARE P - - - (24,294) 24,294 -
Exercise of share options fiEREaRE 39,024 - - (10,800) - 28,224
Exercise of non-listed warrants A EmRREE 46,641 - - (12,720) - 33,921
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RF=A=+—-H 575,127 - 5,450 25,861 (227,677) 378,761
Loss for the year FRFA - - - - (131,481) (131,481)
Repurchase of ordinary shares B S B3t 8IRE B B AR

under share award scheme - (8,055) - - - (8,055)
Vesting of shares of et S EEH Bl 2RIV T

share award scheme - 2,685 - 5,370 - 8,055
Placement of new shares REHRM 88,900 - - - - 88,900
Exercise of non-listed warrants T3k EMRRER 100,279 - - (24,791) - 75,488
At 31 March 2016 R-B-"E=ZA=+-R 764,306 (5,370) 5,450 6,440 (359,158) 411,668
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40 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March
2016:

e SRR MR

40 KB A A

MN-E-RNE=ZA=1+—HZ2FEKHEB
NSRS S

Proportion of

Place/ nominal value of
country of Nominal value of issued share
incorporation issued share capital/registered
or registration/  capital/registered capital held by the
Name of subsidiary operations share capital Company Principal activities
NGNS
BRTRE/
EMARIREM BRITRAEM HRRAEE
WEAREHE Bewd /BERX RAEE HEAL TEEH
Beijing Arch Technology Company Limited ~ PRC RMB3,000,000 51.00% Provision of painting service,
sale and distribution of
painting products and
contract service
IR HEERBERAF i AR3,000,0007C REBERS  HERD W2
HERRAHRS
China-Hong Kong Link Finance Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100.00% Money lending
Company Limited
RERMKERRA BiE 1R EREERETH R
& fn
China-Hong Kong Link Securities Hong Kong 10,000,000 shares of HK$1 100.00% Brokerage of securities
Company Limited
hEBESFERAA B 10,000,0008% & B I B BEH
BEATHRG
Go Wealthy Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100.00% Property investment
MEREBRAF 5 TREREEEK1TH %%&ﬁ
B fn
Hai Tai Limited BVI 100 shares of US$1 each 100.00% Property investment
BEERAA REELEE  100RSHARIERA NERA
B fn
PetroAsian Energy Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100.00% Money Lending
PR RMEERAR ¥ 1R EREEE S T =%
B fn
Wing Shing Chemical Macao Macau MOP500,000 100.00% Commodity trading
Commercial Offshore
Company Limited
AL TEMBEREE AP JRPI#500,0007C BmES
RBERRAAF
Shenzhen Galali Petroleum and Chemical ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 100.00% Trading of fuel oil and
Limited chemical products
RIHEENE A TERAT e AR 5,000,0007C Rt IERES
EERBETRILABEYE PRC US$9,200,000 95.69%  Exploitation and sale of crude
BREMEAT oil in the PRC
EERBHRLAMHEE e 9,200,000% T R EER R E R
BBREEAT

There are no subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests that
are material to the Group as at 31 March 2016 and 2015.
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Schedule of Investment Properties

BREM=YIF

As at 31 March 2016 RZZT—XRF=A=+—H

Percentage of
Remaining interest attributable to
Property Type lease terms our Company

LIES £l R RATRELEESA DL

1. Car Parking Space No. 1053 Carpark Medium term 100%
On 1st Floor (22 A
Manhattan Hill
No. 1 Po Lun Street
Kowloon
JUEE
BEAT15%
S iE L
112
=B 35105357 B L

2. Flat B On 52th Floor of Tower 2 Residential Medium term 100%
Manhattan Hill F= R ER
No. 1 Po Lun Street
Kowloon
-
EWAT1%
S5 E L
ZEES2IEBE

3. Unit 11-14 on 8th Floor Office Medium term 100%
Wing On Plaza /N H A
No. 62 Mody Road
Kowloon
T
JEE 30 3B 6255
KL &%
11-148 70818
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Five Years Financial Summary

AFMBEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—EFE-ZF ZE—=F ZT—NF ZT-—HF ZB-—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEE T BEE T BB T T BT T

REVENUE & 339,967 991,810 982,327 804,167 5,932,235

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE ViN/NETE ¥ =N

TO OWNERS OF FE{GE1E
THE COMPANY (176,864) (115,255) (151,155) (148,305) (227,059)
REVENUE gz
6,000,000 5,932,235
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
991,810 982,327
1,000,000 804,167
0 339,967
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY Z& A Bl E A FE{L B8

HK$'000

- 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

-50,000

-100,000
(115,255)

-150,000

(151,155) (148,305)

200,000 (176,864)

-250,000 (227,059)
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Five Years Financial Summary

A FNBEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E—-F —ZFT—= —E-NFE —T—HFE ZB-—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
AT BETRT O AETT O BETT O BEFx
TOTAL ASSETS wEE 888,124 885,144 934,955 1,156,171 1,075,279
TOTAL LIABILITIES FES=R (190,140) (162,371) (329,141) (681,355) (693,943)
TOTAL EQUITY ERaE 697,984 722,773 605,814 474,816 381,336
TOTAL EQUITY #EH &%
HK$'000
JERTT
800,000

722,773

697,984
700,000

605,814
600,000

500,000 474,816
400,000
300,000

200,000

100,000

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
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POoEREZERERARD A
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited

19th Floor, 80 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
BB 5 TITE80571912

Tel 55 :(852) 2698 6093  Fax {5 H : (852) 3580 7793
Website 484k : www.petroasian.com
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